
Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
Megan Shramski, District 2 
Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342 Phone: (248) 758-3200 Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
Website: http://pontiaccit clerk.com/city-council-meetin_g§ Interim City Clerk 

STUDY SESSION 
252nd Session of the 10th Council 

September 7, 2021 at 6:00 P.M. 
Bowens Center 52 Bagley Pontiac, MI 48341 

Call to order 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. August 31, 2021 

Public Comment 

Agenda Items 

Special Presentation (Special Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.) 
2. Reducing the Digital Divide 

Presentation Presenter: Jason Dixon, Strategic Alliance Community Development 

Resolutions 
Cable Services 

3. Resolution to approve a contract between the City and Filmtools to complete the transition from analog to 
fiber-based broadcasting services in the amount of $149,283.00 

4. Resolution to approve a contract between the City and Comcast Cable to complete the transition from analog 
to fiber-based broadcasting services in the amount of $16,572.87 

5. Resolution to approve a contract between the City and HED to consult on the renovations of the Council 
Chambers/ Studio not to exceed $38,600 

Department of Public Works (DPW) 
6. Resolution to approve the agreement between the City and Asphalt Specialist, Inc. for $2,096,286.00 for the 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 



7. Resolution to approve the City entering into an agreement with Amistee Air Duct Cleaning and Insulation to 
perform air duct cleaning services at all city-owned buildings not to exceed $79,060.00 

8. Resolution to approve the Support Emergency Operations Plan in cooperation with the Oakland County 
Emergency Management and Oakland County Emergency Management Program 

Finance 
9. Resolution to approve hazard pay for DPW essential workers using American Rescue Plan (ARP) funds. 

Communication from the City Attorney 
10. Memorandum regarding Open Meetings Act Obligations regarding Public Comment 

Communication from the City Clerk 
11. Citizen Request to locate a commemorative plague honoring Hubert Price, Jr. within Beaudette Park 

Adjournment 

Upcoming Special Presentation 
September 21, 2021 
Medical Marihuana Application Process Update 



#1 
MINUTES 



August 31, 2021 Formal 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

251 st Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the Bowens Senior 
Center, 52 Bagley Pontiac, MI 48342 on Tuesday, August 31, 2021 at 6:04 p.m. by Council President 
Kermit Williams. 

Invocation - Pastor Kathy 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Members Present - Miller, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 

Mayor Waterman was present. 
A quorum was announced. 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers Carter and Pietila. Moved by Councilperson Miller and 
second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Miller, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
21-265 Motion to defer item # 6 (Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment 
request ZMA 21-04 for parcel #64-17-33-407-035, 036, 037 to amend the current site zoning R-1 
One Family Dwelling to C-1 Local Business) until the first meeting in January 2022. Moved by 
Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Miller 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

21-266 Motion to remove item #4 (Resolution to approve the agreement between the City 
and Dykema Gossett PLLC to serve as the Hearing Officer in accordance with Ordinance 2357 (B) 
City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance. John Fraser, Esq. will serve as the 
primary Hearing Officer at a cost not to exceed $45,000 and authorizes the Mayor to sign the 
agreement. Mr. Fraser was formerly with Grewal Law PLLC) from the agenda, Moved by 
Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

1 



August 31, 2021 Formal 

21-267 Motion to move public comment after subcommittee report. Moved by Councilperson 
Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Miller and Shramski 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

21-268 Motion to approve the agenda as amended. Move by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Shramski. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Miller, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Approval of the Minutes 
21-269 Motion to approve meeting minutes for August 24, 2021. Moved by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Williams, Miller, Shramski, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Subcommittee Report 
Received Department of Public Works (DPW) -August 20, 2021 

Public Comment 
Seven (7) individuals addressed the body during public comment 

Recognition of Elected Officials - None 

Agenda Address - None 

Resolutiion 
Closed Session 
21-270 Resolution from City Attorney and counsel of record that request a closed session 
pursuant to MCL 15.268(e) to discuss pending litigation of Blackwell v City of Pontiac. Moved by 
Councilperson Shramski and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Whereas, the Michigan Open Meetings Act allows a public body to go into closed session to discuss 
specific pending litigation: and 
Whereas, the City Attorney and defense counsel wish to address the City Council on new activity in a 
pending matter; 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Pontiac City Council that it recess into closed session to discuss 
an attorney-client privileged memorandum pending litigation as permitted by the Open Meetings Act at 
MCL 15.268. The City Attorney and counsel ofrecord request a closed session pursuant to MCL 
15.268(e) to discuss pending litigation Blackwell v. City of Pontiac. 

Ayes: Miller, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

2 



August 31, 2021 Formal 

21-271 Motion to come out of Closed Session. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Miller, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

21-272 Motion to proceed according to the recommendation of the defense counsel in the 
case of Charles Blackwell v City of Pontiac. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks 

Resolution 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Department of Public Works - (DPW) 
21-273 Resolution to approve the agreement between the City and Asphalt Specialist, Inc. 
for $395,309.00 for the 2021 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Pontiac Senior 
Centers Parking Lot Replacement Project. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has advertised and received responses to a Request For Proposal for the 
2021 CDBG Pontiac Senior Centers Parking Lot Replacement project on August 5, 2021, and publically 
opened bids; and 
WHEREAS, a bid tabulation was prepared and reviewed, and; 
WHEREAS, the City identified the low bidder as Asphalt Specialists, Inc. (ASI), and references of the 
low bidder checked and found acceptable, and; 
WHEREAS, the funding for the project will be through a Community Development Block Grant in the 
amount of $265,000.00 with the remaining funds identified in the Capital Improvements Fund. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to enter into a 
contract with ASI for $395,309.90 for the 2021 CDBG Pontiac Senior Centers Parking Lot Replacement 
project. 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Miller 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Waterman, Legislative Counsel Sharpe, Interim Clerk Doyle, Councilwoman Waterman, 
Councilwoman Taylor-Burks, Councilwoman Shramski, Councilwoman Miller and Council President 
Williams made closing comments. 

Adjournment 
Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 7:03 p.m. 

Garland Doyle 
Interim City Clerk 

3 



#3 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Council President, and City Council Members 

Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
Phil Brown, Cable Director 

DATE: September 7, 2021 

RE: Condition and Rehabilitation of the Cable System (Infrastructure and Broadcast 

Components) 

Cable Division produces two channels: Government & Public Access 

The City of Pontiac's current cable system is over 20 years old. As such, the existing hardware and 
software are outdated and unable to be updated. We are recommending the current analog system 
be replaced to a tightrope system which is new and advanced. The use of the tightrope system can 

aid in the expansion of the city's media platforms that would allow improved audio and expand media 

formats that can aide in the expansion of the city's cable service which would provide the opportunity 
for more viewership. 

• Current analog system produces low quality broadcasts 
• System has not been updated in over 20 years 
• Existing hardware and software cannot be updated 

• Current wire-based system creates slower broadcasts and uploads 
• Causes poor quality video and audio 
• Causes delays in broadcasting 
• Difficult to troubleshoot problems as they occur 

• Current system does not communicate with newer teclmologies 
• Infrastructure mismatch causes poor quality broadcasts 
• Upgraded technologies allow for use in new applications 

Cable Office recommends as follows to bring our system to the present. 

1. Install new fiber to increase connectivity ( cable tv infrastructure) 
2. Replace Server with new Tightrope 2 channel digital server system 
3. Replace encoder with new encoder 
4. Replace aging broadcast components with new bulletin board software 
5. Monitoring hardware and software for quick troubleshooting and resolution 

The cost of this project be estimated: $169,283.00 

WHEREAS, the current analog cable system the City uses for broadcasts is outdated; and 
WHEREAS, a new fiber-based system will increase quality of broadcasts 
WHEREAS, this will benefit the residents of the City of Pontiac 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council approves contracts with Comcast 
Cable in the amount of $16,572.87, and Filmtools in the amount of $149,283.00 to complete the 
transition from analog to fiber-based broadcasting services, and authorizes the Mayor to execute 
contracts for these transactions. 



tv 
Attachments: Comcast Fiber Optic Install and Filmtools Cable System Upgrade Estimate 



Fi/17Jtoo/S 
1015 North Hollywood Way 
Burbank, CA 91505 
Phone(818)566-9898 

Jon Stilson 

jons@vtpcorp.com 

S.oldTo: 
Company Name: City of Pontiac 

Address: 47450 Woodward Avenue 

Suite#: 

City, State: 

Zip Code 

Country 

Contact: 

Telephone: 

Fax: 
E-mail: 

# QTY 

1 1 

2 1 

3 1 

4 1 

5 1 

6 2 

7 1 

8 2 

Pontiac, Ml 

48342 

USA 

Phillip Brown 

248-758-3000 

pbrown@pontiac.mi.us 

Manufacturer Product 

Broadcast Pix BPS-MX 

Broadcast Pix 806 

Broadcast Pix 800 

Broadcast Pix 786 

Broadcast Pix 968 

Panasonic AW-UE150KPJ 

Tightrope Media 
CBL-VIO4-600 

Systems 

Tightrope Media CBL-VIO4-HA 
Systems 

DATE 4/5/21 
Quotation# SQ-8027188.4 

Quotation valid until: 5/5/21 

Prepared by: Jon Stilson 

Ship To: 

City of Pontiac 

47450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, Ml 

48342 

USA 

Phillip Brown 

248-758-3000 

pbrown@pontiac.mi.us 

Description 
Broadcast Switcher 

MX 8 systems with 8 SDI inputs + 1 external key and 6 
outputs, NewBlue NTX graphics 
PTZ Robotic Camera, control and output over IP 

Camera Control - up to 12 cameras over IP or serial 
(Sony, JVC, Hitachi, Pansasonic, Telemetries, 
Lumens, Vaddio - requires 814 for serial) 

Additional Years support; provides full hardware & 
software support for 12 months, advanced spares 
replacement, telephone support, system upgrades and 
1 year BPNet license 

Mica upgrade Credit 
Upgrade Credit - The old product must be returned to 
fully realize the credit 

PTZ Camera 

Panasonic AW-UE1 SOK UHD 4K 20x PTZ Camera 
(Black) 

Playback Automation System 

4 channel configurable SD/HD SDI encode/decode, 
multi-format server with 1 OTB of usable RAIDS storage 
in a 3 RU chassis. Redundant power. Selectable SD or 
HD SDI with embedded audio. Pulls in RTP, RTMP and 
HLS streams. Includes Cablecast Automation, Video 
and CG server Software. Cablecast CG Player 
Software is optional. Includes graphics, crawl, bug, bug 
text on output. 3 year hardware warranty and 2 hours 
of installation support and training within first year. 

Optional Extended Hardware Support (years 4 and 5) 

Annual hardware assurance contract for the CBL-VIO4-
600. First 3 years are included with the purchase. 
Up to 5 years of hardware assurance is available. Must 
purchase years 4 & 5 before existing assurance 
expires. 

Page 1 of 8 

End User: 

City of Pontiac 

47450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, Ml 

48342 

USA 

Phillip Brown 

248-758-3000 

pbrown@pontiac.mi.us 

Unit Price Extended Price 

18,500.00 18,500.00 

1,395.00 1,395.00 

included 

1,375.00 1,375.00 

-8,000.00 (8,000.00) 

9,995.00 19,990.00 

18,950.00 18,950.00 

1,875.00 3,750,00 



25% discount on years 4 and 5 if purchased with initial 
system purchase. 

VOD Server 

Web centric head end automation system, Carousel 
server software and Cablecast VOD in a 3 RU chassis. 
Streams H.264 HLS Adaptive bitrate VOD to mobile 

9 
Tightrope Media 

CBL-SVR450-VOD-10 devices, OTT and desktops. Redundant power, 1 OTB 
7,250.00 7,250.00 Systems RAIDS Content and 256GB RAID1 OS drives. Includes 

3 year hardware warranty and 2 hours of remote end 
user training and installation support within first 
year. 

Optional Extended Hardware Support (years 4 and 5) 

Annual hardware assurance contract for the Cablecast 
Pro VOD-1 0. First 3 years are included with the 

10 2 
Tightrope Media 

CBL-PROVOD-10-HA 
purchase. 

660.00 1,320.00 Systems Up to 5 years of hardware assurance Is available. Must 
purchase years 4 & 5 before existing assurance 
expires. 

25% discount on years 4 and 5 if purchased with initial 
system purchase. 

Bulletin Board 

Cablecast VIO server hardware with 8TB storage in a 
1 RU chassis configured for CG playout on up to two (2) 

Tightrope Media 
channels. Suitable forthat are not utilizing Cablecast 

11 2 CBL-VIOLITE-CG-SVR Automation or Video Servers. SDI outputs, gen lock 2,550.00 5,100.00 Systems 
input, hardware accelerated graphics. Includes 3 year 
hardware warranty and 2 hours of remote installation 
support and end user training within first year. 

Optional Extended Hardware Support (years 4 and 5) 

Annual hardware assurance contract for the CBL-
VIOLITE-600. First 3 years are Included with the 

12 4 
Tightrope Media 

CBL-VIOLITE-CG-HA 
purchase. 

450.00 1,800.00 Systems Up to 5 years of hardware assurance is available. Must 
purchase years 4 & 5 before existing assurance 
expires. 

25% discount on years 4 and 5 if purchased with initial 
system purchase. 

Cablecast CG bulletin board software for installation in 

13 2 TRMS CBL-CGPLAYER-LIC Cablecast VIO video servers. All bulletin board features 
1,215.00 2,430.00 and native integration with the Cablecast schedule for 

display of "Airs Again On", "Coming up Next" 

Live Streaming Server 

Single channel H.264 HLS adaptive bit-rate live 
streaming server in a 1 RU chassis, integrated into 
Cablecast's user interface and public web interface. 

14 2 
Tightrope Media 

CBL-LIVE-350 Resolution scales to 1080P. Stream is controllable 
2,500.00 5,000.00 Systems through Cablecast and may be disabled on a per show 

basis. Includes 3 year hardware warranty and 1 hour of 
remote installation support and end user training within 
first year. 

Optional Extended Hardware Support (years 4 and 5) 

Annual hardware assurance contract for the CBL-LIVE. 

Tightrope Media 
First 3 years are included with the purchase. 

15 4 CBL-LIVE-350-HA Up to 5 years of hardware assurance is available. Must 210.00 840.00 Systems 
purchase years 4 & 5 before existing assurance 
expires. 

25% discount on years 4 and 5 if purchased with initial 
system purchase. 

VOD and Streaming Service PER YEAR 

Page 2 of 8 



Annual Cloud-based reflection service operating in 
conjunction with both Cablecast Live and Cablecast 
VOD servers that provide a virtually unlimited number 

16 Tightrope Media 
CBL-REFLECT-BND of live and VOD internet video streams while 

1,895.00 1,895.00 Systems conserving your internal bandwidth. Includes up to 3 
streaming channels. 
Requires both Cablecast Live and Cablecast Pro with 
VOD video servers. 

Optional Extended Software Support (years 2 - 5) 

Annual software maintenance contract per 1/0 
(Input/Output). Covers all the software upgrades 

17 16 
Tightrope Media 

CBL-SAS-CH-1YR including major releases at one facility. VIO4 = 4 1/0 
360.00 5,760.00 Systems Software assurance will need to be made current 

before additional years can be purchased. 10% 
discount for multiple year purchases. 

Infrastructure 
Signal Distribution 

18 AJA KUMO-3232-R2 KLIMO 32x32 Compact SDI Router, with 1 power 
2,895.00 2,895.00 supply 

19 AJA KUMO-PWR-R0 KLIMO +12VDC Power Supply, for redundant 
95.00 95.00 operation or spare 

20 AJA KKUMO CP2 2RU Control Panel for all KLIMO routers 725.00 725.00 
21 

22 2 Bitree S64T-1 MWNBK 12G+ MINI-WECO (MIDSIZE) VIDEO PATCHBAY, 
1,300.00 2,600.00 2X32, 2 RU 

23 20 Bitree 24" Patch cords 35.00 700,00 

20-slot openGeal® High Power Frame - 2 Rack Unit 
with Fans and Metal Plates on Rear 1/0 - Includes one 
PS-9000 Power Supply and HPF-FC Network Controller 

24 Cobalt HPF-9000-N Card Orders for 20-slot frames only, without Cobalt 1,499.00 , 1,499.00 
Digital cards, will not be accepted. [Options (sold 
separately) available for this item include: 
PSU-9000, 9000-FSB, SNMP-HPF-FC] 

25 Cobalt PS-9000 Extra (redundant) HPF-9000 frame power supply 459.00 459,00 
26 Cobalt HPF9000-FSB Frame support bracket kit. 50.00 50.00 

Fallover Swich 

3G/HD/SD-SDI / ASI Redundancy Switch allows 
27 2 Cobalt 9121 manual or failover changeover control between two 1,525.00 3,050.00 

SDI or ASI sources to a common SDI or ASI output. 

20-Slot Frame Rear 1/0 Module (Standard Width) Dual 
28 2 Cobalt RM20-9121-B SDI/ASI Input BNCs, Relay SDI/ASI Output BNC, 4 245.00 490.00 

SDI/ASI Reclockable Output BNCs, 2 GPI, 2 GPO 

Multlview Encoder 

3G/HD/SD-SDI/CVBS Quint Split (5) Input Expandable 
Multi-Image Display Processor with Integrated HTML5 

29 Cobalt 9970-QS WebGUI Control and Monitoring, 3G-SDI and HDMI 
2,324.00 2,324.00 outputs, Embedded Audio Routing, User Configurable 

UMDs, Tallies, Labels, Audio Meters, Graticules, 
Timecode, and Metadata displays 

20-Slot Frame Rear 1/0 Module (Standard-Width) (5) 
3G/HD-SD-SDI/CVBS Inputs, (2) 3G/HD/SD-SDI DA 

30 Cobalt RM20-9970-C-DIN Outputs, COMM/GPIO Port (Combined HD-15 208.00 208,00 
connector), HDMI Output, Ethernet Port (all coaxial 
connectors DIN 1.0/2.3) 

Signal Timing and Distribution 

31 Cobalt 9363 Multi-Format Reference Generator with Bi-Level, Tri-
2,335.00 2,335.00 Level, and AES/Word Clock Outputs 

20-Siot Frame Rear 1/0 Module (Standard Width) BNC 

32 Cobalt RM20-9363-A Analog Reference Input or AES/Word Clock Output 
89.00 89.00 (configurable), 4x2 BNC Analog Reference Outputs, 

dedicated AES/Word Clock BNC Output 

33 Cobalt 991 0DA-AV-EQ Analog Video Looping 1 x8 Distribution Amplifier with 
295.00 295.00 EQ 

Page 3 of 8 



20-Slot Frame Rear 1/0 Module (Standard Width) (1) 
34 1 Cobalt RM20-9910AV-B Analog Video Input BNC, (8) Analog DA Output BNCs, 89.00 89.00 

(1) Input Loop Output BNC 

35 2 Cobalt 9501-DCDA-3G Down-Converter/DA with 3G/HD/SD-SDI Input, 
2,175.00 4,350.00 Reclocking, SD-SDI and Analog Video/Audio Outputs 

20-Slot Frame Rear 1/0 Module (Standard Width) (2) 
3G/HD/SD-SDI input BNCs, (2) 3G/HD/SD-SDI 

36 2 Cobalt RM20-9501-B Reclocked Output BNCs, (2) Output BNCs (GUI- 85,00 170.00 
selectable as SD-SDI and/or Analog CVBS), (4) Analog 
Audio Outputs 

Zoom Hibrid Adapter 

HD/SD USB 3.0 Capture Device for 
37 1 AJA U-TAP-SDI-RO Mac/Windows/Linux with 3G-SDI Input, Bus Powered, 325.00 325.00 

No Driver Software Necessary 

Multiview Monitor and edit Monitor 

38 2 Samsung HG40NJ477MFXZA 477 Series 40" Standard Direct-Lit LED Hospitality TV 
420.00 840.00 for Guest Engagement 

UVerse Encoder 

39 1 Niagara 96-03012 8000N-S2; 8000 sex Windows HD encoder with 2 
5,075.00 5,075.00 SDI inputs 

40 3 Niagara 96-INSTALL Niagara hourly service - remote set up and 
135,00 405.00 configuration 

Comcast Encoder 

TBD The City of Pontiac will have to contact their 
41 2 Representative to see what their local Distribution TBD 

Center requires for a SD/HD SDI Encoder. 

Uninterruptable Power Supply 

42 2 cyberpower 13419759 1500VA 1500W SINE WAVE 2U RACK TWR UPS 
675.00 1,350.00 Uninterruptible Power Supply 

43 2 Cyberpower 13419768 EXTENDED TIME BATTERY PACK 485.00 970.00 
Equipment Rack 

44 1 Middle Atlantic MRK-4436LRD MRK SERIES RACK, 44 RU, 36"0, W/0 REAR DOOR 
1,495.00 1,495.00 (FOB) 

45 1 Middle Atlantic SPN-44-36 Pair of Side Panels Fits MRK-4436- Black Finish (FOB) 800.00 800.00 

46 1 Middle Atlantic CBS-MRK-36 Low-rise inner platform style caster base; 1300 lb 
245.00 245,00 capacity 

47 Additional Broadcast Pix training can be purchased 
upon request. 

BOM AND DESIGN TBD 

Service- Install Rack, move any equipment to new rack 
Install all new equipment into rack. Make Cables, 
connect and Configure everything. Clean dust from 
any existing equipment. Create a complete system 

48 1 IC drawing and cable list, training. Install new Broadcast 
12,000.00 12,000,00 Pix configure and test. Run Ethernet cable to and 

install new cameras in Council Chambers. Configure all 
infrastructure equipment for proper signal conversion. 
Work with Cable Companies to ensure proper 
transmission of signal. Includes Cable, Cable 
Management, Connectors, Labels, hardware, feeight, 
travel and expenses. 

, 

SUBTOTAL $ 133,283.00 
Page 4 of 8 



Quotation Comments 

Page 5 of 8 

TAX RATE 

SALES TAX 

SHIPPING 

RECYCLE FEES 

TOTAL 

-
-

$ 133,283.00 



1015 North Hollywood Way 

Burbank, CA 91505 

Phone(818)566-9898 

Purchase-orders should Include: 

. o/S 

Company Name, address, phone, fax, contact email, Bill To / Ship To address, phone, fax, contact email 
Payment Tenns (same as Filmtools quotation) 

Purchase orders and payments are to be addressed to: 

Filmtools 

1015 North Hollywood Way 

Burbank, CA 91505 

Payment Information: 

US Wire Transfer 
Wire and ACH payments 

accepted. 

Regular Mall 
Filmtools 
1015 North Hollywood Way 

Burbank, CA 91505 

DATE 4/5/21 

Quotation # SQ-8027188.4 

Quotation valid until: 5/5/21 
Prepared by: Jon Stilson 

The price quotation above is a binding offer good up and until the expiration date set forth herein, unless earlier withdrawn 
by Filmtools in writing, after which it is subject to change by Fllmtools in its sole discretion. "Filmtools" means the applicable 
Filmtools contracting party under the Agreement. 

By signing below, the customer represents and warrants that the undersigned is a duly authorized representative of customer 
acknowledges that Is has read, understands and confirms acceptance of the terms and conditions of this quote. 

Customer 

CUSTOMER NAME: 

SIGNATURE: 

NAME: 

TITLE: 

DATE: 

TAX EXEMPT? 

D If YES, please attach the appropriate fa-ms 

Page 6 of 8 



Filmtools TERMS & CONDITIONS 

All Filmtools Orders 
Prices quoted by Filmtools are cash discount prices in U.S. Currency for either one, or specific quantities of equipment or package bids, 
and price and availability are subject to change without notice. Prices do not include taxes, delivery, handling charges, export uplifts, 
export fees, or California SBOE Electronic Waste Recycling Fees. Exact cash payment is generally accepted by Filmtools except In large 
dollar amounts for which Filmtools may request payment by cashier's check drawn on a major U.S. Bank or Financial Institution. 
UPS COD delivery service no longer accepts cash payment, and is for cashier's check payment only (see COD section below). 
Filmtools requires a valid sold to name, billing address, and telephone number as a minimum amount of information to record a 
transaction, cash or otherwise and may impose limitation on any order. 

California Electronic Waste Device Recycling Fees 
Fllmtools will charge RECYCLING FEES at the time of sale to comply with the mandatory new California State Electronic Recycling Fee Regulations 
that became effective January 1, 2005 (revised January 1, 2013) for various designated classifications of electronic devices that are considered hazardous 
waste when disposed. The fees are mandatory for sales of these products that are delivered within the State of California and help to offset the cost of the 
state's waste disposal management. Information regarding this program and fees can be found on the State of California Board of Equalization web site at 
www.boe.ca.gov. Currently, the RECYCLING FEES apply to each CRT (video monitor, TV, computer monitor), LCD viewable monitor, TV, or computer 
display, plasma, or laptop with LCD display sold by Filmtools. The amounts are calculated as follows: If the display (or aggregate total of the screens of a 
multi-screen LCD display) Is more than 4 diagonal inches but less than 15 diagonal Inches, $3 for each unit (RECYCLE FEE 1 ); if the display 
(or aggregate total of the screens of a multi-screen LCD display) is more than 15 diagonal inches but less than 35 diagonal inches, $4 for each unit 
(RECYCLE FEE 2); if the display (or aggregate total of the screens of a multi-screen LCD display unit) is more than 35 diagonal inches, $5 for each unit 
(RECYCLE FEE 3 ). These fees will appear on your Filmtools invoice and are not subject to tax. Among the devices currently considered exempt are 
oscilloscopes. The classifications of devices and the corresponding fees is subject to change and amendment by the State of California without notice. 

COD, Payment by Cashier's Check 
Cashier's Checks drawn against major banks in the United States made payable to Filmtools are generally the accepted form of 
payment on COD cash orders to accounts who have applied to Filmtools and who have been approved for COD cash terms, provided that photo driver's 
license identification is presented upon delivery. Money orders and other Company, Bank, or Personal Checks are not accepted on COD Cash orders 
except for established Filmtools accounts with Credit (Net) Terms and Filmtoois Credit approval for each order. All COD delivery orders, If accepted, will include 
any applicable local carrier charge such as from UPS, or a local delivery charge from Filmtools based upon local delivery by Filmtools truck 
(available for Los Angeles, Santa Monica, Hollywood, Burbank, and Metro LA Area). A non-refundable deposit may apply to out of state or out of area 
delivery, large quantities, large dollar amounts, or on special order items not normally stocked at Fllmtools. Filmtools may specifically limit the 
acceptance of COD orders with other terms and conditions that may pertain to the sale. 

Deposits 
A non-refundable cash or pre-pay check or money order deposit generally applies to large quantities, large dollar amounts, or on special order items not 
normally stocked at Filmtools. Visa, MasterCard, and American Express Credit Cards may not be used to pay for deposits. Your deposit 
should be paid well enough in advance of attempting to place an order so that your funds will have time to clear your bank. Depending on your bank, 
this may take from 3 to 5 working days or more. 

Handling Charges and Payment by Visa, MasterCard, & American Express 
A 2.75% handling charge (loss of cash discount) of the total order amount including shipping and tax will apply for payment by Visa, MasterCard, 
or American Express credit card for normally stocked items. No other credit cards are accepted by Filmtools. This handling charge may not be waived 
except for Government Credit Cards. You will need to sign a Filmtools Credit Card Authorization form specifically for your order, prior to your order's 
acceptance, unless your order.is for a normally stocked item and you have presented your card to will-call and signed a credit card sales draft or Filmtools 
order form. You must be the cardholder and you may be asked to provide appropriate proof. This written authorization may apply to the use of your credit 
card to charge for merchandise, delivery, applicable taxes, handling fees, and other charges. Handling and/or other charges for delivery may apply as may 
be quoted by Filmtoois for such reasons as Inbound freight, oversize, rush orders, heavy, and large quantities. You will not receive credit for the 4% handling 
charge or delivery charge of your order applied by you on your credit card for any of the following: approved deposits, canceled orders, refused order 
delivery, or inbound freight charges (if applicable), or even if you later pay your order by cash or cashier's check. 

Payment or Company Check 
If you do not have an established terms account with Filmtools, prepayment on a company or personal check is acceptable, 
if you allow for sufficient time for Filmtools to deposit and clear funds from your check. If you are paying by personal or company check, 
you will be asked to show a valid driver's license and allow us to verify the pending transaction prior to release of merchandise. For personal checks, 
the driver's license and the person that is accepting delivery must match the name on the check. Handling and/or other charges for delivery may always 
apply as may be quoted for such reasons as inbound freight, oversize, rush orders, heavy, and large quantities. 

Page 7 of 8 



Standard Manufacturer's Warrant & 20% Restocking Fee 
Standard Manufacturer's Limited Warranty applies to all items. This Limited Warranty is significantly different on most items, even on similar items from 
the same Manufacturer. On some items, you may be able to purchase extended limited warranties and service agreements through Filmtools. 
Standard Manufacturer's Limited Warranty is generally Depot Manufacturer USA. No other warranty is expressed or implied by Filmtools. 
If you have paid by credit card, your Warranty may be augmented under certain conditions by the Credit Card Company who issued you your card. 
Filmtools is not part of or bound by any such agreement, and Filmtools offers no suitability of performance guarantee nor Filmtools warranty of 
merchandise, including but not limited to tape and tape format compatibility between products and manufacturers. In the event new, opened box, or 
unopened box, or damaged merchandise purchased from Filmtools is authorized to be accepted for return credit by Filmtools, you will be given a 
Filmtools return authorization number which should be attached to your merchandise for processing . This number is a Filmtools number, and 
is not a Manufacturer number. Manufacturers are NOT authorized to grant return authorizations for Filmtools even If for whatever reason you have gotten a 
Manufacturer return authorization number yourself (i.e., obtaining a Manufacturer number does not constitute the issuance of a return authorization 
number from Filmtools). Please be aware that a minimum restocking fee of 20% generally applies to all accepted returns, regardless of the reason for the 
return, as may be granted directly by Filmtools by the Manufacturer to take product back by the additional written authorization 
as may be granted by Filmtools. Proof of purchase to obtain a factory depot limited warranty authorized service from the manufacturer or any other 
factory authorized repair center is required. 

Applying for Net Terms or Changing Terms with Filmtools 
Generally, you may not change payment terms with Filmtools on any individual order once it has been placed. Prior to order, 
you may apply to establish (or to increase your available credit line) a Terms Account with Filmtools, provided that you fill out current 
applicable information on our Credit Application and return it to us by FAX, and the original by delivery or mail. Please allow us at least 2-3 
weeks to review your application and to notify you of our decision. If approved by Filmtools, Net Accounts are generally established for Net 30 
day payment, however, based upon your application, COD Terms may also be approved for payment by personal or company check upon delivery or 
will-call pickup. Hard copy Purchase orders with applicable billing contact and ship to information are generally required for first time Net Terms Accounts. 
Fax purchase orders are generally accepted for established current accounts. 

Filmtools Product Lines 
Filmtools may choose to restrict its own representation, demonstration, sales and/or delivery of certain Manufacturer products within certain 
geographic territories and business locations. Certain Products such as from Panasonic Broadcast and Sony CineAlta Broadcast have special ordering 
processes with special Manufacturer Terms & Conditions that apply to both you and any funding source you may have. Please refer to our About Us 
and Line Card sections of our web site or contact us for additional information. All products considered "in stock" at Filmtools or otherwise 
"orderable items" are subject to availability at any time from t_he Manufacturer. 

Will Call Pickup 
Please check with the Sales Department about the status of your order and the locations and hours of will-call pickup prior to arriving (will-call is 
only available when pre-arranged with Filmtools). Generally, the minimum time between a confirmed telephone order for will-call for a stocked item and your 
order being available for pickup varies, with a minimum time of approximately 1 hour for internal processing. If you are given an order number, please 
reference that number when you arrive in will-call. If you may wish to purchase something in addition to your order upon a will-call visit, please contact 
the Sales Department prior to your pick up to place a new order and/or discuss what additional items may be stocked or not stocked, what pricing may 
apply, and what payment terms may apply. Please see each section of these Terms as they may apply to your method of payment. 

Delievery & Order Turnaround 
Standard delivery is UPS ground. Within certain UPS zones, delivery may be next day, two day, or up to 5 days 
between zones. Filmtools also uses the services of Federal Express for out of area customer shipments. Normal order turnaround is a 24 hours for stock 
items not including delivery, and from 1-2 weeks or more for Manufacturer stock items not including delivery. Special order items can take up to 6 weeks or 
more plus delivery. Rush orders are generally not accepted except for established accounts with Filmtools and require special handling charges. Los 
Los Angeles area customers may receive product delivery in_ Filmtools trucks or other common freight carriers, however, shipment and delivery method generally 
remains at the discretion of Filmtools. Filmtools truck delivery is considered taxable, and the amounts charged vary, depending on the product to be shipped, the 
ship to location, time of delivery, Inside delivery (if applicable), or any delivery special handling that may have to occur. Filmtools may authorize the use of 
recipient Federal Express numbers if such requests are made at the time of order. Stock items at Filmtools are considered FOB Filmtools Burbank, 
California. Non-stock items may be considered FOB Manufacturer warehouse location. Filmtools does not drop ship orders out of Manufacturer inventory except 
under special, pre-arranged circumstances with the added pre-approval of both Filmtools and the Manufacturer. 

Partial Shipments 
Flimtools generally ships all orders complete (i.e., all items on an order) with one delivery, unless it is not practical for Filmtools to do so due to 
backordered items or the size of an order. Partial shipments may be requested, provided that payment for and arrangements for separate delivery are 
made and confirmed with Filmtools in advance of all shipments. 

Demo & Used Equipment 
No product rentals or loaner equipment is available for backordered items. Used equipment (Including equipment Fllmtools may use for product demonstration 
purposes) may be available for purchase from time to time on specific models and from specific manufacturers at special pricing with limited or no 
warranty (as is). Filmtools does not accept equipment for trade in or consignment. 

Page 8 of 8 



COMCAST AT&T UVERSE The City of Pontiac 



#4 
RESOLUTION 



COMCAST 

Customer 

Comcast Cable 
25626 Telegraph Rd. 
Southfield, MI 48033 

Name City of Pontiac - PontiacTV 
Address 47450 Woodward Avenue 
City Pontiac State Ml ZIP 48342 --
Phone 248.758.3000 

Qty Description 
1 Project Design & Labor 
1 Project Material 

QUOTE 

Date 
Order No. 
Rep 
FOB 

Unit Price 
$13,052.04 

$3,520.83 

Subtotal 
Shipping & Handling 

Sales Tax 

TOTAL 

I Office Use Only 

4/9/2019 

David Flint 
Ml 

TOTAL 
$13,052.04 

$3,520.83 

$16,572.87 

$16 572.87 

Payment required before work can begin. 

YTVW ~ 



#5 

RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Council President, and City Council Members 

Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
Phil Brown, Cable Director 

DATE: August 31, 2021 

RE: 
Cable Division produces two channels: Government & Public Access 

The city broadcast local meetings including city council meetings on the cable channel, known as 
the Public, Educational and Government Access Channel. (PEG) Therefore, the city is entitled to a 
1 % access fee for these broadcast. 
The City of Pontiac is seeking to renovate the existing City Council Chambers to support being 
used as a Cable Studio/Council Chambers. PEG funds will contribute to this upgrade as that is an 
allowable use for technology. The environment will require several altercations/upgrades. The 
current cable system and infrastructure is over twenty (20) years old. 
We are recommending the current space be updated to accommodate city council meetings, other 
city meetings, and become a multi-use studio. The new look to the council chambers/studio can 
provide a contemporary look while maximizing the space that can aide in the expansion of the 
city's cable services which would provide the opportunity for more viewership and better viewer 
quality. 
Media Services has consulted with HED Services and other city staff regarding the proposed 
structuring and design of the City Council Chambers/Cable Studio. Once City Council has 
approved the HED proposal, necessary steps can take place to remove existing flooring and install 
new modular carpet tile, install new AV Technology with a new acoustic system and LED TV 
displays and new lighting. Existing fire-suppression and doors shall remain. HED has provided a 
scope of work to include initial planning, design and construction. 

• Current council chambers 
• Has not been updated in twenty years 
• Existing is requiring new upgrade and upgraded technology 

Cable Office recommends as follows to bring our system to the present. 

1. Consult with HED - Prior Consultation has taken place 
2. Determine use of Council Chambers/ Studio 
3. Determine materials for the new Council Chambers I Studio 
4. Cost of changes 
5. Timeline of Project 

WHEREAS, the current Council Chambers the City uses for broadcasts is outdated; and 
WHEREAS, a new modern look will increase quality of acoustics, broadcasts; and 
WHEREAS, this will benefit the residents of the City of Pontiac with better quality viewing, , 

upgraded sound technology and an overal more modernized city 
council chambers. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council approves to consult with HED and 
complete the plans for the Council Chambers/Studio, and authorizes the Mayor to execute contracts 
with HED for these upgrades. 

tv 
Attachments: HED scope of work 



llo:,iull 

1:llic;H/n 

UnlL1:: 

:;.ill fJiH!)ll 

:;:111 h,1111:i::i:11 

')li!J l'.l Nn1Ilitivn:,\n111 Hwv. 

S1ii1.£1 '.IIJll 

So11tliliold, Ml 1lHl1J:: 

I :i,rn ?n?.1~,flO 

?ill!, ?lit. l !, l!, 

August 13th 2021 

Vern Gustafsson 
Planning & Development Manager I Planning Division 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue I Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Subject: Council Chambers Renovation 

Project No. 2020-06882-000 

Dear Vern, 

Thank you for the formal project information you issued to us on August 2nd, 2021. With 

this information and the tour that we had on Tuesday (August 8th 2021) with Tracy 

Sweeney, Phil Brown and the Mayor's partial attendance - the HED team understands the 

scope of renovation and our services to be as follows respectively: 

Conceptual Renovation Summary: 
The City of Pontiac is seeking to renovate the existing Council Chambers in the City of 

Pontiac to support being used as a Cable Studio/ Council Chambers. There are two critical 
path items that affect the project's delivery. The first item is the exact construction 
technique of the raised platform and the second is the COP's attitude toward the question 
of whether this space is a Council Chambers first and a Studio and Multi-functional space 
second or vic&-versa. 

The environment will require several alterations and/or upgrades to perform as a Cable 

Studio. 

• All existing flooring will be removed and a new modular carpet tile to be installed. 

• Ceiling System to be removed and a new high-performance acoustic lay-in system to 

be installed. Accompanying the ceiling modification would be review of existing duct 

work to ensure air tightness and seals and spot check of roof about for any non

destructive sign of water infiltration (we recommend that this review be performed by 

the city's roofing contractor as well). This acoustic improvement will help improve the 

sound quality of the space for future cable captures. 

• Install new AV technology ranging from new in-ceiling room speakers, flat panel LED 

TV displays on Council's flanking walls and a seamless 2x2 unit flat panel LED display 

system on the left when entering the room. This setup would help provide a clear 

screen system for the multi-purpose events that would be hosted in this new room. 

We discussed the possibility of also adding two flanking flat panel LED displays at the 

front of the room upon entry (these could be deleted should the Council be equipped 

with local monitors at the desk. 

• New lighting to be provided though out the room. The lighting will be controlled to help 

adjust for the Cable Studio capture. The light concept needs to provide functional 

lighting for the variety of events that might be hosted in the room. 

• The Platform and Council Desk: we discussed the opportunity to remove the entire 

raised council platform/ remove just the front bowed edge/ or leave in place - all of 

which would have the knee wall separation removed. These options will need to be 



Vern Gustafsson 
Planning & Development Manager I Planning Division 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue I Pontiac, Ml 48342 
August 131

\ 2021 

studied and presented to the city for goal/objective alignment. HED has recommended 

that COP/DPW remove a small portion of the existing concrete platform in effort to 

assess whether the concrete was poured in place as one or two pours. This condition 

will affect the option selection above. Once this work is complete HED will provide a 

decision drawing that communicated the potential options for the floor/ planning of 

this space. An option will need to be selected be fore HED can move forward. The 

existing painted wood wall panels are in decent condition. New paint/repair specs and 

acoustic treatment will be installed. Based upon the final floor options - a new panel 

desk setting should be designed and built to meet the required needs of both the 

council and other potential uses. Technology (mic/inputs/screens) should be planned 

and integrated into the final solution.* 

• Existing fire-suppression should be able to remain as is. 

• Existing doors are to remain as is. 

• Consider replacement of existing plexi-glass storm window on the interior of the 

window openings to be removed and new systems installed. It was mentioned that 

the city has received bids for window replacement in the past - but the council chose 

to hold on the work - It may make sense to reprice for only the council chamber 

windows while the space is under construction and not in use. 

* Please note that the impact of COVID is not longer the main focus of the Chamber 

renovation. HED's design team will continue to consider alternatives that provide for a 

COVID response - most specifically "Social Distancing" in the series of options (maximum 

3 options) 

Scope of HED Services: 
Initial Planning: (3 weeks) 
The HED team will provide site review to gather additional layout/room features that pertain 

to the new scope. This will not include existing elements that are behind the layer of the 

existing fore most construction. Upon completion of this effort and with information made 

visible from the Task 1 above, HED will generate a decision package that illustrates two or 

three planning options for the City of Pontiac stakeholder team review and decide the 

selected plan option to be the basis of the Schematic Design phase. 

Schematic Design: (2 weeks + 1 week of estimating) 
Upon solution selection - HED's design and technical team will develop final design 

planning, finish palettes (one preliminary package with one revision), ceiling designs and 

power plans. This package can be submitted a to General Contractor for preliminary pricing. 

This phase includes (1) minor revision. 

Construction Documents: (4 weeks) 
Upon approval of the SD package and estimate, HED will complete construction documents 

and on drawings specifications for the Architectural and Electrical portions of the 

renovations. 

Assumptions: 

• City of Pontiac is responsible for providing HED all AV/IT requirements and cut-sheets 

• City of Pontiac is responsible to make decisions in keeping with the above durations 



Vern Gustafsson 
Planning & Development Manager I Planning Division 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue I Pontiac, Ml 48342 
August 13th

, 2021 

• Additional design edits, above the iterations listed about, will be delivered through an 

additional Design Service Request. 

• The current budget for the project is $700,000. This budget is preliminary, HED will 

make a list of potential edits and features, for COP GC estimation. All value 

engineering will be made upon completion of the SD phase and prior to beginning the 

CD phase. 

• HVAC alterations are not included in this scope. 

• This scope does not include any structural modifications to the building. 

• HED will provide (1) rendering for the project and this will be delivered in the SD phase. 

• HED is not responsible for any existing hazardous materials in the existing space. 

Fee Schedule: 
Staff Member 

Initial Planning 
Project Management 

Architecture 

Electrical Engineering 

Schematic Design 
Project Management 

Architecture 

Electrical Engineering 

Construction Documentation 
Project Management 

Architecture 

Electrical Engineering 

Total Fee 

Estimated Hours 

12 

44 

8 

8 

50 

12 

12 

60 

44 

Fee 

$9,400 

$10,800 

$18,400 

$38,600 

HED Contract Administration of the A/E work to be billed on an as needed basis on a Time 

and Material agreement. 

We hope this description of project scope and A/E services to complete the renovation 

project meet your expectations. 

,-\ ~.I 
Qpt,--

Studio Leader 

HED 

586-899-4 7 48 

tgawel@hed.design 



#6 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

FROM: Abdul H. Siddiqui, City Engineer 

DATE: September 7, 2021 

RE: 2021 Local Street Improvement Project - Asphalt Specialists, Inc. 

The City of Pontiac received and publicly opened bids for the referenced improvement 
project on Thursday, August 26, 2021. The project consists of four parts: 

• Part A: Local Streets Rehabilitation: Asphalt mill and fill of multiple local 

streets throughout the City. Local Street Fund (Construction Account) 

• Part B: West Columbia Rehabilitation: Asphalt overlay of W Columbia from 

Baldwin to Starlite. Major Street Fund (Construction Account) 

• Part C: Woodward Avenue Pavement Repair: Asphalt mill and fill of small 

section of new pavement damaged by 2019 Roadkill Nights activities. This is 

required by MDOT and will be reimbursed by the organizers of Roadkill Nights. 

• Part D: Local Streets Pavement Repair: Asphalt repair of short segments of 

multiple local streets. Local Street Fund (Maintenance Account) 

A total of seven (7) bids were received for the project in the amounts as follows: 

1. Asphalt Specialists, Inc. (ASI) $2,096,286.00 

2. Florence Cement $2,319,581.00 

3. Hutch Paving $2,369,729.30 

4. Pro-Line Asphalt $2,414,284.31 

5. Cadillac Asphalt, LLC. $2,446,862.87 

6. Ajax $2,718,342.53 

7. Pamar Enterprises $2,762,127.96 

The Engineering Division has reviewed the proposals and references submitted by all 
contractors and based on the attached is recommending the award to the low bidder, ASL 

Construction is anticipated to start in late September and continue until end of July 2022. 

Funding for the project has been identified in the 21-22 Local Street Fund and 21-22 Major 
Street Fund. 

Based upon the above information, it is recommendation of the Department of Public 
Works that the 2021 Local Street Improvement Project be awarded to ASI, in the amount 
of $2,096,286.00. 



WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

the City of Pontiac has advertised and received responses to a 
Request For Proposal for the 2021 Local Street Improvement Project 
on August 26, 2021, and publically opened bids; and 

a bid tabulation was prepared and reviewed, and; 

the City identified the low bidder as Asphalt Specialists, Inc. (ASI), 
and references of the low bidder checked and found acceptable, and; 

BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to enter into a 
contract with ASI for $2,096,286.00 for the 2021 Local Street 
Improvement Project. 



AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this ____ day of ________ ~ 20_, by and 

between the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, party of the first part, hereafter 

called the City, and Asphalt Specialists, Inc, 

hereinafter called the Contractor: 

, party of the second part, 

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter 
mentioned: 

1. The CONTRACTOR shall commence and complete the construction of: 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 

in full conformance with the Contract Documents as enumerated in Article 6 of this Agreement. 

2. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all of the material, supplies, tools, equipment, labor 
and other services necessary for the construction and completion of the PROJECT described 
herein, excepting those things which are specifically stipulated in the contract documents to be 
furnished or done by the City. 

3. The CONTRACTOR shall commence the work required by the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS on or before the date stipulated in the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete 
the same on or before July 31, 2022. Time shall be considered to be of the essence of this 
Contract. 

4. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all of the WORK described in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS and comply with the terms therein for the contract price of: 

$ 2,096,286.00 

unless the contract price is duly changed by the contract documents. 

5. The CITY shall pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times as set forth 
in the General Conditions such amounts as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

6. The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" means and includes the following: 

A. AGREEMENT 

B. BIDBOND 

C. PERFORMANCEBOND 

D. LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND 

24 Agreement 
Page I of4 



E. MAINTENANCE BOND 

F. CHANGE ORDER (Pursuant to General Conditions, Section 9) 

G. ADDENDA: 

No. __ , dated. _____ _,, 20 __ 

No. __ , dated _____ _, 20 __ 

No. __ , dated _____ _, 20 __ 

H. ADVERTISEMENT 

I. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

J. BIDDER'S PROPOSAL (Incl. final Compliance Plan as accepted by OWNER) 

K. GENERAL CONDITIONS (Incl. SUPPLEMENT AL GENERAL CONDITIONS 
and SPECIAL CONDITIONS (if any)) 

L. SPECIFICATIONS (Incl. SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS and SPECIAL 
PROVISIONS (if any)) 

M. PLANS (As listed in Schedule of Drawings) 

N. NOTICE OF AW ARD 

0. NOTICE TO PROCEED 

This agreement, together with other documents enumerated in this ARTICLE 6, which 
said other documents are as fully a part of the Contract as if hereto attached or herein repeated, 
forms the Contract between the parties hereto. In the event that any provision in any component 
part of this Contract conflicts with any provision of any other component part, the provision of 
the component part first enumerated in this ARTICLE 6 shall govern, except as otherwise 
specifically stated. 

7. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their 
duly authorized officials, this Agreement in four ( 4) copies, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, on the date first above written. 

25 Agreement 
Page 2 of4 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PONTIAC 
AND CONTRACTOR 

2021 LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

CONTRACTOR: ASPHALT SPECIALISTS, INC. 

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this agreement the day and year last written below. 

WITNESSES: 

1) 

2) 

By: ____________ _ 

Its: ____________ _ 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

WITNESSES: 

1) 

2) 

WITNESSES: 

1) 

2) 

WITNESSES: 

1) 

2) 

WITNESSES: 

1) 

2) 

Approved as to form: 

By:--------------
______ , City Attorney 

26 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

By: ____________ _ 

Allen Cooley 
Its: Acting Director 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

Date 

By: ____________ _ 

Darin Carrington 
Its: Finance Director 

RISK MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

Date 

By: ____________ _ 

Date 
Its: Risk Management Administrator 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

By: ____________ _ 

Dierdre Waterman 
Its: Mayor 

Date 

Agreement 
Page 3 of4 



SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

FOR 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
ENGINEERING DIVISION 

2021 LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

BIDS DUE: 
Thursday, August 26, 2021 
2:00 pm. 
City Clerks Office 
Pontiac City Hall 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

ENGINEER 

PRE-BID MEETING: 

Meeting details will be issued 
in Addendum 1 

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS 
46777 WOODWARD A VENUE 

PONTIAC, MI 48342 
(248) 332-7931 

NFE Job No. Ml43 



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
2021 LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Advertisement 

Instructions to Bidder 
1. Proposals to be Received 
2. Location of the Work 
3. Inspection of the Site 
4. Conformity to Plans, Specifications and other Contract Documents 
5. Basis on which Proposals are Solicited 
6. Form of Proposals 
7. Legal Status of Bidder 
8. Agency 
9. Bid Deposit 
10. INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
11. Statement of Bidder's Qualifications 
12. Payments 
13. Time of Completion 
14. Right to Accept, to Reject and to Waive Defects 
15. A ward of Contract 
16. Obligation to Execute Contract 
17. Bonds 
18. Indemnification and Insurance 
19. City Income Tax 
20. Pre-Bid Meeting 
21. City of Pontiac - Purchasing Ordinance 

Sample Insurance Certificate 

Bid Forms 
1. Form of Proposal (7 Pages) 
2. INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Agreement and Bonds 
1. Bid Bond (Form) (2 Pages) 
2. Agreement (Form) (4 Pages) 
3. Bond for Faithful Performance (Form) 
4. Labor and Materials Bond to the City of Pontiac, Michigan (Form) 
5. Maintenance Bond (Form) 

PAGE 

1 

3 
3 
3 
3 
4 

4-5 
6 
6 
6 

6,7 
7 
7 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
9 

9,10 
10,11 

11 
11 

12 

13-16 
17-18a 

19,20 . 
21-24 
25,26 
27,28 
29,30 



TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 

General Conditions 
1. Definitions 
2. Plans and Specifications 
3. Shop Drawings 
4. Materials and Workmanship 
5. Superintendence by Contractor 
6. Engineering Supervision 
7. City's Right to Complete; Suspension or Termination 
8. Assignment of Contract 
9. Extra Work and Modification 
10. Disputed Claims for Extra Compensation 
11. Extension of Time 
12. Liquidated Damages 
13. Payments to the Contractor 
14. Warranty Maintenance 
15. Michigan Non-Discrimination Statute 
16. Labor Laws and Ordinances; Affirmative Action 
17. Patents, Patent Rights and Trademarks 
18. Work within Railroad, Private, State or County Right-of-Way 
19. Protection and Safety 
20. Cleaning Up 
21. Progress Schedule 
22. Contractor's Declaration 
23. Contractor's Affidavit 

Notices to Bidders, Specifications and Special Provisions, Log of Test Bores 

ii 

PAGE 

31-52 
32-34 
34,35 

35 
36 

37,38 
38,39 

39 
39,40 
40,41 

41 
41,42 

42 
42-44 
44,45 

45 
45 
45 
45 

46-49 
49 

49,50 
51 
52 

74 Pages 



Notice to Contractors 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

Sealed proposals will be received at the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue, 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342, until 2:00 p.m., local time, Thursday, August 26, 2021, at which time the 
bids will be publicly opened and read by the Clerk and the amounts of the bids noted for the: 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 

The estimated quantities involved in this work consist principally of the following: 

Description 
HMA Surface, Rem 
Cold Milling Cone Pavt 
Subgrade Undercutting, 2 lAA 
Aggregate Base, 8 inch 
HMA, 5E3 
HMA,4E3 
Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Cone, 8 inch 
Curb and Gutter, Det F4 
Sidewalk, Cone, 4 inch 
Driveway, Nonreinf Cone, 6 inch 
Dr Structure, Adj, Case 1 
Hand Patching 

38,450 SYD 
6,900 SYD 
1,949 CYD 
3,940 SYD 
7,720 TON 
882 TON 
3,275 SYD 
1,279 LF 
2,619 SFT 
292 SYD 
146 EA 
1,400 TON 

A mandatory pre-bid meeting will be scheduled through Addendum 1. Contract requirements and 
technical specifications will be discussed in said meeting and it is mandatory that all prospective bidders 
attend. 

A certified check or a satisfactory surety bid bond for a sum not less than five (5) percent of the amount 
of the proposal will be required with each proposal as a guarantee of good faith and same to be subject to 
the conditions stipulated in the Instructions to Bidders. 

The bidder will be required to comply with Michigan statutory prohibitions against discrimination in 
employment and with employment opportunities for City of Pontiac residents. 

No proposal once submitted may be withdrawn for at least 90 days after the actual opening of the bids. 
The right to accept any proposal, to reject any or all proposals, and to waive defects in proposals, is 
reserved by the City. 

BY THE ORDER OF: 
DIERDRE WATERMAN, MAYOR 
CITY OF PONTIAC 

DAN RINGO, DPW ADMINISTRATOR 
CITY OF PONTIAC 

1 



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

INDEX 

Article 

1. Proposal to be Received 

2. Location of the Work 

3. Inspection of the Site 

4. Conformity to Plans, Specifications and Other Contract Documents 

5. Basis on which Proposals are Solicited 

6. Form of Proposal 

7. Legal Status of Bidder 

8. Agency 

9. Bid Deposit 

10. INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

11. Statement of Bidder's Qualifications 

12. Payments 

13. Time of Completion 

14. Right to Accept, to Reject, and to Waive Defects 

15. A ward of Contract 

16. Obligation to Execute Contract 

17. Bonds 

18. Insurance 

19. City Taxes 

20. Pre-Bid Meeting 

21. Purchasing Ordinance 

22. Non-Discrimination Provision 

2 



INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS 

1. PROPOSALS TO BE RECEIVED 

Sealed Bids or proposals for the: 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 

will be received at the office of the City Clerk of the City of Pontiac, Michigan until 2:00 
p.m., local time, Thursday, August 26, 2021 and immediately thereafter will be publicly 
opened and read. 

Each BID must be submitted in a sealed envelope, addressed to the City Clerk of the City 
of Pontiac. Each sealed envelope containing a BID must be plainly marked on the outside as: 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 

and the envelope should bear on the outside the name of the BIDDER, his address, his 
license number (if applicable) and the name of the project for which the BID is submitted. If 
forwarded by mail, the sealed envelope containing the BID must be enclosed in another 
envelope addressed to the City Clerk, City of Pontiac, 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, MI 
48342. 

Bids will be received during regular business hours at the place and up to the time stated 
in the Advertisement or up to the time extended by official notification. Bids may be 
delivered in person or mailed, but their delivery is the bidder's entire responsibility. Any bid 
received after the stated hour, even through the mail, will be returned unopened to the bidder. 

No bidder may withdraw a bid within 90 days after the actual date of the opening 
thereof. Should there be reason why the contract cannot be awarded within the specified 
period, the time may be extended by mutual agreement between the City of Pontiac, herein 
after also referred to as the City, and the BIDDER. 

2. LOCATION OF THE WORK 

Cherry Hill Drive, Fairmount Avenue, Starlight Lane, Woodward Avenue (BL-75), 
Grandville Court, Bynan Lane / Gambrell Drive, Omar Street, Granada Drive, Russell / 
Whittemore Street Intersection, S. Merrimac Street, St. Clair Street, and W. Columbia 
Avenue in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan 

3. INSPECTION OF THE SITE 

It is expected that each bidder will make a personal examination of the entire site of the 
proposed work and of its sunoundings. It will be assumed that each bidder, before offering 
their proposal, has obtained firsthand information concerning any probable interference and 
the available facilities for transporting, handling, and storing construction equipment and 
materials, and concerning other conditions which may affect his work. 

3 



4. CONFORMITY TO PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

Proposals must be made in full conformity to all the conditions as set forth in the Plans, 
Specifications, and any Addendum for the work now on file in the office of the City 
Engineer. The CONTRACT DOCUMENTS contain the provisions required for the 
construction of the PROJECT. Information obtained from an officer, agent, or employee of 
the City or any other person shall not affect the risks or obligations assumed by the 
CONTRACTOR or relieve him from fulfilling any of the conditions of the contract. 

Each BIDDER is responsible for inspecting the site and for reading and being thoroughly 
familiar with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The failure or omission of any BIDDER to 
do any of the foregoing shall in no way relieve any BIDDER from any obligation in respect 
to his BID. 

5. BASIS ON WHICH PROPOSALS ARE SOLICITED 

A. PROPOSAL SOLICITATION 

Proposals may be solicited on the basis of unit prices, lump sum, or a combination of 
both. The proposal will clearly state which basis is used. 

The lump sum price, when applied to the project, or the unit prices, when applied to the 
several demolition or salvage items, are to make up the total price for the entire work, 
exclusive of those things which are to be done or furnished by the City, finished and 
complete in every particular, according to the Plans and Specifications appertaining to such 
work, which have been approved by the City Council and are now on file in the office of the 
City Engineer. 

Where Proposals are solicited on the basis of unit prices for certain construction units, 
which are clearly set forth in the Form of Proposal, the Bidder shall state a unit price for each 
and every item listed in the Proposal and such prices shall be extended and totaled. If during 
the review of the Proposals, the City finds any errors in any extension or total; the City will 
make the necessary corrections and award the Contract on the basis of such c01Tections, since 
the unit prices shall govern. Any proposal which does not contain a unit price for each item 
listed will be deemed incomplete and will not be considered in the award of the Contract. 

The unit price for each of the several items in the Proposal shall be such that the whole of 
the unit prices will represent a balanced bid. Any Proposal, in which the unit prices bid for 
any of the several items are deemed by the City to be manifestly unbalanced, will be subject 
to instant rejection. 

B. STATEMENT OF QUANTITIES 

The quantities indicated in the proposal show the Engineer's estimate of the construction 
quantities involved in the job, and bids will be computed, tested, and compared by the 
quantities given in the proposal. Although estimated carefully an_d with as much accuracy as 
is practicable beforehand, these quantities are not to be taken as defining or limiting the 
amount of work to be done under the Contract, but rather as information furnished to bidders 
concerning the approximate extent of the several items and as a basis for comparing bids. 

4 



The City may increase or decrease the original contract price without renegotiation of the 
Unit Prices. 

C. MATERIALS TO BE FURNISHED BY THE CITY 

The City will furnish to the Contractor, delivered at the site: NONE . The Contractor 
will receive and be responsible for all these materials from the time of their delivery to him 
until the time when they are received back by the City as part of the completed and accepted 
structure. 

D. EXTRA WORK 

All extra work that may be required of the Contractor will be estimated and paid for 
under provisions of the General Conditions, contained within this document, which govern 
such work. 

E. ALTERNATES 

When the Proposal so provides, a price shall be stated for each listed alternate. 
Unsolicited alternates are not to be submitted and, if so, will not be considered in the award 
of the Contract and may cause the entire bid to be rejected. 

Selection of whether to award the Contract on the basis of the Base Bid or utilizing one 
or more of the Alternates will be made on the basis of value engineering and the City's need 
to keep project costs within the project budget. The City reserves full right to make this 
selection. After making such selection, the award shall be made on the basis of the lowest 
responsive bid utilizing the Alternates selected, and evaluated in accordance with the 
provisions of the Purchasing Ordinance of the City, in accordance with Article 15 of the 
Instructions to Bidders. 

F. LEGAL CONDITIONS 

All applicable laws, ordinances, and the rules and regulations of all authorities having 
jurisdiction over construction of the Project shall apply to the contract throughout. 

G. PERMITS AND LICENSES 

Permits and licenses of a temporary nature necessary for the prosecution of the WORK 
shall be secured and paid for by the CONTRACTOR unless otherwise stated in the 
SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS. 

H. UTILITIES 

Unless otherwise provided in these Specifications, the Contractor shall make his own 
arrangements for electricity, gas, water and sewer services for use during the construction of 
the work and shall pay for all connections, extensions,-and services. 

5 



6. FORM OF PROPOSALS (Pages 13 through 18a) 

All proposals must be made in the form attached hereto, and without removal from the bound 
pamphlet. Additional copies of this proposal form for the bidder's files may be obtained on 
request at the office of the City of Pontiac Water & Sewer Maintenance Division. 

All prices stated in the Proposal must be plainly expressed in figures only, and in the 
proper space or spaces provided. Prices shall be filled in, in ink or typewritten. Any 
corrections shall be initialed by the Bidder. 

All information called for on the Proposal must be furnished to enable a fair comparison 
of the bids to be made. (Also see Instructions to Bidders, Section 10.) 

The place of residence and phone number of each bidder, or the official address and 
phone number in the case of a firm or company, with County and State, must be given with 
the signature. 

When bidder's drawings and/or specifications are required to be submitted, they shall be 
in sufficient detail to fully and distinctly show and describe the equipment which the bidder 
proposes to furnish, including the kind and quality of the material and workmanship that will 
be used in the various parts. If any general drawings, specifications, catalogs or any other 
literature are submitted which contain information or data not pertaining to the particular 
equipment proposed to be furnished, appropriate notations to that effect must be made. 

Any stipulation or qualification contrary to the Contract requirements made by the bidder 
in or accompanying his proposal as a condition for the acceptance of the Contract will not be 
considered in the award of the Contract and may cause the rejection of the entire Proposal. 

7. LEGAL STATUS OF BIDDER 

The legal status of the bidder, that is, as a corporation, a partnership, or an individual, 
must be stated in the proposal. A corporation bidder must name the state in which its articles 
of incorporation are held, and must give the title of the official having authority under the by
laws to sign contracts. A partnership bidder must give the full names and addresses of all 
partners. 

8. AGENCY 

Anyone signing a proposal as agent of another or others must submit with the proposal 
legal evidence of his or her authority to do so. 

9. BID DEPOSIT 

When the Advertisement states that security is required with the Proposal to ensure the 
acceptance and execution of the Contract and Bonds, no bid will be considered co_mplete 
unless so guaranteed. 

Each proposal must be accompanied by a certified check of guaranty or a bid bond in an 
amount not less than five percent (5%) of the total price, drawn upon a solvent bank to the 
order of the City Treasurer of the City of Pontiac, or if a bond, executed by a surety company 

6 



acceptable to the City, as a guarantee of good faith on the part of the bidder and subject to the 
conditions stipulated in the proposal form. 

A single certified check or guaranty (bidder's) bond may serve to cover two or more 
alternative proposals when such alternative proposals are submitted by the same bidder. 

10. INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

11. STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS 

It is the intention of the City to award the Contract for this job to a Contractor whose 
construction skill and financial resources are fully equal to the task of prosecuting the work 
in a satisfactory manner and of bringing it to completion within the time limit specified. 
With this end in view, the Form of Proposal calls for a statement of bidder's experience and 
ability in this particular class of work, and for references concerning his/her business 
standing and capacity. Contractor shall list the names, addresses and phone numbers of 
references. The mere ability to offer bonds will not be taken as sufficient evidence of 
responsibility on the part of the bidder .. If Contract is awarded to a foreign company, a 
certificate of authority to do business in this State must accompany the executed Contract.. 

The low BIDDER shall supply the names, addresses and phone numbers of major 
material SUPPLIERS and SUBCONTRACTORS when requested to do so by the CITY. 

7 



12. PAYMENTS 

Partial payments will be made to the Contractor during the satisfactory progress of the 
work, calculated at the rate of ninety percent (90%) of the dollar amount of the work 
completed, until fifty percent (50%) of the established contract amount is in place. After 
fifty percent (50%) of the work is in place, additional retainage shall not be withheld unless 
the Contractor's progress is unsatisfactory, all in accordance with Article 13 of the General 
Conditions hereof and Act 524 of 1980. 

13. TIME OF COMPLETION 

This work to be done under the proposed Contract is to begin on or before the date stipulated 
in the Notice to Proceed and must be completed on or before the completion dates provided in the 
PROGRESS SCHEDULE. Time shall be considered to be of the essence of this Contract. 

14. RIGHT TO ACCEPT, TO REJECT, AND TO WAIVE DEFECTS 

The City reserves the right to accept any proposal, to reject any or all proposals, and to 
waive any defect or irregularity in any proposal if it appears advantageous to the City to do 
so. In particular, any alteration, erasure, or interlineation in the Form of Contract in the 
Specifications which are attached hereto and made a part, specifically, of these Instructions, 
or of the Form of Proposal, shall render the accompanying proposal irregular and subject to 
rejection by the City. In case any explanations, additions or alterations are to be offered, they 
shall be indicated on separate sheets attached to the proposal and referred to therein. 
Proposals which are clearly unbalanced will also be considered as irregular, and will be 
subject to instant rejection by the City. 

15. AW ARD OF CONTRACT 

The Contract will be awarded to the qualified Bidder submitting the lowest responsive 
Bid complying with the conditions of the Invitation for Bids and Pontiac Purchasing 
Ordinance. This Purchasing Ordinance provides a "benefit" for bids of Pontiac-based 
persons and is referred to as the "equalization percentage credit" (See Article 21 of the 
Instruction to Bidders). The Bidder's qualification and responsiveness shall be determined by 
the City of Pontiac. The Bidder to whom the award is made will be notified at the earliest 
possible date. The City reserves the right to reject all bids and not award the Contract, at its 
sole discretion. 

16. OBLIGATION TO EXECUTE CONTRACT 

The Bidder whose proposal is accepted will be required to execute the Contract, in the 
form attached hereto, and to furnish sureties as hereafter specified, within ten days (Sundays 
and legal holidays excepted), after receiving notice of acceptance of bid and preparation 
Contract forms is completed, and in case of the successful bidder's refusal or failure to do so, 
shall be considered to have abandoned all their rights and interests in the award, and their 
certified check or guaranty (bidder's) bond may be declared to be forfeited to the City as 
liquidated damages and not a penalty, and the Contract may be awarded to another. 

8 



17. BONDS 

The successful bidder will be required to execute surety bonds, with sureties acceptable 
to the City. One such bond shall be a Performance Bond in the amount of 100 percent of the 
Contract Price on the form attached as pages 25 and 26 of the specifications. Another such 
bond shall be a Labor and Material Bond in the amount of 100 percent of the Contract Price 
on the form attached as pages 27 and 28 of the specifications. The Contractor shall also 
provide a Maintenance Bond in the amount of 100 percent of the Contract Price on the form 
attached as pages 29 and 30 of the specifications. 

18. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the successful bidder agrees to defend, pay on 
behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY OF PONTIAC, it's elected and appointed 
officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of the CITY OF 
PONTIAC, against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs connected 
therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from 
the CITY OF PONTIAC, it's elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others 
working on behalf of the CITY OF PONTIAC, by reason of personal injury, including 
bodily injury and death, and/or property damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises 
out of or is in any way connected or associated with this contract. 

The successful bidder shall purchase and maintain in a company or companies licensed to 
do business in the State of Michigan, such insurance as will protect him from claims set forth 
below which may arise out of or result from the contractor's operations under the contract, 
whether such operations be by himself or any subcontractor or by anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone whose acts are associated with the project 
by any of them, may be liable. 

a. Workers Compensation Insurance: The contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of the contract, Workers Compensation Insurance, including Employer's 
Liability Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan. 

b. Commercial General Liability Insurance: The contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this contract, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an "Occurrence 
Basis" with the limits of liability not less than $2,000,000, per occurrence and/or aggregate 
combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall 
include the following extensions: (1) Contractual Liability; (2) Products and Completed 
Operations; (3) Independent Contractors Coverage; (4) Broad Form General Liability 
Extensions or equivalent; and (5) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and Underground 
(XCU) Exclusions. if applicable. 

c. Motor Vehicle Liability: The contractor shall procure and maintain during the life 
· of the contract, Motor Vehicles Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault coverage, 
with limits of not less than $1,000,000, per occurrence combined single limit Bodily Injury 
and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non- owned vehicles 
and all hired vehicles. 

9 



d. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be 
"Additional Insured". "THE CITY OF PONTIAC, INCLUDING ALL ELECTED AND 
APPOINTED OFFICIALS, ALL EMPLOYEES AND VOLUNTEERS, ALL BOARDS, 
COMMISSIONS AND/OR AUTHORITIES AND THEIR BOARD MEMBERS, EMPLOYEES 
AND VOLUNTEERS" AND NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS, the project consultant. (This 
coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insured, and not contributing with any other 
insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, whether said other 
available coverage be primary, contributing or excess.) 

e. Cancellation Notice: Workers Compensation Insurance, Commercial General 
Liability Insurance, and Motor Vehicle Insurance, as described above, shall include an 
endorsement stating the following: "IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THIRTY 
(30) DAYS ADVANCE WRITTEN NOTICE OF CANCELLATION, NON-RENEWAL, 
REDUCTION AND/OR MATERIAL CHANGE SHALL BE SENT TO: CITY OF 
PONTIAC, RISK MANAGEMENT DIVISION, 47450 WOODWARD A VE., PONTIAC, 
MICHIGAN, 48342". 

f. Owner's and Contractor's Protective Liability: The contractor shall procure and 
maintain during the life of this contract, a separate Owner's and Contractor's Protective 
Liability insurance coverage of not less than $2,000,000, per occurrence and/or aggregate, 
combined single limit, Personal Liability, Bodily Injury, and Property Damage. The City of 
Pontiac shall be "Named Insured" on said coverage. Thirty (30) days Notice of Cancellation 
shall apply to this policy. 

The successful bidder shall not commence work until he has obtained the insurance 
required under this section, nor shall the successful bidder permit any subcontractor to 
commence work on his subcontract until the insurance required of the subcontractor has been 
obtained. 

Certificates of Insurance, along with copies of original policies where applicable, 
acceptable to the City, shall be filed with the City of Pontiac, Risk Management Division, ten 
( 10) days prior to commencement of the contract. A sample certificate is included on page 
12 for reference. 

19. CITY INCOME TAX 

a. Contractor agrees to contact City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and 
Compliance Section, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan, 48342, telephone (248) 
758-3236, to establish reporting and withholding obligations under the City of Pontiac 
Income Tax Ordinance. Contractor will require the same of all subcontractors employing 
labor under this contract. 

b. Normally, the Contractor will be required to withhold City of Pontiac income tax if 
either of the following applies: 

(1) Performance under this contract (together with any other contracts in the City during 
the calendar year) will last 13 weeks or more. 



(2) Contractor employs one or more Pontiac residents for the performance of this 
contract. 

c. Contractor agrees to pay any personal property taxes required by the City Assessor. 

20. PRE-BID MEETING 

A mandatory pre-bid meeting will be scheduled by Addendum 1 with meeting 
instructions. 

21. CITY OF PONTIAC PURCHASING ORDINANCE (Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 
2) Municipal Code, City of Pontiac, Michigan, adopted March 21, 1996 and effective March 
31, 1996. 

Bidders are advised of the following provisions of the Purchasing Ordinance: 

a. PUBLIC BIDS - EQUALIZATION PERCENTAGE CREDIT 

An "equalization percentage credit" will be allowed for bids of Pontiac-based bidders. 
This means that bids by Pontiac-based bidders will be compared as if they were two percent 
(2%) less than their actual amount. The equalization percentage credit will be one percent 
(1 %) if the lowest bid is $100,000 or above. Not applicable to emergency purchases. 
Successful Pontiac - based bidder awarded on this basis may not sublet to non-Pontiac-based 
business. 

b. CONTRACTOR OR VENDOR IN DEFAULT OR INDEBTED TO THE CITY 

No bid shall be accepted from or contract awarded to any contractor or vendor who is in 
arrears to the City upon debt or contract including payments of real property taxes or an 
income tax obligation of any kind, or who is in default as to security or otherwise upon an 
obligation to the City. 

c. VIOLATIONS - MISREPRESENTATION 

Any material misrepresentation to the City of Pontiac by a bidder or prospective bidder, 
contractor or vendor in any documentation or paperwork submitted in a bid or proposal or 
otherwise in connection with an attempt to obtain a contract or engage in a business 
transaction shall be a violation, and may be considered sufficient basis to disqualify the 
contractor or vendor from eligibility for the award of a City contract. 

22. NON-DISCRIMINATION PROVISION 

Pursuant to the requirements of 1976, P.A. 453 (Michigan Civil Rights Act) and 1976, 
P.A. 220 (Michigan Handicapped Rights Act), the bidder and any subcontractors agree not to 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, 
terms, conditions, or privileges of employment or a matter directly or indirectly related to 
employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital 
status, or due to a handicap that is unrelated to the person's ability to perform the duties of a 
particular job or position. The Bidder must include this provision in any subcontracts 
associated with the project work. 

11 



CONTRACTOR: 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 

To the Honorable Mayor/ City Council 
City of Pontiac, Michigan 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Date: --------------

Having carefully examined the site of the proposed work, and being fully informed in regard to the 
conditions to be met in the prosecution and completion of the work, and having read and examined the 
Instructions to Bidders, Agreement, Bonds, General Conditions, Plans and Specifications pertaining to 
this work, and agreeing to be bound accordingly, the undersigned proposes to furnish all the materials, 
labor, tools, power, transportation and construction equipment necessary for the satisfactory and complete 
construction of the 2021 Local Street Improvement Project in full accordance with and conformity to 
the specifications for this work now on file in the office of the City Engineer at and for the following 
named prices, to wit: 

Contractor acknowledges receipt of the following Addendum(s): 

Addendum No.: _____ Dated: ____ _ 

Addendum No.: Dated: ----- ------

Addendum No.: Dated: ----- ------

13a Form of Proposal 
Page I of7 



Part A - Local Streets Rehabilitation 
ITEM 

1 Mobilization, Max. 10% 

2 HMA Surface, Rem 

3 Excavation, Earth 

4 Curb and Gutter, Rem 

5 Sidewalk, Rem 

6 Pavt, Rem 

7 Subgrade Undercutting, 21AA 

8 Ai:igregate Base, 8 Inch 

9 HMA, 5E3 

10 Curb and Gutter, Cone, Det F4 

11 Curb and Gutter, Cone, Det M 

12 Sidewalk, Cone, 4 Inch 

13 Sidewalk, Cone, 6 Inch 

14 Drivewav, Nonreinf Cone, 6 Inch 

15 Driveway, Nonreinf Cone, 8 Inch 

16 Dr Structure Cover, Adi, Add Depth 

17 Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 

18 Dr Structure, Temp Lowering 

19 Dr Structure Cover, Tvpe K 

20 Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Sanitary 

21 Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Water 

22 Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Storm 

23 Hand Patching 

24 Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn 

25 Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper 

26 Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Inlet Filter 

27 Clearina 

28 Restoration 

29 Minor Traf Devices 

30 Traffic Regulator Control 

13b 

QUANTITY 

1 LSUM 

28,973 SYD 

2,327 CYD 

1,555 FT 

310 SYD 

388 SYD 

1,492 CYD 

2,825 SYD 

3,821 TON 

1,129 FT 

426 FT 

2,547 SFT 

240 SFT 

267 SYD 

67 SYD 

212 FT 

106 EA 

74 EA 

28 EA 

38 EA 

5 EA 

31 EA 

1,150 TON 

560 SFT 

560 SFT 

72 EA 

330 FT 

1 LSUM 

1 LSUM 

1 LSUM 
Subtotal Part A: 

UNIT PRICE AMOUNT 

Form of Proposal 
Page 2 of7 



Part B - West Columbia Rehabilitation 

ITEM .·· .· 

31 Mobilization, Max. 10%, Columbia 

32 HMA Surface, Rem, Columbia 

33 Cold Milling Cone Pavt 

34 Curb and Gutter, Rem, Columbia 

35 Pavt, Rem, Columbia 

36 Pavt Repr, Rem, Columbia 

37 Subgrade Undercutting, 21AA, Columbia 

38 Aggregate Base, 8 inch, Columbia 

39 Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Cone, 8 inch 

40 Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 

41 HMA, 5E3, Columbia 

42 HMA, 4E3, Columbia 

43 Curb and Gutter, Cone, Det F4, Columbia 

44 Driveway, Nonreinf Cone, 6 Inch, Columbia 

45 Dr Structure Cover, Adi, Add Depth, Columbia 

46 Dr Structure Cover, Adi, Case 1, Columbia 

47 Dr Structure, Temp Lowering, Columbia 

48 Dr Structure Cover, Type K, Columbia 

49 Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Sanitary, Columbia 

50 Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Storm, Columbia 

51 Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 4 inch, White 

52 Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 4 inch, Yellow 

53 Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, Only 

54 Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, Lt Turn Arrow Sym 

55 Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 24 inch, Stop Bar 

56 Hand Patching, Columbia 

57 Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Inlet Filter, Columbia 

58 Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn, Columbia 

59 Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper, Columbia 

60 Restoration, Columbia 

61 Minor Traf Devices, Columbia 

62 Traffic Regulator Control, Columbia 

13c 

QUANTITY 

1 LSUM 

5,135 SY 

6,900 SY 

150 LF 

25 SY 

3,275 SY 

250 CYD 

500 SY 

3,275 SY 

250 EA 

3,756 TON 

648 TON 

150 LF 

25 SYD 

62 FT 

31 EA 

31 EA 

13 EA 

16 EA 

15 EA 

42 FT 

8,400 FT 

1 EA 

1 EA 

21 FT 

250 TON 

58 EA 

256.5 SFT 

256.5 SFT 

1 LSUM 

1 LSUM 

1 LSUM 

Subtotal Part B: 

UNIT 
PRICE AMOUNT 

Form of Proposal 
Page 3 of? 



Pi3rt C - Woodwcird Avenue Pavement Repair 
ITEM 

63 Mobilization, Max. 10%, Woodward 

64 HMA Surface, Rem, Woodward 

65 Sidewalk, Rem, Woodward 

66 HMA, 5E3, HiQh Stress 

67 Sidewalk, Cone, 4 Inch, Woodward 

68 Lighted Arrow, Type B, Furn, Woodward 

69 LiQhted Arrow, Type B, Oper, Woodward 

70 ChannelizinQ Device, 42 inch, Furn, Woodward 

71 Channelizing Device, 42 inch, Oper, Woodward 

72 Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn, Woodward 

73 SiQn, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper, Woodward 

74 Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 4 inch, White, Woodward 

75 Restoration, Woodward 

76 Minor Traf Devices, Woodward 

77 Traffic ReQulator Control, Woodward 

Parf D - Loc,d Streets Paver,nent Repair 

ITEM ·•.··. . 

78 Mobilization, Max. 10%, Street Repair 

79 HMA Surface, Rem, Street Repair 

80 Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, Street Repair 

81 Dr Structure, Temp LowerinQ, Street Repair 

82 Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac Sanitarv, Street Repair 

83 Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac Storm, Street Repair -
84 Water Shutoff, Adi, Case 1 

85 Underdrain, SubQrade, 6 inch 

86 HMA, 5E3, Street Repair 

87 HMA, 4E3, Street Repair 

88 AQQregate Base, 8 inch, Street Repair 

89 SubQrade UndercuttinQ, 21AA, Street Repair 

90 Restoration, Street Repair 

91 Minor Traf Devices, Street Repair 

92 Traffic ReQulator Control, Street Repair 

13d 

QUANTITY 

1 LSUM 

397 SY 

8 SY 

35 TON 

72 SF 

2 EA 

2 EA 

75 EA 

75 EA 

252 SF 

252 SF 

50 FT 

1 LSUM 

1 LSUM 

1 LSUM 
Subtotal Part C: 

QUANTITY 

1 LSUM 

1240 SY 

5 EA 

7 EA 

2 EA 

3 EA 

2 EA 

370 FT 

108 TON 

234 TON 

195 SY 

67 CYD 

1 LSUM 

1 LSUM 

1 LSUM 

Subtotal Part D: 

TOTAL: 

UNIT PRICE 

UNITPRICE 

AMOUNT 

AMOUNT 

Form of Proposal 
Page 4 of7 



The Contractor aclmowledges that he has not received nor relied upon any representations or warranties 
of any nature whatsoever from the City of Pontiac, its officers, employees or agents and that if he is 
awarded this contract, he shall enter into this Contract solely as the result of his own independent business 
judgment. 

The undersigned aclmowledges that he has made his own independent investigation and has satisfied 
himself as to the conditions of the work, including soil and subsurface conditions. 

The undersigned agrees that, in case any additions or deductions in the amount of work contemplated 
are made, the above named unit prices for the various classes of work shall be used to allow for such 
additions or deductions. 

The undersigned hereby agrees that if this Proposal shall be accepted by the said City, he will, within 
ten days after receiving notice of such acceptance and delivery of Contract forms thereof at the address 
given below (Sundays and legal holidays excepted), enter into contract, in the attached form, to construct 
the said work according to said plans and specifications and to furnish therefor all necessary equipment, 
tools and building appliances, materials, labor, power and transp01iation as aforesaid at and for the prices 
named in the foregoing paragraph; to furnish to the said City and to the State of Michigan such sureties 
for the faithful performance of such Contract and for the payment of all materials used therein and for all 
labor expended thereon as shall be approved and accepted by the said City; and to furnish to the said City 
of Pontiac a Maintenance Bond. 

The undersigned attaches hereto a ( certified check), (bidder's bond), in the sum of: 

Dollars($ ) 
as required in the Instructions to Bidders. And the undersigned hereby agrees that, in case he 
shall fail to fulfill his obligations under the foregoing proposal and agreement, the said City may, 
at its option, determine that the undersigned has abandoned his rights and interests in such 
contract and that the certified check or bidder's bond accompanying this proposal has been 
forfeited to the said City as liquidated damages and not as a penalty; but, otherwise 

14 Form of Proposal 
Page 5 of? 



The undersigned states that he currently owns or intends to rent the following equipment that 
will be used in work covered by this proposal: 

List of Equipment Owned 

List of Intended Rental Equipment 

The undersigned states that he has done work similar in character to that covered by this proposal 
at the following named times and places, to wit: 

The undersigned refers the said City to the following named parties for information concerning 
his experience, skill and business standing: 

NAME, ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER: 

Dated and signed at ____________ , MI on ____________ _ 
(City) (Date) 

Name of Bidder: ----------------------------
Address of Bidder: ----------------------------

By: -----------------
Title: ----------------
Telephone#: ____ Fax#: ______ _ 

Federal Tax I.D. Number( ________ )_ 

15 Form of Proposal 
Page 6 of? 



CERTIFICATIONS 

IF A CORPORATION 

I, __________ , certify that I am the ___________ of 

the corporation named as Contractor herein; that ------------~who 

signed this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor, was then of 

said corporation; that said Agreement was duly signed for and in behalf of said 

corporation by authority of its governing body, and is within the scope of its corporate 

powers. 

Corporate Seal Signature 

IF AP ARTNERSHIP 

I, ________________________ , certify that I 

am a partner in the partnership named as Contractor herein, and that I have authority to 

sign for and on behalf of this partnership consisting of the following partners: 

NAME AND ADDRESS: 

Signature 

IF A SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP 

I, _____________________ , certify that I am the 

sole owner and proprietor. 

Signature 

16 Form of Proposal 
Page 7 of? 



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

17 Page I of3 



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

18 Page 2 of3 



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

18a Page 3 of3 



BID BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned, ____ _ 

____________________________ as Principal, 

and _________________________ as Surety, are 

hereby held and firmly bound unto the City of Pontiac, Michigan, as OWNER in the 

penal sum of: 

Dollars ($ ) 

for the payment of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind 

ourselves, successors and assigns. Signed, this ___ day of ____ _, 20 __ _ 

The Condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principal has 
submitted to the City of Pontiac, Michigan, a certain BID, attached hereto and hereby 
made a part hereof to enter into a contract in writing, for the 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

(a) If said BID shall be rejected, or 

(b) If said BID shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a 
contract in the Form of Contract attached hereto (properly completed in 
accordance with said BID) and shall furnish a BOND for his faithful performance 
of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing 
materials in connection therewith, and shall in all respects perform the agreement 
created by the acceptance of said BID, then this obligation shall be void, 
otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood 
and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in 
no event, exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein stated. 

19 



The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said 
Surety and its BOND shall be in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the 
time within which the OWNER may accept such BID; and said Surety does hereby waive 
notice of any such extension. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and 
seals, and such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto 
affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set 
forth above. 

___________ (L.S) 

Principal 

----------- (L.S.) 
Surety 

By: ___________ _ 

IMPORTANT- Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury 
Department's most current list (Circular 540 as amended) and be authorized to transact 
business in the State of Michigan. 

20 



AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this ____ day of _______ _, 20_, by and 

between the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, party of the first part, hereafter called 

the City, and _______________ ~ Michigan, party of the second part, 

hereinafter called the Contractor: 

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter 
mentioned: 

1. The CONTRACTOR shall commence and complete the construction of: 

in full conformance with the Contract Documents as enumerated in Article 6 of this Agreement. 

2. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all of the material, supplies, tools, equipment, labor 
and other services necessary for the construction and completion of the PROJECT described 
herein, excepting those things which are specifically stipulated in the contract documents to be 
furnished or done by the City. 

3. The CONTRACTOR shall commence the work required by the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS on or before the date stipulated in the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete 
the project based on the dates established in the PROGRESS CLAUSE special provision, unless 
the date for completion is extended otherwise by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. Time shall be 
considered to be of the essence of this Contract. 

4. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all of the WORK described in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS and comply with the terms therein for the contract price of: 

unless the contract price is duly changed by the contract documents. 

5. The CITY shall pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times as set fotth 
in the General Conditions such amounts as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

6. The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" means and includes the following: 

A. AGREEMENT 

B. BIDBOND 

C. PERFORMANCE BOND 

D. LABORANDMATERIALBOND 

21 Agreement 
Page I of4 



E. MAINTENANCE BOND 

F. CHANGE ORDER (Pursuant to General Conditions, Section 9) 

G. ADDENDA: 

No. __ , dated 20 --
No. __ , dated 20 --
No. __ , dated 20 --

H. ADVERTISEMENT 

I. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

J. BIDDER'S PROPOSAL (Incl. final Compliance Plan as accepted by OWNER) 

K. GENERAL CONDITIONS (Incl. SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS and 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS (if any)) 

L. SPECIFICATIONS (Incl. SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS and SPECIAL 
PROVISIONS (if any)) 

M. PLANS (As listed in Schedule of Drawings) 

N. NOTICE OF AW ARD 

0. NOTICE TO PROCEED 

This agreement, together with other documents enumerated in this ARTICLE 6, which said other 
documents are as fully a part of the Contract as if hereto attached or herein repeated, forms the Contract 
between the parties hereto. In the event that any provision in any component part of this Contract conflicts 
with any provision of any other component part, the provision of the component part first enumerated in 
this ARTICLE 6 shall govern, except as otherwise specifically stated. 

7. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly 
authorized officials, this Agreement in four (4) copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, on the 
date first above written. 

22 Agreement 
Page 2 of4 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PONTIAC 
AND CONTRACTOR 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 

CONTRACTOR: 

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this agreement the day and year last written below. 

WITNESSES: 

1) By: ____________ _ 

2) Its: _____________ _ 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

WITNESSES: 

1) 

2) 

WITNESSES: 

1) 

2) 

WITNESSES: 

1) 

2) 

Approved as to form: 

By:--------------
-----~ City Attorney 

23 

DEPTARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

By: _____________ _ 
Date 

Its: DPW Administrator 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

By: ____________ _ 
Darin Carrington 

Its: Director 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

Date 

By: ____________ _ 
Dierdre Waterman 

Its: Mayor 
Date 

Agreement 
Page 3 of4 



CERTIFICATIONS 

IF A CORPORATION 

I, __________ , certify that I am the ____________ of 

the corporation named as Contractor herein; that ____________ _,who 

signed this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor, was then of 

said corporation; that said Agreement was duly signed for and in behalf of said 

corporation by authority of its governing body, and is within the scope of its corporate 

powers.* 

Corporate Seal Signature 

* Attach copy of corporate resolution verifying authorization of individuals named above. 

IF AP ARTNERSHIP 

I, -----------~-------------, certify that I 

am a partner in the partnership named as Contractor herein, and that I have authority to 

sign for and on behalf of this partnership consisting of the following partners: 

NAME AND ADDRESS: 

Signature 

IF A SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP 

I, ______________________ , certify that I am the 

sole owner and proprietor. 

Signature 

24 Agreement 
Page 4 of4 



BOND FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That _________ _ 

___________________________ as principal, and 

---------------------~ as surety, are held and 

firmly bound unto the City of Pontiac, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation, in the sum of: 

good and lawful money of the United States of America, to be paid to said City of 
Pontiac, its legal representatives and assigns, for which payment well and truly to be 
made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, 
and each and every one of them, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

Sealed with our Seals and dated .this ___ day of _____ A.D. 20 __ 

WHEREAS, the above named principal has entered into a certain written contract 

with the City of Pontiac, dated this ___ day of _____ A.D. 20 __ 

wherein the said principal covenanted and agreed as follows, to-wit: 

TO COMMENCE AND COMPLETE the: 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS such that if 
the above named principal or their legal representatives or successors, shall in all things 
well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in the manner 
and form and at the time agreed upon to be kept and performed as provided by said 
contract, and plans, drawings, and specifications, referred to in said contract, and as may 
be required by the changes, alterations, and modifications thereof, as provided in said 
contract, then the above obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and 
effect. 

25 Bond for Faithful Performance 
Page I of2 



This bond is given upon the express condition that any changes, alterations, or 
modifications that may be hereafter ordered or made in the construction and complete 
installation of the work herein referred to, or the placing of an inspector or superintendent 
thereon by the City of Pontiac shall not operate to discharge or release the surety or 
sureties thereon. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be 

executed by their respective authorized officers this ___ day of ______ A.D. 

20 ---

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the Presence of: 

26 

_________ (L.S.) 

_________ (L.S.) 

_________ (L.S.) 

Bond for Faithful Performance 
Page 2 of2 



LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND TO THE 
CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That __________ _ 

________________________ as principal, and __ 

__________________________ _, as surety, are 

held and firm bound unto the City of Pontiac, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation, in the 

sum of: 

good and lawful money of the United States of America, pursuant to Michigan State 
Public Act 213 of 1963, to be paid to the City of Pontiac, Michigan, for the use and 
benefit of all subcontractors, and persons, firms and corporations who shall furnish 
materials, supplies and perform labor entering into the work of: 

2021 Local Street Improvement Proiect 

for which payment well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns, and each and every one of them jointly and 
severally, firmly by these presents. 

Sealed with our Seals and dated this ___ day of _____ A.D. 20 __ 

WHEREAS, the above named principal has entered into a certain written contract 

with the City of Pontiac, dated this ___ day of _____ A.D. 20 __ , 

wherein the said principal covenanted and agreed as follows, to wit: 

TO COMMENCE AND COMPLETE the: 

2021 Local Street Improvement Proiect 

27 Labor & Material Bond 
Page I of2 



NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if 
the above named principal, legal representatives, or successors shall pay or cause to be 
paid to all subcontractors, persons, firms, and corporation, as the same may become due 
and payable, all indebtedness which may arise from said principal to a subcontractor or 
party performing labor or furnishing materials and supplies, or any subcontractor to any 
person, firm or corporation on account of any labor performed or materials and supplies 
furnished in connection with the contract, construction and work herein referred to, then 
this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 

This bond is given upon the express condition that any changes, alterations, or 
modifications that may be hereafter ordered or made in the construction and complete 
installation of the work herein referred to, or the placing of an inspector or superintendent 
thereon by the City of Pontiac shall not operate to discharge or release the surety or 
sureties thereon. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be 

executed by their respective authorized officers this ___ day of ______ A.D. 

20 

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the Presence of: 

28 

_________ (L.S.) 

_________ (L.S.) 

_________ (L.S.) 

Labor & Material Bond 
Page 2 of2 



MAINTENANCE BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That ___________ _ 

_______________________ as principal, and ____ _ 

_________________________ _, as surety, are held 

and firm bound unto the City of Pontiac, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation, in the sum of: 

good and lawful money of the United States of America, pursuant to Michigan State Public 
Act 213 of 1963, to be paid to the City of Pontiac, Michigan, for the use and benefit of all 
subcontractors, and persons, firms and corporations who shall furnish materials, supplies and 
perform labor entering into the work of: 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 

for which payment well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns, and each and every one of them jointly and severally, 
firmly by these presents. 

Sealed with our Seals and dated this ____ day of ___ A.D. 20 __ 

WHEREAS, the above named principal has entered into a certain written contract with 

the City of Pontiac, dated this ___ day of ___ A.D. 20 __ , wherein the said 

principal covenanted and agreed as follows, to wit: 

TO COMMENCE AND COMPLETE construction of:. 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 

29 Maintenance Bond 
Page I of2 



NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF TIDS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that by 
and under said contract, the above named principal has agreed with the City of Pontiac that 
for a period of ONE year(s) from the date of payment of Final Estimate, to keep in good 
order and repair all the work, done under said contract, excepting only such part or parts of 
said work as may have been disturbed without the consent or approval of the principal after 
the final acceptance of the work, and that whenever directed so to do by the City Engineer of 
the City of Pontiac by notice served in writing, either personally or by mail, on the principal 
at: 

____________________________ or ____ _ 

legal representative, or successors, or on the surety at: _____________ _ 

________________ WILL PROCEED at once to make such 

repairs as directed by said City Engineer; and in case of failure so to do within one week 
from the date of service of such notice, or within reasonable time not less than one week, as 
shall be fixed in said notice, then the City of Pontiac shall have the right to purchase such 
materials and employ such labor and equipment as may be necessary for the purpose, and to 
undertake, do and make such repairs, and charge the expense thereof to, and receive same 
from said principal or surety. If any repair is necessary to be made at once to protect life 
and property, then and in that case, the City may take immediate steps to repair or barricade 
such defects without notice to the contractor. In such accounting the City shall not be held 
to obtain the lowest figures for the doing of the work or any part thereof, but all sums 
actually paid therefore shall be charged to the principal or surety. In this connection the 
judgment of the City Engineer is final and conclusive. If the said principal for a period of 
ONE year(s) from the date of payment of Final Estimate, shall keep said work so 
constructed under said contract in good order and repair, excepting only such part or parts of 
said work which may have been disturbed without the consent or approval of said principal 
after the final acceptance of the same, and shall, whenever notice is given as hereinbefore 
specified, at once proceed to make repair as in said notice directed, or shall reimburse said 
City of Pontiac for any expense incurred by making such repairs, should the principal or 
their surety do so as hereinbefore specified, then the above obligation shall be void, 
otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be 

executed by their respective authorized officers this ___ day of ______ A.D. 

20 __ _ 

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the Presence of: 

30 

_________ (L.S.) 

_________ (L.S.) 

__________ (L.S.) 

Maintenance Bond 
Page 2 of2 



GENERAL CONDITIONS 

The following general conditions are agreed to as defining certain relationships which shall be taken to exist between 
the parties hereto and as setting forth certain conditions under which the Contract is to be fulfilled. 

INDEX 

Article 

1. Definitions 

2. Plans and Specifications 

3. Shop Drawings 

4. Materials and Workmanship 

5. Superintendence by Contractor 

6. Engineering Supervision 

7. City's Right to Complete, Suspension or Termination 

8. Assignment of Contract 

9. Extra Work and Modification 

10. Disputed Claims for Extra Compensation 

11. Extension of Time 

12. Liquidated Damages 

13 Payment to the Contractor 

14. Warranty Maintenance 

15. Michigan Non-Discrimination Statute 

16. Labor Laws and Ordinances 

17. Patents and Patent Rights 

18. Work within Railroad, Private, State or County Rights-of-way 

19. Protection and Safety 

20. Cleaning Up 

21. Progress Schedule 

31 



GENERAL CONDITIONS 

Article 1 - DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Wherever used in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, the following terms shall have the 
meanings indicated which shall be applicable to both the singular and plural thereof: 

1.2 ADDENDA - Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the execution of the Agreement 
which modify or interpret the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS by additions, deletions, 
clarifications or corrections. 

1.3 BID - The offer or proposal of the BIDDER submitted on the prescribed form setting forth 
the prices for the WORK to be performed. (See 1.8) 

1.4 BIDDER - Any person, firm or corporation submitting a BID for the WORK. 

1.5 BONDS - Bid, Performance, Labor and Material, and Maintenance Bonds and other 
instruments of security, furnished by the CONTRACTOR and his surety in accordance with 
the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

1.6 CHANGE ORDER - A written order to the CONTRACTOR authorizing an addition, 
deletion or revision in the WORK within the general scope of the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, or authorizing an adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or CONTRACT 
TIME. 

1. 7 CITY - The City of Pontiac, Michigan, or its properly authorized representatives; and 
whenever the term "City Council", "Mayor", "City Clerk'', "Director of Finance", "City 
Engineer", or "Engineer", is used, it shall be understood to mean the Council, Mayor, Clerk, 
Director of Finance, or Engineer of the said City. 

1.8 PARTICIPATION PLAN -The participation document required to accompany each 
proposal, as finally accepted by the City, including any revisions up to the time of 
acceptance. 

1.9 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS -The Contract, including ADVERTISEMENT, 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS, FORM OF PROPOSAL, BID BOND, AGREEMENT, 
LABOR & MATERIAL BOND, PERFORMANCE BOND, MAINTENANCE BOND, 
GENERAL CONDITIONS, SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS, NOTICE OF 
AW ARD, NOTICE TO PROCEED, CHANGE ORDER, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
ADDENDA, and the PARTICIPATION PLAN, and any other documents specifically set 
forth in the Agreement. 

1.10 CONTRACT PRICE - The total monies payable to the CONTRACTOR under the terms and 
conditions of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

32 



1.11 CONTRACT TIME - The number of calendar days stated in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS for the completion of the WORK on each street; or the number of calendar 
days from the date established in the NOTICE TO PROCEED to the DATE stated in the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS for the completion of all of the WORK of the TOTAL 
CONTRACT; or both. 

1.12 CONTRACTOR - The person, firm or corporation with whom the CITY has executed the 
Agreement, or its legal representatives. 

1.13 ENGINEER - The City Engineer and/or the person, firm or corporation named as such in the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

1.14 FIELD ORDER-A written order effecting a change in the WORK not involving an 
adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, issued by 
the ENGINEER to the CONTRACTOR during construction. 

L 15 NOTICE OF AW ARD - The written notice of the acceptance of the BID from the CITY to 
the successful BIDDER. 

1.16 NOTICE T,O PROCEED - Written communication issued by the CITY to the 
CONTRACTOR authorizing him to proceed with the WORK and establishing the date of 
commencement of the WORI(. 

1.17 OPEN TO TRAFFIC - That date as certified by the ENGINEER, when the WORI( 
(PROJECT) or any section thereof is in a suitable condition for safe travel. The term 
"SUITABLE CONDITION FOR SAFE TRAVEL" shall be construed to mean that all work, 
INCLUDING the Leveling Course of Bituminous Material and all Concrete Work are 
complete. The PROJECT, or any portion thereof may be designated as "Accepted for· 
Traffic" prior to completion of the whole project, and shall be opened to traffic as may be 
directed by the ENGINEER. In general, the term "OPEN TO TRAFFIC" shall be in 
accordance with Section 107.21 of the MDOT 2012 Standard Specifications for 
Construction. 

1.18 PLANS - The part of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS which show the characteristics and 
scope of the WORI( to be performed and which have been prepared or approved by the 
ENGINEER. 

1.19 PROJECT - The undertaking to be performed as provided in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS. 

1.20 RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE -The authorized representative of the CITY 
who is assigned to the PROJECT site or any part thereof. 

1.21 SHOP DRAWINGS - All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, brochures, schedules and other 

33 



data which are prepared by the CONTRACTOR, a SUBCONTRACTOR, manufacturer, 
SUPPLIER or distributor, which illustrate how specific portions of the WORK shall be 
fabricated or installed. 

1.22 SPECIFICATIONS -A part of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS consisting of written 
descriptions of a technical nature of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards 
and workmanship (may include SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS AND/OR SPECIAL 
PROVISIONS). 

1.23 SUBCONTRACTOR - An individual, firm or corporation having a direct contract with the 
CONTRACTOR or with any other SUBCONTRACTOR for the performance of a part of the 
WORK at the site. 

1.24 SUPPLIER - Any person or organization who supplies materials or equipment for the 
WORK, including that fabricated to a special design, but who does not perform labor at the 

· site. 

1.25 WORK - All labor necessary to produce the construction required by the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in the 
PROJECT. 

1.26 WORK ORDER - A written order to the CONTRACTOR causing a change in WORK 
involving the authorization to undertake additional work at existing contract unit prices or at 
new contract unit prices for new items of work. 

1.27 WRITTEN NOTICE- Any notice to any party of the Agreement relative to any part of this 
Agreement in writing and considered delivered and the service thereof completed, when 
posted by certified or registered mail to the said party at his last given address, or delivered in 
person to said party or his authorized representative on the WORK. 

Article 2 - PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

The location of the structures and improvements which are to be built or made under this Contract, 
and the character, form and dimensions of their various parts, are shown in the accompanying drawings, 
specifications and details in the Contract Document entitled: 

2021 Local Street Improvement Project 

These drawings constitute the Plans according to which the work of this Contract is to be done. 
Additional drawings may be prepared by the City Engineer and supplied to the Contractor during the 
progress of the work, as he may deem to be necessary or expedient. All such additional drawings, made 
in elaboration or explanation of the original drawings, are to be considered as part and parcel of the 
Plans and shall be respected and followed as such by the Contractor. 

34 



The Plans are supplemented and explained by a set of technical specifications, which are appended 
hereto, and which describe and define the quality of materials and the character of workmanship which 
are to enter into the work of this Contract. These are the Specifications which are referred to in Article 
1, and elsewhere in this Contract. Additional specifications in further elaboration or explanation of the 
work to be done may be prepared by the City Engineer and supplied to the Contractor during the 
progress of the work, as he may deem to be necessary or expedient. Such additional specifications are to 
be considered as part and parcel of the specifications under this Contract, and shall be respected and 
followed as such by the Contractor. 

Both Plans and Specifications are considered as essential parts of this Contract, and are intended to 
be cooperative. They shall be construed as supplementary each to the other, and any work called for in 
the Plans and not particularly mentioned in the Specifications, or described in the Specifications and not 
specially shown on the Plans, is to be regarded as included under this Contract the same as if fully set 
forth in the Specifications and exhibited on the Plans. Wherever figures or definite dimensions are 
given on the Plans or in the Specifications, these shall have precedence over dimensions taken by 
scaling. 

In case any inconsistency, omission, or conflict shall be discovered in the Specifications or Plans, or 
if in any place the meaning of either or both shall be obscure or uncertain or in dispute, the City 
Engineer shall decide as to the true intent and his decision shall be final and binding. Any such 
inconsistencies, omissions, or conflict noted should be called to the attention of the Engineer, and a 
decision on the same obtained in advance. 

Article 3 - SHOP DRAWINGS 

3.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide SHOP DRAWINGS as may be necessary for the 
prosecution of the WORK as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The 
ENGINEER shall promptly review all SHOP DRAWINGS. The ENGINEER's approval of 
any SHOP DRAWINGS shall not release the CONTRACTOR from responsibility for 
deviations from the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The approval of any SHOP DRAWING 
which substantially deviates from the requirement of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS shall 
be evidenced by a CHANGE ORDER. 

3.2 When submitted for the ENGINEER'S review, SHOP DRAWINGS shall bear the 
CONTRACTOR'S certification that he has reviewed, checked and approved the SHOP 
DRAWINGS and that they are in conformance with the requirements of the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS. 

3.3 Portions of the WORK requiring a SHOP DRAWING or sample submission shall not begin 
until the SHOP DRAWING or submission has been approved by the ENGINEER. A copy of 
each approved SHOP DRAWING and each approved sample shall be kept in good order by 
the CONTRACTOR at the site and shall be available to the ENGINEER. 

35 



Article 4 - MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP 

It is mutually understood that all materials and workmanship furnished under this Contract shall be of 
the highest quality, to the end that a good and substantial and workmanlike job may be produced. The 
Contractor shall bring only first class materials to the work, and he shall furnish suitable tools and 
equipment and shall employ competent labor to perform the work to be done. Any materials or labor or 
tools or equipment that shall not, in the judgment of the Engineer, be suitable or competent to produce the 
desired result, may be ordered from the work by the Engineer, and such materials or labor or tools or 
equipment shall be promptly substituted therefor by the Contractor as will meet with the approval of the 
Engineer. Wherever a brand or name is given, it is for the purpose of defining or establishing a type or 
quality of material only. 

4.1 Defective Materials 

Any materials or fabricated articles furnished by the Contractor to be used in this work which 
shall not, in the judgment of the Engineer, be equal to the requirements of the Plans and 
Specifications, may be rejected by the Engineer; and such rejected materials or articles shall 
not be used, but shall be immediately removed by the Contractor from the site of the work. 

4.2 Stored Materials 

Materials and equipment distributed, stored or placed upon or near the site of the work shall be 
at all times so disposed as not to interfere with work being prosecuted directly by the City or· 
by other Contractors in the City's employ or with access thereto, and not to hinder any more 
than may be necessary the ordinary pedestrian and vehicular traffic of the streets. 

4.3 Property Rights in Surplus Materials 

All excess materials excavated during the progress of the work and not required for 
backfilling, all timber except tree stumps cut from the right-of-way, and all other materials 
which have been encountered and handled during construction operations, and which 
constitute a disposable surplus at the end of the construction period, shall be the property of 
the Contractor, unless otherwise directed by the City or its Engineer. Such materials shall be 
hauled and neatly piled, or hauled and dumped at the places designated by the Engineer, at no 
extra compensation. 

4.4 Water Supply 

Water for construction purposes may be taken from the City mains subject to the rules of the 
Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner's office. 

36 



Article 5 - SUPERINTENDENCE BY CONTRACTOR 

5 .1 Except where the Contractor is an individual and gives his personal superintendence to the 
work, the Contractor shall provide a competent superintendent, satisfactory to the City and 
the Engineer, on the work at all times during working hours with full authority to act for the 
Contractor. Any orders by the Engineer given to and received by said superintendent shall 
be deemed to have been given to and received by the Contractor. The Contractor shall also 
provide an adequate staff for the proper coordination and expediting of his work. The 
Contractor shall maintain a complete set of plans and specifications at the site. 

5 .2 The Contractor may set up and establish an office on or near the site. On certain large 
projects, the Engineer may direct the Contractor to set up an office. 

5.3 The Contractor shall lay out his own work and he shall be responsible for all work executed 
by him under the Contract. He shall verify all figures and elevations before proceeding 
with the work and will be held responsible for any error resulting from his failure to do so. 

5 .4 Disorderly Employees 

Disorderly, intemperate, or incompetent persons must not be employed, retained, or 
allowed upon the work site. Any foreman or workman who refuses or neglects to comply 
with the directions of the Engineer in the matter of personal conduct shall, at the request of 
the Engineer, be promptly discharged and shall not thereafter be re-employed without the 
consent of the Engineer. 

5.5 Relation to Other Contractors 

The Contractor shall so conduct his operations as not to interfere with or injure the work of 
other Contractors or workmen employed by the City on adjoining or related work, and he 
shall promptly make good any injury or damage which may be done to such work by him or 
his employees or agents. Should a contract for adjoining work be awarded to another 
Contractor, and should the work on any one of these contracts interfere with that of the other, 
the Engineer shall decide which Contractor shall cease work for the time being and which 
shall continue or whether the work on both contracts shall continue at the same time and in 
what manner. In case the territory of one contract should be the necessary means of access to 
another contract, the Engineer shall have power to grant reasonable privileges with respect to 
the transportation or movement of men, animals, appliances or materials as he may adjudge 
to be necessary or expedient and in the best interests of the City. Any decision which the 
Engineer may make as to the method and time of conducting work or the use of territory 
shall not be made the basis of any claim for damages, but an extension of time may be 
claimed, if justified by the circumstances, the same as in the case of other delays caused by 
the acts of the City. Any difference of opinion or conflict of interest which may arise 
between this Contractor and other Contractors or workmen of the City in regard to adjoining 
work shall be determined and adjusted by the Engineer. 

37 



5.6 Time and Sequence of Work 

In general, it is the intention and understanding that the Contractor shall have control over the 
sequence or order of execution of the several parts of the work to be done under this 
Contract, and over the methods of accomplishing the required results, except as some 
particular sequence or method may be distinctly demanded by the Plans and Specifications or 
by the express provisions of this Contract; the Engineer may, however, make such 
reasonable requirements as may, in his judgement, be necessary for the proper and effective 
protection of work partially or wholly completed, and to these requirements, the Contractor 
shall strictly conform. 

5. 7 Sunday and Night Work 

No Sunday work shall be done except in case of emergency or to protect from damage or 
injury any work that has already been done, and then only with the written consent of the 
Engineer, and only to such an extent as he may judge to be necessary. 

Ordinarily, no night work shall be carried on which will require the presence of the Engineer 
or an inspector, except with the written permission of the Engineer. Night work is 
permissible in an emergency to the extent required to meet the emergency, but the Contractor 
shall notify the Engineer, as far as possible in advance, of his intentions to carry on such 
emergency work and of the time and place of doing it. 

Article 6 - ENGINEERING SUPERVISION 

The work covered by this Contract will be executed under the engineering supervision of the City 
Engineer, who shall have authority to inspect all materials and workmanship entering into the work, to 
furnish all instructions and information regarding the Plans and Specifications that may be necessary, to 
supply supplementary or additional plans or specifications as he may deem expedient, and to point out to 
the Contractor any disregard of any of the provisions of the Contract; but the right of final acceptance or 
condemnation of the work will not be waived at any time during its progress. 

The Engineer will set suitable stakes and marks showing the locations and elevations of various parts 
of the work and the Contractor shall provide such labor and assistance as the said Engineer may require 
in setting the same. The Contractor shall take due and proper precautions for the preservation of these 
stakes and marks, and shall see to it that the work at all times proceeds in accordance therewith. The 
Engineer may provide for the inspection of any or all materials or workmanship used or intended to be 
used under this Contract, by assistants under his direction or otherwise, as he may deem to be advisable 
or expedient; but no inspection shall relieve the Contractor of his fundamental obligation to fully respect 
all the requirements of his Contract. Such inspection may cover any or all parts of the work, and may 
extend to and include the preparation or manufacture of any materials or fabricated articles intended to 
be incorporated in the work. The Contractor shall furnish, upon request therefor by the Engineer, such 
samples for examination or testing as the Engineer may prescribe. The Contractor shall furnish such 
labor and assistance as may be necessary for the proper handling of materials in all inspections and tests 
that may be required. 

38 



The Engineer and his duly authorized agents and employees may, at any time and for any purpose, 
enter upon the work and upon the premises occupied by the Contractor, and the Contractor shall provide 
proper and safe facilities by which the Engineer may have access to such parts of the work as may be 
required. 

Article 7 - CITY'S RIGHT TO COMPLETE; SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION 

It is agreed that the City has the right, when it shall become satisfied that the work provided for in 
this Contract will not be completed within the time limit, to furnish additional labor and material if 
necessary and render such other assistance as it may deem advisable, for the completion of said 
Contract, at the expense of the Contractor, and may retain the same out of the Contract price, or recover 
the same by legal proceedings. 

It is agreed that the Mayor has the right to determine finally all questions as to proper performance 
of this Contract, or any part or portion thereof, and in case of improper, dilatory or imperfect 
performance thereof, to suspend the work at any time and to order the partial or entire reconstruction of 
the same, and if at any time the said Contractor shall abandon the work of this Contract or become 
habitually negligent of his obligations under it, or shall fail to prosecute the work with reasonable 
diligence, so that the time of final completion of the work shall be unnecessarily and intolerably delayed, 
or if he shall violate any of the provisions of the Contract, then and in such case the Mayor may declare 
this Contract forfeited and may, at address given in the proposal, notify him to discontinue all work 
under this Contract, or any part thereof, and thereupon he shall discontinue such work, or such part 
thereof, and shall cease to have any right to the possession of the ground; and the City shall thereupon 
have the right to complete the work or any part thereof by Contract or otherwise, as it may elect, and for 
that purpose to take possession and make use of such materials, tools, building appliances, and 
equipment as may be found upon the work, and to charge the expense thereof to the Contractor. Power 
is hereby given the Mayor to determine all such questions under this Contract, according to the true 
intent and meaning thereof. 

All expenses charged under this provision shall be deducted and paid by the City of Pontiac out of 
any monies then due to the Contractor under this Contract, or any part thereof, and in such accounting 
the City of Pontiac shall not be held to obtain the lowest figures for the work of completing the contract, 
or any part thereof, or for insuring its proper completion, but all sums actually paid therefor shall be 
charged to the Contractor. In case the expenses to be charged are less than the sum which would have 
been payable under this contract if the same had been completed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall 
be entitled to receive the difference; and in case such expenses shall exceed the said sums, the 
Contractor shall pay the amount of the excess to the City of Pontiac. 

39 



Article 8 - ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT 

It is agreed that the Contractor shall not assign or transfer this Contract, or subcontract any part of 
the work embraced in it, except with the written consent of the Mayor to do so. 

It is further agreed that all parts of the work which may be performed by a subcontractor shall 
conform to the Plans and Specifications and be subject to all provisions of this Contract exactly as if 
performed by the Contractor and his immediate employees and workmen. No such letting of the work 
shall, in any way, diminish or weaken the responsibility of the Contractor for all parts of the work or 
lessen his obligation under this Contract. 

It is likewise agreed that the Contractor shall not assign, either legally or equitably, any of the 
monies payable to him under this Contract, or his claim thereto, except with the written consent of the 
Mayor. 

Article 9 - EXTRA WORK AND MODIFICATION 

It is agreed that the said Contractor shall do such incidental or extra work in connection with this 
Contract as the Mayor may especially order in writing. If such extra work or any part thereof be of such 
character that it may be definitely covered by construction items for which unit prices are named in the 
proposal of this Contract, then and in that case the City will pay, and the Contractor will accept as full 
compensation for such extra work, or such part thereof, the amount computed by applying the unit prices 
to the quantities of extra work falling under the several items. Also, such extra work may be paid for at 
prices mutually agreed upon at the time by the City and the Contractor. But if such extra work, or any 
part thereof, be of a kind which may not be definitely covered by the regular pay items of this contract, 
and if no price therefor has been mutually agreed upon in advance, or if the work is of such a nature that 
it cannot be estimated with fair exactness in advance, then the City will pay, and the Contractor will 
accept as full compensation for such, an amount equal to the actual and necessary net cost in money to 
the Contractor for labor and materials actually used therein or expended thereon, plus fifteen percent 
(15%) of such net cost for superintendence, power, the use of tools, and plant, liability insurance, and all 
overhead and incidental expenses. 

During the progress of any extra work which is to be paid for on the basis of net cost plus fifteen 
percent (15%), the Contractor will furnish to the City Engineer, at the end of each day, suitable time slips 
showing the name of and the number of hours worked by each workman employed thereon, the nature of 
work performed by him, and his rate of pay, together with suitable and adequate memoranda of the 
materials used therein, showing the character and amount of each such material, the source from which 
it was purchased, and the price paid or to be paid therefor. 

The City may, at its discretion, furnish to the Contractor any materials or supplies or transportation 
required for extra work, and the Contractor shall not be entitled to any allowance or percentage on 
account of materials or supplies or transportation so furnished. 

It is agreed that all extra work that may be ordered and performed under the provisions of this article 
shall be done by the Contractor in an effective and workmanlike manner, and shall be subject to the 
same restrictions and liabilities as those which apply to the general work of this Contract; and the 
Contractor will be responsible for the maintenance and protection of such extra work until the time of 
the final acceptance of the entire job by the City. 

40 



And it is further agreed that no claim against the City on account of extra work shall be valid unless 
such extra work has been previously ordered in writing by the Mayor, and unless such claim has been 
presented for payment as soon as practicable after the completion of such extra work and before the 
making up of the final estimate. 

When it becomes necessary in the prosecution of any work or improvement under contract to make 
minor alterations or modifications of such contract or the plans and specifications thereof, such 
alterations, changes or modifications shall be made only on the written order of the Mayor. 

No such order shall be made until the price to be paid for the work or material or both and the 
credits, if any, to be allowed by the City under the altered and modified Contract shall have been 
agreed upon in writing and signed by the Contractor and by the Mayor. 

Article 10 - DISPUTED CLAIMS FOR EXTRA COMPENSATION 

If any inconsistency, omission, or conflict is discovered in either the plans or the specifications, or 
if in any place the meaning of either the plans or the specifications, or both, is obscure, or uncertain, or 
in dispute, the Engineer will decide as to the true intent. 

In case the Contractor deems extra compensation is due for work or materials not clearly covered in 
the contract, or not ordered by the Engineer as extra work, or due to changed or altered conditions, the 
Contractor shall notify the Engineer in writing of the Contractor's intention to make claim for such extra 
compensation before beginning work on which the Contractor intends to base a claim and shall afford 
the Engineer every facility for keeping actual cost of the work. The Contractor and the Engineer shall 
compare records and bring them into agreement at the end of each day. Failure on the part of the 
Contractor to give such notification or to afford the Engineer proper facilities for keeping strict a<wount 
of actual cost will constitute a waiver of the claim for such extra compensation except that consideration 
will be given to claims to the extent that they are substantiated by City records. The determination of 
extra compensation made by the City, where the Contractor has failed to give proper notice of his claim 
for extra compensation as provided herein or has failed to afford the Engineer proper facilities for 
keeping strict account of actual costs, shall be final and binding on the Contractor. The filing of such 
notice by the Contractor and the monitoring of cost by the Engineer for said notice of claim, shall not in 
any way be construed to establish the validity of the claim. When the extra work in question has been 
completed, the Contractor shall file the claim for extra compensation with the Engineer .. 

Such claims shall be filed with the Engineer in a timely manner but no later than 10 days after the 
contract is completed. A written decision will be given to the Contractor in a timely manner, regarding 
the approval, partial approval, or disapproval of the Contractor's claim for extra compensation. The City 
will determine procedures for reviewing the Contractor's claim. 

Article 11 - EXTENSION OF TIME 

It is agreed that if the Contractor shall be unavoidably delayed in beginning or fulfilling this Contract 
by reason of excessive storms or floods, or by acts of Providence, or by general strikes, or by court 
injunction, or by stopping of the work by the City because of any emergency or public necessity, or by 
reason of extra work ordered by the City Engineer, or by any act, neglect, delay, or default on the part of 

41 



the City, the Contractor shall have no valid claim for damages on account of any such cause or 
delay, but he shall be, in such case, entitled to such extensions or advancement of the time period 
specified in the Agreement as the City Engineer shall adjudge to be just and reasonable; 
provided, however, that formal claim for such extension shall be made in writing by the 
Contractor within a week after the date upon which such alleged cause of delay shall have 
occurred. The closing down of the work during the winter season on account of cold weather 
shall not be taken as entitling the Contractor to any extension of time within the meaning of this 
Article. 

In case the Contractor shall be delayed in the fulfillment of his obligations under this 
Contract, from any cause whatsoever, and in case the City shall acquiesce in the Contractor's 
prosecution and completion of the work, or any part of it, after the date at which it should have 
been finished, such acquiescence shall not operate as a waiver of any of the City's rights under 
this Contract, nor shall it invalidate or in any way weaken the Contractor's bonds. 

Article 12 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

It is expressly covenanted and agreed by and between the parties hereto that time is and shall 
be considered as of the essence of the Contract, and in the event that said Contractor shall fail in 
the due performance of the entire work to be performed under this Contract, by and at the time 
herein mentioned and referred to in the Agreement, or within some other certain date subsequent 
to this to which the time limit for completion of the work may have been advanced under 
provisions of Article 11, the said Contractor shall pay unto the City as and for liquidated 
damages, and not as a penalty, the sum of Thirteen Hundred Fifty Dollars($ 1,350.00) for each 
and every calendar day that the said Contractor shall be in default. 

Said sum of Thirteen Hundred Fifty Dollars($ 1,350.00) per day, in view of the difficulty 
of estimating such damages with exactness, is agreed upon as the damages which will be 
suffered by the City by reason of such default. It is also understood and agreed by the parties to 
this Contract that the liquidated damages herein before mentioned are in lieu of the actual 
damages arising from such breach of this Contract; which said sum the City shall have the right 
to deduct from any monies in its possession, otherwise due, or to become due to said Contractor, 
or to sue for and recover compensation for damages for non-performance of this Contract at the 
time stipulated herein and provided for. (See also any Special Provisions for Liquidated 
Damages.) 

Said liquidated damages are in addition to any actual damages which the City may recover under 
the provisions of the contract. 

Article 13 -PAYMENTS TO THE CONTRACTOR 

13 .1 Contractor's Obligation Prior to Payment 

It is agreed that before the Contractor shall demand partial or final estimates or 
payments, the City may require him to furnish the City satisfactory evidence that all 
persons that have supplied labor or materials for the work embraced under this 

42 



Contract have been fully paid for the same; and that in case such evidence be not 
furnished as aforesaid, such sums as the City may deem necessary to meet the lawful 
claims of the persons aforesaid be retained by the City from any monies that may be 
due or become due to him under this Contract until such liabilities shall be fully 
discharged and evidence thereof be furnished to the City. The Contractor agrees to 
make prompt settlement for all repair expenses made by the City as a result of the 
Contractor's work. Consent of the Contractor's surety will be required prior to final 
payment. 

13.2 City's Obligation to Pay 

It is agreed that, in consideration of the faithful and entire performance by the 
Contractor of his obligations under this Contract, the City shall pay to him, at the 
times and in the manner stipulated, the total sum as determined by calculations from 
the unit prices in the proposal, but diminished by such amount as the City may 
lawfully retain as liquidated damages under the provisions of Article 12 herein; and 
the Contractor shall accept the payment of such sum as full compensation for his 
work under this Contract. 

13.3 Progress Estimates and Payments 

Progress payments shall comply with Act No. 524 Public Acts of 1980. At about the 
first of each month, during which satisfactory progress has been made toward the 
final completion of the work, the Engineer will make up an estimate of the amount 
and value of the work which has been done under this Contract since the date of the 
last preceding estimate, and will report such estimate in writing to the City Director 
of Finance. Such estimates shall not be required to be made by strict measurements, 
or with exactness, but may be made either wholly or in part by appraisement or 
estimation or by a consideration of accounts for labor and materials, and it shall be 
sufficient if it is approximate only. Any error or inaccuracy which may occur in any 
progress estimate may be allowed for or corrected in any subsequent estimate. 

Following the rendering of such estimate by the Engineer, and as soon as practicable 
thereafter, the City will pay to the Contractor on account a sum equal to ninety 
percent (90%) of the Contract price of such work. The remaining ten percent (10%) 
will be retained until work is fifty percent (50%) in place. After the work is fifty 
percent (50%) in place, additional retainage shall not be withheld unless the City 
determines that the Contractor is not making satisfactory progress, or for other 
specific cause relating to the Contractor's performance under the Contract. If the City 
so determines, the City may retain not more than ten percent ( 10%) of the dollar value 
of work more than fifty percent (50%) in place. 

The Director of Finance may require the Contractor, before the payment of any 
estimate, to file an affidavit showing the unpaid bills for materials or supplies of any 
kind furnished for this work. 

43 



Any time after 94% of the work is in place, the Contractor may request release of all 
of the retainage. The City shall be required to release the retainage plus interest to 
the Contractor in such case only if the Contractor provides to the City an irrevocable 
letter of credit in the amount of the retainage plus interest, issued by a bank 
authorized to do business in this State, and containing terms mutually acceptable to 
the Contractor and the City. 
The progress estimates and payments thus provided for will include all extra work 
which may be done under the provisions of this Contract on the same basis as other 
work is included, all such extra work being regarded herein as essentially a part of 
this Contract, and not merely supplementary to it. 

Disputes under this provision may be submitted to the decision of an agent, at the 
option of the City, pursuant to Section 4 of Act 524 of 1980. (MCLA 125.1564). 

13.4 Measurement 

Due and proper measurements will be taken by the Engineer during the progress of 
the work, and his estimates, based upon such measurements, shall be final and 
conclusive evidence of the amount of work performed under this Contract. 

13.5 Final Estimate and Payment 

As soon as practicable after the satisfactory completion of all the work included 
under this Contract, the Engineer will make final inspection of all the work and will 
make up a final estimate of the amount due to the Contractor under the terms of this 
Contract. At this time the Contractor shall file with the Director of Finance an 
affidavit stating that all bills have been paid in full for all materials, supplies and 
labor of every kind that have been fumished for this work, or stating the balance due 
for such materials, supplies and labor (See sample on Page 52). The Contractor 
shall file with the City Engineer the Contractor's Declaration found on Page 51, 
stating that all claims for extra payments have been satisfactorily settled and there 
will be no further claims. A final certificate relative to compliance of Affirmative 
Action Plan also will be required as a condition of payment. Consent of the 
Contractor's surety shall also be filed. The Engineer will then certify this estimate to 
the City Director of Finance and the Contractor will be paid the amount of said 
estimate, less the amounts previously paid; excepting that the City may, at its 
option, reserve such amount as it may deem necessary to meet the undischarged 
obligations of the Contractor for materials or labor expended upon this work until 
such obligation shall have been paid. 

Article 14-WARRANTY MAINTENANCE 

If, at any time during a one-year period from the date of payment of the final estimate, the 
need of any repair or replacement becomes apparent, the City will at once notify the Contractor 
in writing, either personally or by mail at the address given in the proposal; and if within one 
week after such notification the Contractor has not made the necessary repairs, the City may 
proceed to do the required work and to charge the cost thereof against the Contractor, excepting 

44 



that in the case of a repair necessary to be made at once to protect life and property, then and in 
that case the City may take immediate steps to repair or barricade such defects without notice to 
the Contractor. 

Following the performance of any such repair work by the City, and as soon as practicable 
thereafter, an itemized statement of the cost of such work will be sent to the Contractor by the 
City. In such accounting the City shall not be held to obtain the lowest figures for the doing of 
the work or any part thereof, but all sums actually paid therefor shall be charged to the 
Contractor. 

Article 15 - MICHIGAN NON-DISCRIMINATION STATUTE 

It is agreed that the Contractor and his subcontractors will not discriminate against an 
employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or 
privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of 
race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or marital status; or because of a 
handicap that is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform the duties of a particular job or 
position. Breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of the Contract. 

Article 16 - LABOR LAWS AND ORDINANCES 

The Contractor shall obey and abide by all laws of the State of Michigan relating to the 
employment of labor on public work, and all the charter provisions and ordinances of the City of 
Pontiac regulating or in respect to public improvements. 

Article 17 -PATENTS, PATENT RIGHTS, AND TRADEMARKS 

The Contractor shall indemnify, protect, defend and save the City of Pontiac, including all 
elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees, volunteers and others working on behalf of the 
City, harmless against all claims or actions brought against the City by reason of any actual or 
alleged infringement upon patent, trademark or service mark right in any article, material, 
process, machine or appliance used by him in this work. 

Article 18 - WORI( WITHIN RAILROAD, PRIVATE, STATE OR COUNTY RIGHTS-OF
WAY 

All construction work within railroad, private, State or County highway rights-of-way shall be 
performed by the Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the rights-of-way agreement 
and of the railroad or highway department having jurisdiction; including procedures of excavating, 
backfilling, removing and replacing pavement, maintaining and safeguarding traffic, inspection 
procedures of jacking pipes and encasing pipes under railroads and highways, etc. All required 
construction permits and surety bonds shall be furnished by the Contractor before commencing 
work. At the conclusion of the work, the Contractor shall furnish a written statement from the 
railroads and highway departments that work in rights-of-way under their jurisdiction has been 
completed to their satisfaction. 

45 



Article 19 - PROTECTION AND SAFETY 

19 .1 Protection Against Accident 

The Contractor shall put up and shall maintain during the continuance of the work 
such barriers, lights and other protective devices and watchmen, when necessary, as 
will effectively prevent any accident in consequence of his work, and he shall be 
liable for all accidents and damages occasioned in any way by his acts or neglect, or 
by the acts or neglect of his agents, employees, or workmen. 

19.2 Responsibility for Damage to Work 

The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for loss or damage to the work during 
the entire construction period resulting from caving earth and from storms, floods, 
frosts, and other adverse weather conditions, and from all other causes whatsoever not 
directly due to the acts or neglect of the City, and shall turn the finished work over to 
the City in good condition and repair at the time of the final estimate. This 
responsibility of the Contractor shall cover all these elements included as extra work 
under this Contract in exactly the same manner as the regular work is covered. 

19.3 Responsibility for Adjoining Structures 

The Contractor shall have full responsibility for the protection of all property, 
driveways, buildings, fences, and other structures, and their foundations, along ( or 
near) the line of the work, and shall indemnify, defend and save harmless the City of 
Pontiac, including all elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, 
all boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, employees, 
volunteers and others working on behalf of the City, against all damages or alleged 
damages to any such structure arising out of his work. 

No driveway shall be entirely closed to travel, even temporarily, except with the 
written consent of the Engineer, previously obtained. Highways must be suitably 
posted during the period in which construction work is in progress in them, and the 
Contractor shall be responsible for this precaution. Suitable bridges must be built 
across trenches at highway crossings to facilitate travel, and this same requirement 
shall apply likewise to private roadways. 

19 .4 Responsibility for Water Courses 

The Contractor shall maintain in continuous and effective service all drains and 
water courses touched during the progress of the work. If it should become 
necessary, temporarily, to divert or obstruct the flow of any such water course or 
drain, written consent must first be obtained from the Engineer, and the Contractor 
shall assume full responsibility for the consequences. 

46 



19.5 Responsibility for Utilities 

Certain underground structures and utilities have been shown as an aid to the 
Contractor, but the City does not guarantee their location or that other underground 
structures or utilities may not be encountered. It shall be the responsibility of the 
Contractor to make all arrangements with the owners of the respective utilities for the 
establishment of their location, prior to beginning the construction. 

The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for the protection of all utilities, water, 
sewer, gas, telephone, or any other, either public or private, along or near the line of 
work, and will be held responsible for any damages to such utilities arising from his 
operations. If for the Contractor's convenience he desires that any portion of the 
utilities be moved to facilitate his operations, he shall make all necessary 
arrangements with the owner of the respective utilities, and pay all costs resulting 
from this work. 

In cases where utilities, water, sewer, gas, telephone or any other, either public or 
private, are directly in the line of the structures being constructed, such as those being 
within the permissible limits of a sewer excavation or pavement excavation, and the 
City deems it necessary that the said utility be moved, the said company or 
companies, agents or superintendents will be notified by the City Engineer to remove 
the same within a specified time. The Contractor shall not interfere with said utility 
or any portion thereof until the expiration of the time specified in said notice. The 
Contractor will not be held responsible for any costs resulting from this work. 

In all cases where there is a dispute between the Contractor and the owner of the 
respective utility as to necessity of moving or repairing same within City-owned right 
of way, the City Engineer shall make the final decision in the matter, which decision 
shall be binding on the respective parties, and order the respective parties to proceed 
accordingly. 

19.6 Protection of Trees and Shrubbery 

The Contractor shall take ample precautions to protect all trees and ornamental 
shrubbery from injury by workmen, teams, or other agencies connected with his 
work. Such trees or shrubbery shall be surrounded by protective posts or fencing 
before construction work begins if, in the judgment of the Engineer, such precautions 
are necessary. 

19. 7 Protection of Reference Points 

The Contractor shall carefully preserve monuments, bench marks, reference points 
and stakes and, in case of willful or careless destruction, he shall be charged with the 
resulting expense and shall be responsible for any mistakes that may be caused by 
their unnecessary loss or disturbance. 

47 



19.8 Removal of Water 

The Contractor shall provide all necessary pumps, pipes, drains, ditches, dikes, and 
other means for adequately protecting the work from damage by water, and he shall 
so protect it during the entire construction period. No direct payment will be made to 
the Contractor for removing or pumping water, or for any of the means employed in 
protecting the work against damage by water, but compensation therefor shall be 
considered as being included in the unit prices fixed in this Contract for the several 
structures. 

Water pumped or delivered from trenches and excavations shall be disposed of in 
such manner as will not injure the public health, nor damage public or private 
property, nor injure any work complete or in progress. 

19.9 Dust Control 

The Contractor shall apply water or dust palliative, or both, for the alleviation or 
prevention of dust nuisance caused by his operations. Dust control operations shall 
be performed by the Contractor at the time ordered by the Engineer, but failure of the 
Engineer to issue such order will not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility. 

Such dust control materials shall be applied as often as is necessary to control the 
dust. The use of road oils and waste oils to control dust is prohibited unless 
authorized by the Engineer. 

No direct payment will be made for any such work performed or material used to 
control dust under this Contract. 

19.10 Control ofNoise 

The Contractor shall eliminate noise to as great an extent as possible at all times. Air 
compressors shall be equipped with silencers, and the exhaust of all gasoline motors 
and other power equipment shall be provided with mufflers. In the vicinity of 
hospitals, libraries and schools, special precautions shall be taken to avoid noise and 
other nuisance, and the Contractor shall require strict observances of all pertinent 
ordinances and regulations. Any blasting permitted in such locations shall be done 
with reduced charges. 

19 .11 Erosion Control 

The Contractor shall comply with the Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Act, 
Act 347 of 1972, as amended by Act 197, Public Acts of 1974 and local City or 
County soil erosion control programs. Also, should the local agency determine that 
the construction operation is in violation of the act and cites the City, the Contractor 
shall take immediate action, as directed by the City, to insure compliance with the 
Act. 

48 



19 .12 First Aid 

The Contractor shall at all times provide a satisfactory first aid kit at the job site. 
Emergency phone numbers for police, doctors, and emergency vehicles shall also be 
kept in the first aid kit. 

19 .13 Ventilation and Safety in Gas 

Positive and approved means shall be provided by the Contractor for the detection of 
gas in existing sewers. If gas is encountered and cannot be removed by natural 
ventilation, then ventilating equipment of sufficient capacity and suitable type to 
adequately and quickly dilute the gas shall be promptly installed and operated. In all 
work where gas is present, no flame or other open light shall be used on the work. 
The Contractor shall be required to enforce a "no smoking" ban on all workmen 
present. 

19.14 Sanitary Regulations 

The Contractor shall provide for his employees an abundant and convenient supply of 
drinking water, taken from the City mains or from some other safe and wholesome 
source, and shall give orders against the use for drinking purposes of any other water 
in the neighborhood known to be prejudicial to the health of the workers. 

The Contractor shall provide at convenient points, properly secluded from 
observation, a sufficient number of sanitary conveniences, and shall maintain them 
strictly without nuisance and without offense to the public or to residents in the 
vicinity of the work. The number, location, character and conditions of maintenance 
of these utilities must at all times be such as will meet the approval of the Engineer. 

Article 20 - CLEANING UP 

Upon completion of the actual work of construction, the Contractor shall clean up and leave 
in neat condition all the premises which he has occupied during the construction period. Before 
the time of the final estimate, the Contractor shall remove from the premises all surplus 
excavation, debris, and rubbish, and all unused materials, together with all tools and equipment, 
or shall deposit them at such points and in such manner as the Engineer may require. 

Before leaving the grounds, he shall replace or put in good repair all fences, telephone poles 
and lines, roadways, and other property that may have been damaged by him during the progress 
of the work. Damage to crops within the limits of the right-of-way or street will be paid by the 
City, but the Contractor must assume responsibility for all damages outside of this right-of-way. 

49 



Article 21 - PROGRESS SCHEDULE 

The CONTRACTOR shall submit a Progress Schedule to the City for review and approval 
within ten ( 10) days of receipt of the "NOTICE OF AW ARD". The Contractor shall address the 
following items in the proposed schedule. 

21.1 All work on Part C and Part D streets (Woodward A venue (BL-75), Russell / 
Whittemore Street Intersection, S. Merrimac Street, and St. Clair Street) shall be 
completed on or before November 12, 2021. 

21.2 All work on Part A and Part B streets (Cherry Hill Drive, Fairmount A venue, 
Starlight Lane, Grandville Court, Bynan Lane / Gambrell Drive, Omar Street, Granada 
Drive, and W. Columbia Avenue) shall be completed on or before July 30, 2022. 

50 



CONTRACTOR'S DECLARATION 

I hereby declare that I have not, during the period of ______________ _ 

to ________________ A.D., 20 __ , performed any work, furnished 

any material, sustained any loss, damage or delay for any reason, including soil conditions 

encountered or created, or otherwise done anything for which I shall ask, demand, sue for, or 

claim compensation from the City of Pontiac or his agents, in addition to the regular items set 

forth in the contract named or numbered 2021 Local Street Improvement Project and dated _ 

________ A.D., 20 __ , for ___________________ _ 

executed between myself and the City of Pontiac, and in the Change Orders for work issued by 

the City in writing as provided thereunder, except as I hereby make claim for additional 

compensation and/or extension of time as set forth on the itemized statement attached hereto. 

There (is) (is not) an itemized statement attached. 

Date: ________________ _ 

By: ________________ _ 

Title: -----------------

51 



CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF 

) 
)SS 
) 

The undersigned _____________________ ~ hereby 

represents that on he (it) was awarded a contract by the City of Pontiac, 

hereinafter called the Owner, to ______________________ _ 

in accordance with the terms and conditions of Contract 2021 Local Street Improvement 
Project and the undersigned further represents that the subject work has now been accomplished 
and the said contract has now been completed. 

The undersigned hereby warrants and certifies that all of his (its) indebtedness arising by 
reason of the said contract has been fully paid or satisfactorily secured; and that all claims from 
subcontractors and others for labor and material used in accomplishing the said project, as well 
as all other claims arising from the performance of the said contract, have been fully paid or 
satisfactorily settled. The undersigned further agrees that, if any such claim should hereafter 
arise he (it) shall assume responsibility for the same immediately upon request to do so by the 
Owner. 

The undersigned, for a valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 
does further hereby waive, release and relinquish any and all claims or right of lien which the 
undersigned now has or may hereafter acquire upon the subject premises for labor and material 
used in accomplishing said project owned by the Owner. 

This affidavit is freely and voluntarily given with full knowledge of the facts, on this __ _ 
day of _______ A.D. 20 __ 

Contractor: ________________ _ 

By: _______________ _ 

Title:. __________________ _ 

Subscribed and sworn and to before me, a Notary Public in and for ___ County, Michigan, 

on this ____ day of ____ A.D. 20 __ 

Notary Public 
My Commission expires: ___________ _ 

52 



NOTICES TO BIDDERS, 
SPECIFICATIONS 

AND 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

53 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
1 of 1 

2021-04-28 

All work shall be done in accordance with the City of Pontiac Standard Details and the Michigan 
Department of Transportation 2012 Standard Specifications for Construction and the latest 
revisions to the Standard Details as published by MOOT except as specifically modified in the 
Contract Documents 

54 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

JOB SITE SAFETY 
1 of 1 

2021-04-26 

Neither the professional activities of the Engineer, nor the presence of the Engineer or its 
employees and consultants at, shall relieve the Contractor and any other entity of their obligations, 
duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, 
techniques or procedures necessary for performing, superintending or coordinating all portions of 
the work of construction in accordance with the Contract Documents and any health or safety 
precautions required by any regulatory agencies. The Engineer and its personnel have no 
authority to exercise any control over any construction Contractor or other entity or their employees 
in connection with their work or any health or safety precautions. The Contractor agrees that the 
Contractor is solely responsible for job site safety. The Contractor also agrees, to the extent 
permitted by law, that the Owner, Engineer and Engineer's consultants shall be indemnified by the 
Contractor for claims, demands, damages, judgements, losses, interest, attorney's fees, litigation 
costs and expenses of any kind, at any time, for bodily injury and or property damage, arising out 
of or in any way connected to the Contractor's work or acts related to the Project. The Contractor 
also agrees that the Owner, Engineer and Engineer's consultants shall be made additional 
insureds under the Contractor's general liability insurance policy. 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

81-WEEKL Y PROGRESS MEETING 
1 of 1 

2021-04-26 

Bidders are advised that after the commencement of construction activities, the Contractor will be 
required to attend a bi-weekly progress meeting with the Engineer and any other interested parties. 
Dates will be selected at the beginning of the project and the meeting will be held at the office of 
the Engineer, or as otherwise arranged. The Contractor's project representative along with 
representatives from all critical subcontractors, as requested by the Engineer, shall be present at 
the meeting to discuss the status of the project and to coordinate the work for the following two (2) 
weeks. 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 
1 of 1 

Bidders are advised that the following permits are required for construction of this project: 

2021-04-27 

MOOT Right-of-Way Permit: A permit to perform work or place traffic control devices within 
the Michigan Department of Transportation right-of-way shall 
be provided to the contractor. The Contractor shall be 
responsible for meeting all of the requirements outlined in the 
permit. 

Canadian National Railroad: A permit to perform work in the right-of-way of the Canadian 
National Railroad at Woodward Ave. shall be provided to the 
contractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for meeting all 
of the requirements outlined in the permit. 

Water Use Permit: A permit will be required to access City fire hydrants to obtain 
water for construction, cleaning, dust control, etc. The 
Contractor must obtain this permit from the Oakland County 
Water Resources Commissioner. As a part of this permit a 
meter will be provided by the County to measure the usage of 
water. Backflow prevention must be maintained at all times. 
Payment for any fees or for water usage will be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. 

Structure Adjustments: A permit from the Oakland County Water Resources 
Commissioner for adjusting sanitary and water structures 
covers in the right-of-way will be provided to the contractor. 
The contractor shall be responsible for all fees associated 
with said permit, and shall be responsible for meeting all of 
the requirements outlined in the permit. 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISON 
FOR 

PROGRESS CLAUSE 
1 of 1 

2021-07-30 

The Contractor shall begin work within ten (10) calendar days after receiving the "Notice to 
Proceed" or on or before the date designated as the starting date in the detailed Progress 
Schedule. The completion dates for this project shall be as follows: 

• All work on Part C and Part D streets (Woodward Avenue (BL-75), Russell/ 
Whittemore Street Intersection, S. Merrimac Street, and St. Clair Street) shall be 
completed on or before November 12, 2021. 

• All work on Part A and Part B streets (Cherry Hill Drive, Fairmount Avenue, Starlight 
Lane, Grandville Court, Synan Lane/ Gambrell Drive, Omar Street, Granada Drive , 
and W. Columbia Avenue) shall be completed on or before July 30, 2022. 

The Contractor shall perform all work in accordance with the traffic control plans provided in 
the construction drawings. Temporary traffic and detours shall be maintained at all times. 
The Contractor shall complete all restoration work and pavement markings as specified in 
the construction drawings and as directed by the Engineer. 

Failure by the Contractor to meet the above requirements and dates will result in the 
Contractor being assessed liquidated damages in accordance with the Special Provision for 
Schedule of Liquidated Damages for Oversight. 

The Contractor shall also be assessed liquidated damages in accordance with the Special 
Provision for Schedule of Liquidated Damages for Oversight for any days exceeding ten (10) 
between the placement of the leveling and wearing courses of HMA on any street. The City 
Engineer will consider all requests for extensions of time based on weather or extenuating 
circumstances that prevent HMA paving operations. 

The low bidder for the work covered by this proposal will be required to attend a 
preconstruction meeting and to submit a detailed progress schedule for approval by the 
Engineer. The progress schedule shall include, as a minimum, the starting and completion 
dates of all items of work, as well as the date the project is to be completed. The Contractor 
shall schedule their work such that no more than three (3) business days will elapse between 
major items of work. It is the intent of this provision that a continuous flow of operations will 
be maintained from start to finish. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

UTILITY COORDINATION 
1 of 1 

2021-04-26 

The Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate construction activities with the owners of utilities as 
stated in Section 104.07 of the 2012 MOOT Standard Specifications for Construction. In addition, 
for the protection of underground utilities, the Contractor shall follow the requirements in Section 
107.12 of the 2012 MOOT Standard Specifications for Construction. Contractor delay claims, 
resulting from a utility, will be determined based upon Section 109.03 of the 2012 MOOT Standard 
Specifications for Construction. 

The following public utilities have facilities located within the right-of-way: 

Electric - Distribution: 

DTE Energy 
1530 Trombly Street 
Detroit, Ml 48211 
Contact: Laura Toporowski 630-336-2020 

Gas: 
Consumers Energy 
4600 Coolidge Hwy 
Royal Oak, Ml 48073 
Contact: Ernie Martyniuk 248-433-5868 

Sanitary Sewer: 
Oakland County W.R.C. 
1 Public Works Dr 
Waterford, Ml 48328 
Contact: Rick DeVisch 248-858-4939 

Water Main 
Oakland County W.R.C. 
1 Public Works Dr 
Waterford, Ml 48328 
Contact: Amy Ploof 248-452-2271 

Telephone: 

AT&T 
54 N. Mill Street 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
Contact: Matt Silwa 248-877-0762 

Cable Television: 
Comcast Cable 
25626 Telegraph Rd 
Southfield, Ml 48033 
Contact: Michael Marlow 248-809-2765 

Electric - Community Lighting: 
DTE Energy 
15600 19 Mile Rd 
Clinton Twp, Ml 48038 
Contact: Reggie Brown 586-412-3207 

City of Pontiac - Street Lighting and Storm Drain 
City of Pontiac - Engineering Department 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
Contact: Abdul Siddiqui 248-758-3615 

Storm drain, water main and street lighting improvements shall be constructed as identified in the 
construction plans or specifications. 

On all projects: "Three Working Days before you Dig - Call M 188 DIG (800)482-7171" 

Existing service facilities, which are located within grading or structure limits, will be moved or 
adjusted by the owners to locations or elevations designated by the Engineer or will be removed 
entirely from the right of way. Owners of public utilities will not be required by the City to move 
additional poles or structures in order to facilitate the operation of construction equipment unless it 
is determined by the Engineer that such poles or structures constitute a hazard to the public or are 
extraordinarily dangerous to the Contractor's operations. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

USE OF CITY WATER 
1 of 1 

2021-04-26 

Water from the City of Pontiac water distribution system is available for use by the Contractor. The 
Contractor MUST apply for and have a permit for water use in the possession of the individual 
taking the water from the City system. Unauthorized use will not be permitted. The Oakland 
County Sheriff's Department has been instructed to halt any unauthorized use of City water. 

As a part of this permit, a meter will be provided by the Oakland County Water Resources 
Commissioner to measure the usage of water. Backflow prevention must be maintained at all 
times. A permit fee will be due upon issuance of the permit. A usage fee will be due upon the 
return of the provided meter. 

The Contractor is advised to contact Amy Ploof at 248-858-0958 or ploofa@oakgov.com to 
ascertain the procedures for obtaining a permit and for paying the required fees for such use. 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

The cost of the permit fee and metered use of the City's water supply is the responsibility of the 
Contractor and shall be considered incidental to the project and shall not be paid for separately. 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

ST AGING OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 
1 of 1 

2021-04-27 

Bidders are advised that if they intend on staging their activities outside of the public right-of-way, 
approval for a variance from the City of Pontiac Zoning Board of Appeals is required. It shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor to make application to the City of Pontiac's Office of Land Use and 
Strategic Planning. The procedure for making this application includes: 

1. Obtain and complete the property application forms and pay fees. 
2. File the forms with the Office of Land Use and Strategic Planning and include the 

following items: 
a. A fully dimensioned and scaled plot plan showing property lines and locations of all 

buildings. 
b. A clear description of any proposed change of use to include present use and a 

detailed accounting of the new use. 
c. Any additional information required by the Office of Land Use and Strategic 

Planning, for proper processing of the application. 
3. The request will be placed on the agenda of the Zoning Board of Appeals as soon as 

possible. 
4. The applicant will be notified by mail of the hearing time and date. 
5. A variance, if granted, will be void six (6) months after date of approval if not acted 

upon the applicant. 
6. A variance, if granted, does not constitute permission to proceed without first obtaining 

the necessary permits to complete the required work. 

Furthermore, if City of Pontiac property is to be used for staging activities, an agreement between 
the Contractor and the City, allowing the Contractor the use of the property, shall be approved by 
the City prior to the Contractor accessing the property. 

The costs associated with the Contractor obtaining approval from the City of Pontiac Zoning Board 
of Appeals shall not be paid for separately. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
FOR 

DRIVEWAY ACCESS, TEMPORARY 
1 of 1 

2021-04-29 

Maintain access to all driveways during construction except that each drive may be closed 
for no more than 3 days to pour and cure the concrete drive, sidewalk behind the drive, and 
portion of the driveway behind the sidewalk. The Contractor shall notify each resident three 
working days prior to closing a drive. Temporary materials approved of by the Engineer, 
such as maintenance gravel may be used, but must be used in a manner that ensures the 
material does not infiltrate the underlying material to remain in place. This work will NOT be 
paid for separately but considered incidental to adjacent pay items. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

SWEEPING 
1 of 1 

2021-04-27 

This work shall consist of sweeping pavements, as often as necessary, in the construction area, as 
directed by the Engineer. 

A final cleaning shall be completed within five (5) working days prior to the opening of the roadway. 

Equipment 

The machine that is used shall be self-propelled or towed street sweeper, equipped with pickup 
attachments and curb brushes. 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

The completed work for Sweeping shall not be paid for separately, but shall be considered included 
in other items of work on the project. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

DUST CONTROL 
1 of 1 

2021-04-26 

The Contractor shall take such precautions and do such work so as to effectively control dust 
caused by his operations on all streets that are affected by the construction of the project. 

During each seven (7) day period that the street is under construction, the Contractor shall supply 
and apply water to the grade in such amounts that dust will be kept to a minimum. The water shall 
be applied to the grade at least once during each seven (7) day period and at such other times and 
places as the Engineer may direct. The Contractor shall schedule the application of water to be 
done on the Thursday of each week. The rate of application shall be 0.5 gallons per square yard. 

In the event that the ground is already sufficiently wet from natural causes, the Contractor may not 
be required to apply water to the grade. The Contractor's equipment and labor to apply the water 
to the grade shall be on site every Thursday ready and equipped to apply water. The Engineer 
shall have sole direction as to whether or not water is required and the Engineer's decision shall be 
final. 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

The completed work for Dust Control shall not be paid for separately. 

In the event that the City deems it necessary to perform this work for the Contractor, the City shall 
have the work done and charge the cost thereof against any monies that may be due or may 
become due to the Contractor. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

PROOF ROLLING 
1 of 1 

2021-04-27 

This work shall be done in accordance with the Michigan Department of Transportation 2012 
Standard Specifications for Construction, except as follows:. 

Construction Methods 

After pavement removal and/or excavation the Engineer will inspect the condition of an existing 
aggregate base course or underlying subgrade. If in the opinion of the Engineer an area of the 
roadway appears unsuitable for paving they may order the Contractor to proof roll the area to 
identify unstable areas. Proof rolling must be scheduled so as not to delay the time of completion 
for opening the roadway to traffic, and be mutually convenient for the Engineer and the Contractor. 
The Engineer must be present to observe the proof rolling activity. 

After any require proof rolling is completed then the Engineer may order subgrade undercutting, 
manipulation, or other methods to improve the pavement subgrade and identify the limits of work. 

Any required subgrade improvements ordered by the Engineer will not be a basis to extend the 
time of completion, unless in the opinion of the Engineer an extension of time is warranted. 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

The work of proof rolling will not be measured separately and shall be considered incidental to the 
project. 



MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

12SP-501 J-05 

ACCEPT ANGE OF HOT MIX ASPHALT MIXTURE ON LOCAL AGENCY PROJECTS 

CFS:KPK 1 of 7 APPR:CJB:JWB:07-05-16 
FHWA:APPR:07-05-16 

a. Description. This special provision provides sampling and testing requirements for local 
agency projects using the roller method and the nuclear density gauge testing. Provide the hot 
mix asphalt (HMA) mixture in accordance with the requirements of the standard specifications, 
except where modified herein. 

b. Materials. Provide aggregates, mineral filler (if required), and asphalt binder to produce 
a mixture proportioned within the master gradation limits shown in the contract, and meeting the 
uniformity tolerance limits in Table 1. 

a e ni orm1 :v o erance T bl 1 U "f ·t T I 1m1 s or 1x ures L" ·t f HMA M' t 

Parameter Top and Leveling Course Base Course 

Number Description Range 1 (a) Range 2 Range 1 (a) Range 2 

1 % Binder Content -0.30 to +0.40 ±0.50 -0.30 to +0.40 ±0.50 

C) # 8 and Larger Sieves ±5.0 ±8.0 ±7.0 ±9.0 
C 
'iii 

2 (/) # 30 Sieve ±4.0 ±6.0 ±6.0 ±9.0 (ll 
Cl. 

'#. # 200 Sieve ±1.0 ±2.0 ±2.0 ±3.0 

3 Crushed Particle Content (b) Below 10% Below 15% Below 10% Below 15% 

a. This range allows for normal mixture and testing variations. The mixture must be proportioned to 
test as closely as possible to the Job-Mix-Formula (JMF). 

b. Deviation from JMF. 

Parameter number 2 as shown in Table 1 is aggregate gradation. Each sieve will be evaluated 
on one of the three gradation tolerance categories. If more than one sieve is exceeding Range 1 
or Range 2 tolerances, only the one with the largest exceedance will be counted as the gradation 
parameter. 

The master gradation should be maintained throughout production; however, price adjustments 
will be based on Table 1. Aggregates which are to be used in plant-mixed HMA mixtures must 
not contain topsoil, clay, or loam. 

c. Construction. Submit a Mix Design and a JMF to the Engineer. Do not begin production 
and placement of the HMA until receipt of the Engineer's approval of the JMF. Maintain the binder 
content, aggregate gradation, and the crushed particle content of the HMA mixture within the 
Range 1 uniformity tolerance limits in Table 1. For mixtures meeting the definition of top or 
leveling course, field regress air void content to 3.5 percent with liquid asphalt cement unless 



CFS:KPK 2 of 7 
12SP-501 J-05 

07-05-16 

specified otherwise on HMA application estimate. For mixtures meeting the definition of base 
course, field regress air void content to 3.0 percent with liquid asphalt cement unless specified 
otherwise on HMA application estimate. 

Ensure all persons performing Quality Control (QC) and Quality Assurance (QA) HMA field 
sampling are "Local Agency HMA Sampling Qualified" samplers. At the Pre-Production or Pre
Construction meeting, the Engineer will determine the method of sampling to be used. Ensure all 
sampling is done in accordance with MTM 313 (Sampling HMA Paving Mixtures) or MTM 324 
(Sampling HMA Paving Mixtures Behind the Paver). Samples are to be taken from separate 
hauling loads. 

For production/mainline type paving, obtain a minimum of two samples, each being 20,000 grams, 
each day of production, for each mix type. The Engineer will sample and maintain possession of 
the sample. Sampling from the paver hopper is prohibited. Each sample will be divided into two 
10,000 gram parts with one part being for initial testing and the other part being held for possible 
dispute resolution testing. Obtain a minimum of three samples for each mix type regardless of 
the number of days of production. 

Obtain samples that are representative of the day's paving. Sample collection is to be spaced 
throughout the planned tonnage. One sample will be obtained in the first half of the tonnage and 
the second sample will be obtained in the second half of the tonnage. If planned paving is reduced 
or suspended, when paving resumes, the remaining sampling must be representative of the 
original intended sampling timing. 

Ensure all persons performing testing are Bit Level One certified or Bit QNQC Technician 
certified. 

Ensure daily test samples are obtained, except, if the first test results show that the HMA mixture 
is in specification, the Engineer has the option of not testing additional samples from that day. 

At the Pre-Production or Pre-Construction meeting, the Engineer and Contractor will collectively 
determine the test method for measuring asphalt content (AC) using MTM 319 (Determination of 
Asphalt Content from Asphalt Paving Mixtures by the Ignition Method) or MTM 325 (Quantitative 
Extraction of Bitumen from HMA Paving Mixtures). Back calculation will not be allowed for 
determining asphalt content. 

Ensure all labs performing local agency acceptance testing are qualified labs per the HMA 
Production Manual and participate in the MOOT round robin process, or they must be AASHTO 
Materials Reference Laboratory (AMRL) accredited for AASHTO T 30 or T 27, and AASHTO T 
164 or T 308. Ensure on non-National Highway System (NHS) routes, Contractor labs are made 
available, and may be used, but they must be qualified labs as previously stated. Contractor labs 
may not be used on NHS routes. Material acceptance testing will be completed by the Engineer 
within 14 calendar days, except holidays and Sundays, for projects with less than 5,000 tons (plan 
quantity) of HMA and within 7 calendars days, except holidays and Sundays, for projects with 
5,000 tons (plan quantity) or more of HMA, after the Engineer has obtained the samples. QA test 
results will be provided to the Contractor after the Engineer receives the QC test results. Failure 
on the part of the Engineer or the laboratory" to provide Quality Assurance test results within the 
specified time frame does not relieve the Contractor of their responsibility to provide an asphalt 
mix within specifications. 



CFS:KPK 3 of 7 
12SP-501 J-05 

07-05-16 

The correlation procedure for ignition oven will be established as follows. Asphalt binder content 
based on ignition method from MTM 319. Gradation (ASTM D 5444) and Crushed particle content 
(MTM 117) based on aggregate from MTM 319. The incineration temperature will be established 
at the Pre-Production Meeting. The Contractor will provide a laboratory mixture sample to the 
acceptance laboratory to establish the correction factor for each mix. Ensure this sample is 
provided to the Engineer a minimum of 14 calendar days prior to production. 

For production/mainline type paving, the mixture may be accepted by visual inspection up to a 
quantity of 500 tons per mixture type, per project (not per day). For non-production type paving 
defined as driveways, approaches, and patching, visual inspection may be allowed regardless of 
the tonnage. 

The mixture will be considered out-of-specification, as determined by the acceptance tests, if for 
any one mixture, two consecutive tests per parameter, (for Parameter 2, two consecutive 
aggregate gradations on one sieve) are outside Range 1 or Range 2 tolerance limits. If a 
parameter is outside of Range 1 tolerance limits and the second consecutive test shows that the 
parameter is outside of Range 2, then it will be considered to be a Range 1 out-of-specification. 
Consecutive refers to the production order and not necessarily the testing order. Out-of
specification mixtures are subject to a price adjustment per the Measurement and Payment 
section of this special provision. 

Contractor operations will be suspended when the mixture is determined to be out-of
specification, but contract time will continue to run. The Engineer may issue a Notice of Non
Compliance with Contract Requirements (Form 1165), if the Contractor has not suspended 
operations and taken corrective action. Submit a revised JMF or proposed alterations to the plant 
and/or materials to achieve the JMF to the Engineer. Effects on the Aggregate Wear Index (AWi) 
and mix design properties will be taken into consideration. Production and placement cannot 
resume until receipt of the Engineer's approval to proceed. 

Pavement in-place density will be measured using one of two approved methods. The method 
used for measuring in-place density will be agreed upon at a pre-production or pre-construction 
meeting. 

Pavement in-place density tests will be completed by the Engineer during paving operations and 
prior to traffic staging changes. Pavement in-place density acceptance testing will be completed 
by the Engineer prior to paving of subsequent lifts and being open to traffic. 

Option 1 - Direct Density Method 

Use of a nuclear density gauge requires measuring the pavement density using the Gmm from 
the JMF for the density control target. The required in-place density of the HMA mixture must be 
92.0 to 98.0 percent of the density control target. Nuclear density testing and frequency will be 
in accordance with the MOOT Density Testing and Inspection Manual. 

Option 2 - Roller Method 

The Engineer may use the Roller Method with a nuclear or non-nuclear density gauge to 
document achieving optimal density as discussed below. 



CFS:KPK 4 of 7 
12SP-501 J-05 

07-05-16 

Use of the density gauge requires establishing a rolling pattern that will achieve the required in
place density. The Engineer will measure pavement density with a density gauge using the Gmm 
from the JMF for the density control target. 

Use of the Roller Method requires developing and establishing density frequency curves, and 
meeting the requirements of Table 2. A density frequency curve is defined as the measurement 
and documentation of each pass of the finished roller until the in-place density results indicate a 
decrease in value. The previous recording will be deemed the optimal density. The Contractor 
is responsible for establishing and documenting an initial or QC rolling pattern that achieves the 
optimal in-place density. When the density frequency curve is used, the Engineer will run and 
document the density frequency curve for each half day of production to determine the number of 
passes to achieve the maximum density. Table 5, located at the end of this special provision, can 
be used as an aid in developing the density frequency curve. The Engineer will perform density 
tests using an approved nuclear or non-nuclear gauge per the manufacturer's recommended 
procedures. 

Table 2: Minimum Number of Rollers Recommended Based on Placement Rate 

Average Laydown Rate, Number of Rollers Required (a) 

Square Yards per Hour Compaction Finish 

Less than 600 1 1 (b) 

601 -1200 1 1 

1201- 2400 2 1 

2401 - 3600 3 1 

3601 and More 4 1 

a. Number of rollers may increase based on density frequency curve. 
b. The compaction roller may be used as the finish roller also. 

After placement, roll the HMA mixture as soon after placement as the roller is able to bear without 
undue displacement or cracking. Start rolling longitudinally at the sides of the lanes and proceed 
toward the center of the pavement, overlapping on successive trips by at least half the width of 
the drum. Ensure each required roller is 8 tons minimum in weight unless otherwise approved by 
the Engineer. 

Ensure the initial breakdown roller is capable of vibratory compaction and is a maximum of 500 
feet behind the paving operations. The maximum allowable speed of each roller is 3 miles per 
hour (mph) or 4.5 feet per second. Ensure all compaction rollers complete a minimum of two 
complete rolling cycles prior to the mat temperature cooling to 180 degrees Fahrenheit (F). 
Continue finish rolling until all roller marks are eliminated and no further compaction is possible. 
The Engineer will verify and document that the roller pattern has been adhered to. The Engineer 
can stop production when the roller pattern is not adhered to. 

d. Measurement and Payment. The completed work, as described, will be measured and 
paid for using applicable pay items as described in subsection 501.04 of the Standard 
Specifications for Construction, or the contract, except as modified below. 



CFS:KPK 5 of 7 
12SP-501 J-05 

07-05-16 

Base Price. Price established by the Department to be used in calculating incentives and 
adjustments to pay items and shown in the contract. 

If acceptance tests, as described in section c. of this special provision, show that a Table 1 mixture 
parameter exceeds the Range 1, but not the Range 2, tolerance limits, that mixture parameter 
will be subject to a 1 O percent penalty. The 1 O percent penalty will be assessed based on the 
acceptance tests only unless the Contractor requests that the 10,000 gram sample part retained 
for possible dispute resolution testing be tested. The Contractor has 4 calendar days from receipt 
of the acceptance test results to notify the Engineer, in writing, that dispute resolution testing is 
requested. The Contractors QC test results for the corresponding QA test results must result in 
an overall payment greater than QA test results otherwise the QA tests will not be allowed to be 
disputed. The Engineer has 4 calendar days to send the dispute resolution sample to the lab 
once dispute resolution testing is requested. The dispute resolution sample will be sent to an 
independent lab selected by the Local Agency, and the resultant dispute test results will be used 
to determine the penalty per parameter, if any. Ensure the independent lab is a MOOT QA/QC 
qualified lab or an AMRL HMA qualified lab. The independent lab must not have conflicts of 
interest with the Contractor or Local Agency. If the dispute testing results show that the mixture 
parameter is out-of-specification, the Contractor will pay for the cost of the dispute resolution 
testing and the contract base price for the material will be adjusted, based on all test result 
parameters from the dispute tests, as shown in Table 3 and Table 4. If the dispute test results do 
not confirm the mixture parameter is out-of-specification, then the Local Agency wnl pay for the 
cost of the dispute resolution testing and no price adjustment is required. 

If acceptance tests, as described in section c. of this special provision, show that a Table 1 mixture 
parameter exceeds the Range 2 tolerance limits, the 10,000 gram sample part retained for 
possible dispute resolution testing will be sent, within 4 calendar days, to the MOOT Central 
Laboratory for further testing. The MOOT Central Laboratory's test results will be used to 
determine the penalty per mixture parameter, if any. If the MOOT Central Laboratory's results do 
not confirm the mixture parameter is out-of-specification, then no price adjustment is required. If 
the MOOT Central Laboratory's results show that the mixture is out-of-specification and the 
Engineer approves leaving the out-of-specification mixture in place, the contract base price for 
the material will be adjusted, based on all parameters, as shown in Table 3 and Table 4. 

In t.he case that the Contractor disputes the results of the test of the second sample obtained for 
a particular day of production, the test turn-around time frames given would apply to the second 
test and there would be no time frame on the first test. 

The laboratory (MOOT Central Laboratory or independent lab) will complete all Dispute 
Resolution testing and return test results to the Engineer, who will provide them to the Contractor, 
within 13 calendar days upon receiving the Dispute Resolution samples. 

In all cases, when penalties are assessed, the penalty applies to each parameter, up to two 
parameters, that is out of specification. 



CFS:KPK 6 of 7 

a e T bl 3 P ena tv er It P P 
Mixture Parameter out- Mixture Parameter out-of-

t arame er 

12SP-501 J-05 
07-05-16 

of-Specification per Specification per Dispute Resolution Price Adjustment per Parameter 
Acceptance Tests Test Lab 

NO N/A None 

NO None 

YES 
Outside Range 1 but not Range 2: 

YES decrease by 10% 

Outside Range 2: decrease by 25% 

The quantity of material receiving a price adjustment is defined as the material produced from the 
time the first out-of-specification sample was taken until the time the sample leading to the first 
in-specification test was taken. 

Each parameter of Table 1 is evaluated with the total price adjustment applied to the contract 
base price based on a sum of the two parameter penalties resulting in the highest total price 
adjustment as per Table 4. For example, if three parameters are out-of-specification, with two 
parameters outside Range 1 of Table 1 tolerance limits, but within Range 2 of Table 1 limits and 
one parameter outside of Range 2 of Table 1 tolerance limits and the Engineer approves leaving 
the mixture in place, the total price adjustment for that quantity of material is 35 percent. 

Table 4: Calculating Total Price Adjustment 
Cost Adjustment as a Sum of the Two Highest Parameter Penalties 

Number of Parameters Range(s) Outside of Tolerance 
Total Price Adjustment 

Out-of-Specification Limits of Table 1 per Parameter 

One 
Range 1 10% 

Range 2 25% 

Range 1 & Range 1 20% 

Two Range 1 & Range 2 35% 

Range 2 & Range 2 50% 

Range 1, Range 1 & Range 1 20% 

Range 1, Range 1 & Range 2 35% 
Three 

Range 1, Range 2 & Range 2 50% 

Range 2, Range 2 & Range 2 50% 



CFS:KPK 7 of 7 

Table 5: Density Frequency Curve Development 

12SP-501 J-05 
07-05-16 

Tested by: _______________ Date/Time: _________ _ 

Route/Location: Air Temp: 
Control Section/Job Number: Weather: 
MixTvpe: I Tonnaqe: Gauqe: 
Producer: I Depth: Gmm: 

R II #1 T o er vpe: 
Pass No. Density Temperature Comments 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

Optimum 

R II #2 T o er ,me: 
Pass No. Density Temperature Comments 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

Optimum 

II # Ro er 3 T •pe: 
Pass No. Density Temperature Comments 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

Optimum 

Summary: _____________________________ _ 



MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

12SP-604A-10 

QUALITY CONTROL AND ACCEPTANCE OF PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE 
(FOR LOCAL AGENCY PROJECTS ONLY) 

CFS:JFS 1 of 21 APPR:TES:DBP:06-14-19 
FHWA:APPR:06-14-19 

a. Description. The Contractor must administer quality control (QC) and the Department 
will administer quality assurance (QA) procedures that will be used for acceptance of and 
payment for all Portland cement concrete (PCC) for the project. Except as explicitly modified by 
this special provision, all materials, test methods, and PCC mixture requirements of the standard 
specifications and the contract apply. 

Do not place concrete until the Engineer's daily startup testing verifies that the fresh concrete 
properties have been met, in accordance with subsection d.2 of this special provision. 

Provide the Engineer a minimum 24 hours notification prior to each concrete placement. 

1. Terminology. 

Air Content of Fresh Concrete. The recorded total air content of fresh concrete sampled and 
tested according to this special provision. 

Air Content Test Results. The recorded air content of fresh concrete corresponding to the 
strength test specimens that were molded for acceptance. 

Alkali-Silica Reactivity (ASR). A chemical reaction which occurs over time within concrete 
between high alkaline cement paste and reactive forms of silica found in some aggregates. 
In the presence of moisture, an expansive ASR gel is formed which can exert pressure within 
the concrete, causing random cracking and premature deterioration of the concrete. See 
subsection c.5.A of this special provision. 

Base Price. Price established by the Department to be used in calculating incentives or 
adjustments to pay items and shown in the contract. 

Concrete Mix Design. The process, by which the concrete mixture performance characteristics 
are defined, based on selected materials, performance requirements, environmental 
exposure considerations, placement methods, and other factors that control the plastic and 
hardened properties of the concrete in efforts to produce an economical and durable product. 

Job Mix Formula (JMF). The actual batch quantities (mixture proportions) of each constituent 
included in the concrete mixture, based on adjustments to the target weights attained from 
the mix design process, necessary to optimize the concrete mixture properties. 

Pay Factor (PF). The factor that is determined according to subsections d.3 of this special 
provision, used to calculate the price adjustment for a discrete quantity of concrete relative 



CFS:JFS 2 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

to its respective level of quality. Pay factor will not exceed 1.00. Therefore, there will never 
be a positive pay adjustment. 

Price Adjustment (ADJ). The price adjustment applied to the quantity of concrete represented 
by the respective quality index analysis described in subsections d.3 of this special provision. 

Production Lot. A discrete cubic yard quantity of concrete containing the same JMF and used 
for the same application, as described in subsection d.2 of this special provision. 

Quality Assurance (QA). Activities administered by the Engineer dealing with acceptance of 
the product, including, but not limited to, materials selection, sampling, testing, construction 
inspection, and review of Contractor QC documentation. All concrete QA sampling and 
testing will be administered by the Department. Department administered QA is described 
in section d of this special provision. 

Quality Control (QC). All activities administered by the Contractor to monitor, assess, and 
adjust production and placement processes to ensure the final product will meet the 
specified levels of quality, including, but not limited to, training, materials selection, sampling, 
testing, project oversight and documentation. Contractor administered QC is described in 
section c of this special provision. 

QC Action Limits. A range of values established by the Contractor in the QC plan that, if 
exceeded, requires that corrective action be taken by the Contractor to restore the continuity 
and uniformity of the mixture and methods in conformance with specification requirements. 
The QC action limits must not exceed the QC suspension limits. 

QC Plan. The project-specific plan developed by the Contractor describing, in detail, all aspects 
of production and construction for the project to ensure consistent control of quality to meet 
specification requirements. 

QC Plan Administrator. An employee of, or consultant engaged by the Contractor, responsible 
for developing and overseeing all aspects of QC for the project. This includes, but is not 
limited to preparing the QC plan, managing the Contractor QC personnel, communicating 
routinely with the production personnel to ensure quality, initiating corrective action and 
suspending operations when the process is found to be producing non-conforming materials, 
and preparing and submitting all necessary QC documentation to the Engineer within the 
specified time period. 

QC Suspension Limits. A range of values defined in Table 1 that, if exceeded on a single QC 
test, requires that the Contractor suspend operations and determine, correct, and document 
the deficiencies before resuming production. The QC suspension limit must not exceed 
specification requirement thresholds. 

Sample. A representative quantity of concrete taken during production which is used to 
measure the quality characteristics for the concrete .. 

Sampling Rate. The number of times the fresh concrete is sampled, as described in subsection 
d.2 of this special provision. 

Small Incidental Quantity. A single day's placement of less than 20 cubic yards of concrete 
used for non-structural or non-pavement related applications, including, but not limited to: 



CFS:JFS 3 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

curb and gutter, sidewalks and sidewalk ramps (excluding driveways and driveway ramps), 
installing sign or fence posts, guard rail or cable rail foundations (excluding end anchorage 
foundations), or other contract items where the small quantity of concrete is not paid for 
separately, as approved by the Engineer. Requirements for small incidental quantity 
consideration are described in subsections c.5.G, d.2.B and d.3 of this special provision. 
The corresponding weekly QA test results must meet specification limits defined in Table 3. 

Specification Limits. The threshold values placed on a quality characteristic used to evaluate 
the quality of the material. 

Strength Sample Test Result. The average of the two companion 28-day compressive 
strength test specimens taken from the same sample of concrete is considered a strength 
sample test result. 

Strength Test Specimen. A strength test specimen is an individual 6-inch by 12-inch strength 
test cylinder or 4-inch by 8-inch strength test cylinder molded and cured according to 
AASHTO T23/ASTM C 31 and tested according to AASHTO T22/ASTM C 39. All respective 
QC or QA strength test specimens must be the same nominal size. Strength test specimen 
cylinder size of 4-inch by 8-inch is permitted only if the nominal maximum coarse aggregate 
particle size, as specified for the coarse aggregate in the concrete mixture, is 1-inch, or less. 

Sublot. A portion of a production lot, represented by a complete set of QA tests, as described 
in subsection d.2.A of this special provision. The Engineer and the Contractor may agree to 
reduce the typical sublot size based on project staging or other project conditions. 

Supplementary Cementitious Materials (SCM). A mineral admixture (slag cement, fly ash) 
used to replace a portion of the Portland cement, either individually or as a blended cement, 
in the concrete mixture. SCM requirements are described in subsection c.5 of this special 
provision. 

b. Materials. Mixture requirements must be in accordance with the contract. 

c. Contractor Administered Quality Control (QC). 

1. Contractor Quality Control Plan (QC plan). Prepare, implement, and maintain a QC 
plan specific to the project for concrete that will provide quality oversight for production, 
testing, and control of construction processes. The QC plan must be in conformance with 
the contract and must identify all procedures used to control production and placement 
including when to initiate corrective action necessary to maintain the quality and uniformity 
of the work. 

Develop concrete mix designs and JMFs, as specified, and conduct QC sampling, testing, 
and inspection during all phases of the concrete work at the minimum frequency, or at an 
increased frequency sufficient to ensure that the work conforms to specification 
requirements. 

Project-specific items required in the QC plan include (where applicable), but are not limited 
to the following: 

A. Organization chart. 



CFS:JFS 4 of 21 

B. QC Plan Administrator and contact information. 

C. The name(s) and credentials of the QC staff. 

12SP-604A-10 
06-14-19 

D. Methods for interaction between production and QC personnel to engage timely 
corrective action, including suspension of work. 

E. Coordination of activities. 

F. Documentation, procedures, and submittals. 

G. Project and plant specifics. 

H. Concrete production facilities inspections and certifications. 

I. Current testing equipment calibration documentation including calibration factor. 

J. Testing and initial field curing facilities for QC and QA strength test specimens 
(MSHTO T23/ASTM C 31 ). 

K. Stockpile management plan. 

L. Corrective action plan. 

M. Mixing time and transportation, including time from batching to completion of 
delivery and batch placement rate (batches per hour), along with the manufacturer's 
documentation relative to the batching equipment's capabilities in terms of maximum 
mixing capacity and minimum mixing time (ASTM C 94). 

N. Placement and consolidation methods including monitoring of vibration, depth 
checks, and verification of pavement dowel bar alignment. 

0. Process for monitoring stability of air content of fresh concrete during concrete 
production and placement. 

P. Hot and cold weather protection considerations and methods. 

Q. Control charts with action and suspension limits. 

R Verification for non-deleterious alkali-silica reactivity (see subsection c.5.A of this 
special provision). 

S. Mix design and JMFs. 

T. Proposed production lot size and location for use of each JMF on the project. 

U. The frequency of sampling, testing, and yield verification. 

V. Handling, protection, initial curing, and transporting of strength test specimens 
(AASHTO T23/ASTM C31). 



CFS:JFS 5 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

W. Methods to monitor construction equipment loading and open-to-traffic strengths. 

X. Finishing and curing procedure. 

Y. Ride quality control. 

Z. List of QC records to be submitted to the Engineer in accordance with subsection 
c.2 of this special provision. 

Submit the QC plan, for the appropriate items of work, to the Engineer for review a minimum 
of 1 O working days before the start of related work. The Engineer will notify the Contractor 
of any objections relative to the content of the QC plan within 5 working days of receipt of 
the QC plan. Do not begin concrete placement before acceptance of the QC plan by the 
Engineer. If the approved QC plan fails to provide acceptable work, or acceptable control of 
the work, the Engineer may require the Contractor to revise the QC plan. Revisions to the 
QC plan must be approved by the Engineer prior to resuming work. 

2. QC Records. Maintain complete records of all QC tests and inspections. Document 
what action was taken to correct deficiencies. Include sufficient information to allow the test 
results to be correlated with the items of work represented. 

Furnish one copy of all QC records, including test reports for the fresh concrete placement, 
to the Engineer within 24 hours. after the date covered by the record in a format acceptable 
to the Engineer. The Engineer will withhold acceptance of the concrete for failure to provide 
properly documented and timely QC records and reports. 

If the Engineer is performing QA sampling and testing at the same time the Contractor is 
performing QC sampling and testing, all associated QC records must include the appropriate 
production lot identification number that correlates with the Department's QA production lot 
identification number. 

3. Personnel Requirements. The QC Plan Administrator must have full authority and . 
responsibility to take all actions necessary for the successful implementation of the QC plan, 
including but not limited to, the following: 

A. Monitoring and utilizing QC tests, control charts, and other QC practices to 
ensure that delivered materials and proportioning meets specification requirements. 

8. Monitoring materials shipped to the project, prior to their use, to ensure their 
continued compatibility toward producing consistent quality. 

C. Periodically inspecting all equipment utilized in transporting, proportioning, 
mixing, placing, consolidating, finishing, and curing to ensure proper operation. 

D. Monitoring materials stockpile management, concrete batching, mixing, 
transporting, placement, consolidation, finishing, and curing to ensure conformance with 
specification requirements. 

E. Maintaining and submitting all QC records and reports. 

F. Directing the necessary corrective action to ensure continual conformance within 



CFS:JFS 

the QC action limits. 

6 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

G. Suspending production for the project when suspension limits are exceeded. 

H. Conducting or monitoring adjustments to the JMF. 

Individuals performing QC tests must demonstrate that they are proficient and capable 
of sampling and testing concrete or aggregate, where applicable, in accordance with the 
associated test procedures and Department requirements prior to commencement of 
related work. Any adjustments to the JMF must be made by a certified concrete 
technician (Michigan Concrete Association (MCA) Michigan Level II). 

4. QC Laboratory Requirements. Laboratories, including field laboratories and all 
associated testing equipment that prepare concrete mixes or perform QC testing, must 
demonstrate to the Engineer that they are equipped, staffed, calibrated, and managed so as 
to be capable of batching, and testing PCC in accordance with the applicable test methods 
and procedures. Mix designs and their accompanying JMFs must include a statement, 
signed by a certified concrete technician (MCA Michigan Level II), that all applicable 
standard test methods have been followed in verifying the mix design and JMF. 

5. Mix Design and Documentation. Design concrete mixtures meeting the requirements 
specified in Table 1. Provide the grade of concrete for the section number reference 
application specified in Table 1, or as specified in the contract. Request variance in writing 
when proposing a mix design that exhibits temperature, slump or air content other than those 
specified. Include the proposed mix design, JMF, and associated trial batch verification test 
data. Do not use a grade of concrete with a lower specification limit (LSL) 28-day 
compressive strength greater than what is designated for the application. 

Blended cement meeting the requirements of ASTM C 595 Type IL is permitted. 

Ensure supplementary cementitious materials are from an MOOT Approved Manufacturer. 
Slag cement must meet the requirements of subsection 901.06 of the Standard 
Specifications for Construction. Fly ash must meet the requirements of subsection 901.07 
of the Standard Specifications for Construction. 

Secure prior approval from the Engineer to use concrete intended for early opening to traffic 
to facilitate driveway gaps or other features necessary for required local access. 

Unless otherwise specified in the contract, set accelerating admixtures are prohibited. 

Optimized aggregate gradation is required for high performance concrete and concrete 
mixtures that are placed using a pump. Concrete mixtures for tremie and drilled shaft 
applications do not require optimized aggregate gradation. The physical requirements for 
coarse and intermediate aggregates specified in subsection 902.03.C of the Standard 
Specifications for Construction apply to high performance concrete pavement mixtures. The 
physical requirements for aggregates used in concrete mixtures for all other applications will 
be according to the contract. 

Unless otherwise specified in the contract, provide either concrete Grade P1 or Grade D for 
bridge approach slab applications. 



CFS:JFS 7 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

Unless otherwise specified in the contract, do not exceed 40 percent replacement of the 
Portland cement in the concrete mixture with a supplementary cementitious material. Do 
not exceed 40 percent total replacement of the Portland cement if more than one 
supplementary cementitious material is used in the concrete mixture. 

Use the combined weight of all cementitious materials to determine compliance with the 
maximum water-cementitious ratio and cementitious material content requirements specified 
in Table 1. 

For night casting, where applicable, a water-reducing admixture may be used in lieu of a 
water-reducing and retarding admixture, provided the concrete can be placed and finished 
in the sequence specified on the plans prior to initial set, is not subjected to residual vibration, 
or is not within the areas influenced by dead load deflections as a result of adjacent concrete 
placement operations. When the maximum air temperature is not forecast to exceed 60 
degrees F for the day, the Contractor may use a water-reducing admixture or a water
reducing retarding admixture. 



CFS:JFS 

a e m1mum T bl 1 M' . 
Mix Design Parameter 

P1M 
(a,b,e) 

Lower Specification Limit (LSL) 
3500 

(28-day compressive, psi) 
Rejection Limit for an Individual 

3000 
Strength Sample Test Result 

Maximum Water/Cementitious Ratio 
(lb/lb) (c) 

Cementitious Material Content 
470-564 

(lb/vd3) (d) 
Air Content (percent) (f) 
Slump (inch) (max.) 
Section Number Reference (h) 602,603 

M' D IX 

8 of 21 

R es1gn equ1remen s or t f C t oncre e 
Grade of Concrete 

P1 D,DM 
T 

S1 
(a,b) (a,b,e) {a) 

3500 4500 3500 4000 

3000 4000 3000 3500 

0.45 

517-611 517-658 517-611 517-611 

5.5-8.5 
(a) 

602,603, 706,711, 706,718 705 
801, 802, 712 
803,810 

12SP-604A-10 
06-14-19 

S2,S2M S3/P2 
(a,b,e) (a) 

3500 3000 

3000 2500 

517-611 489-517 

401, 706, 402,403, 
712, 713, 602,803, 
718,801, 804,806, 
802, 803, 808, 810, 
810,819 813,814 

a. If the local average minimum temperature In the next 1 O consecutive days is forecast lo be below 40 degrees F, submit a revised QC plan for 
the Engineer's approval, addressing in detail changes in materials, concrete batching and mixing processes, construction methods, curing, 
and protection of the in situ concrete to ensure that the necessary quality characteristics of the hardened concrete product will not be 
compromised as a result of the cold weather. The revised QC plan must be approved by the Engineer prior to cold weather concrete placement. 
Do not remove supplementary cementitious material from the concrete mixture. 

b. Use aggregates from only geologically natural sources for pavement, shoulder, miscellaneous pavement (including ramps), concrete pavement 
overlay, bridge approach slab, structural concrete, drilled shaft, bridge railing, and bridge sidewalk applications. 

C, Use admixtures as listed in the Qualified Products Lists to reduce mixing water. Ensure concrete in concrete diaphragms contains a water-
reducing admixture, or a water-reducing retarding admixture. 

d. Type Ill cement is not permitted. 
e. For grades of concrete requiring optimized gradation, aggregates must meet the physical requirements specified in subsection 902.03.C of the 

Standard Specifications for Construction. 
f. For action, suspension, and specification limits, see Tables 2 and 3, where applicable. 
g, The maximum slump for Grades P1, P1 M, and P2 concrete is 3 inches or as documented on the approved JMF. All other grades of concrete 

will be accordin!l to Table 701-1 of the Standard Soecifications for Construction. 
h. Section Number Reference: 402 Storm Sewers 

401 Pipe Culverts 602 Concrete Pavement Construction 
403 Drainage Structures 705 Foundation Piling 
603 Concrete Pavement Restoration 711 Bridge Railings 
706 Structural Concrete Construction 713 Bridge Rehabilitation-Steel 
712 Bridge Rehabilitation-Concrete 801 Concrete Driveways 
718 IJrilled Shafts 803 Concrete Sidewalk, Sidewalk Ramps, and Steps 
802 Concrete Curb, Gutter and Dividers 806 Shared Use Paths 
804 Concrete Barriers and Glare Screens 810 Permanent Traffic Signs and Supports 
808 Fencing 814 Paved Ditches 
813 Slope Protection 
819 Electrical and Lighting 



CFS:JFS 9 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

A. Alkali-Silica Reactivity. Provide documentation to the Engineer that the concrete 
mixture does not present the potential for deleterious expansion caused by alkali-silica 
reactivity (ASR). Provide current ASR test results (valid for 2 years from completion of 
testing), for the fine aggregate that is proposed to be used in the concrete, from an 
independent testing laboratory proficient in ASR testing. The independent testing 
laboratory must certify in writing, including a signed statement that all testing was 
conducted in accordance with the designated standard test procedures, described 
herein. Test results must conform to the specified criterion for one of the following 
standard test methods. ASR testing is not required for concrete pavement repairs and 
temporary concrete pavements. Use the Rounding Method described in ASTM E 29 
when determining significant digits for reporting expansion test results. 

(1) Method 1. ASTM C 1293. Concrete Prism Test. If the expansion of concrete 
prisms is not greater than 0.040 percent (rounded to the nearest 0.001 percent) 
after 1 year, the fine aggregate is considered non-deleterious to ASR and may 
be used in the JMF. 

(2) Method 2. ASTM C 1567. Mortar Bar Test. If no previous test data are 
available for the fine aggregate that shows it is resistant to ASR using Method 1, 
above, replace 25 to 40 percent of the Portland cement in the concrete mixture with 
a supplementary cementitious material. A blended cement meeting the requirements 
of ASTM C 595 containing the above Portland cement and supplementary 
cementitious material proportions may also be used. 

Demonstrate the ability of the supplementary cementitious material to control the 
deleterious expansion caused by ASR by molding and testing mortar bars according 
to the standard test method described in ASTM C 1567 using the mix proportions 
and constituent sources for both the aggregates and the cementitious materials that 
will be used for the project. Make at least three test specimens for each cementitious 
materials-aggregate combination. If the average of three mortar bars for a given 
cementitious materials-aggregate combination produces an expansion less than 
0.1 0 percent (rounded to the nearest 0.01 percent) at 14 days of immersion, the JMF 
associated with that combination will be considered non-deleterious to ASR. If the 
average expansion is 0.1 0 percent (rounded to the nearest 0.01 percent) or greater, 
the JMF associated with that combination will be considered not sufficient to control 
the deleterious expansion caused by ASR and the JMF will be rejected. 

(3) Method 3. ASTM C 1260. Mortar Bar Test. If the expansion of the mortar 
bars is less than 0.10 percent (rounded to the nearest 0.01 percent) at 14 days of 
immersion, the fine aggregate is considered non-deleterious to ASR and may be 
used in the concrete without the need for ASR mitigation. 

The Engineer will not approve the use of the JMF if the expansion exceeds the 
respective threshold limits for the respective ASTM test method used. 

B. Contractor Provided Mixes. Provide mix design and accompanying JMFs using 
the methods of verification included in this special provision. Include sufficient 
information on constituent materials and admixtures along with trial batch verified 
physical properties of the fresh concrete, mix proportions per cubic yard for all 
constituents and compressive strength test results necessary to allow the Engineer to 



CFS:JFS 10 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

fully evaluate the expected performance of the concrete mixture. 

(1) Mix Documentation. Prepare mix designs for each grade of concrete required 
on the project. Submit JMF for each mix design, including all required 
documentation, to the Engineer for review 1 O working days before the anticipated 
date of placement. The Engineer will notify the Contractor of any objections within 5 
working days of receipt of the mix documentation. Number or otherwise identify each 
JMF and reference all accompanying documentation to this identification. Reference 
each JMF to the appropriate method of verification. Mix design and JMF submittals 
that do not include all required documentation will be considered incomplete and the 
Engineer will return them without review. 

Mix documentation is valid for 2 years provided the material characteristics have not 
deviated beyond the requirements specified in the contract. 

All mix designs and accompanying JMFs must be traceable to a laboratory meeting 
the requirements of this special provision. 

Submit mix design and JMF on the MOOT Job Mix Formula (JMF) Concrete Field 
Communication form (MOOT Form Number 1976); include accompanying 
documentation. List the source of materials, bulk density (unit weight) of coarse 
aggregate (rodding procedure or shoveling procedure), absorption of aggregates, 
relative density (specific gravity) of aggregates, aggregate correction factors, batch 
weights, and project specific or historical laboratory test data. Include the recorded 
air content of fresh concrete using the same admixture and cementitious material 
sources to be used in the production of the concrete for the project. A JMF will be 
approved only if all of the minimum mix design requirements specified in the contract 
have been met. 

(2) Job Mix Formula (JMF). Select proportions for concrete mixtures according 
to AC/ Standard 211.1. The volume (oven-dry-rodded) of coarse aggregate per unit 
volume of concrete must be 65 percent, minimum. 

Four methods of verification of proposed JMF are acceptable. 

(a) Method 1. Trial Batches. Verification of JMF is based on trial batches 
with the same materials and proportions proposed for use on the project. Prepare 
at least one trial batch for each mix design in sufficient time before starting 
concrete placement to allow for review according to subsection c.5.B.(1) of this 
special provision. Provide the results of temperature, slump, density (unit 
weight), air content of fresh concrete, 28-day compressive strength, and age of 
concrete at the time of strength testing, for a minimum of three independent 
samples. All samples may be taken from a single trial batch for a mix design 
provided the trial batch is at least four cubic yards in volume. For JMF trial batch 
verification purposes only, 7-day compressive strength test results which report 
at least 70 percent of the specified 28-day lower specification limit (LSL) will be 
sufficient documentation in lieu of 28-day compressive strengths. The average 
of at least two strength test specimens represents one compressive strength 
sample test result for each independent sample. Provide ·the necessary ASR 
documentation as described in subsection c.5.A of this special provision. 



CFS:JFS 11 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

(b) Method 2. Same Mix. Verification of JMF is based on the concrete 
producer's experience with the same mix design, JMF, and the same materials. 
Provide the results of temperature, slump, density (unit weight), air content of 
fresh concrete, 28-day compressive strength, and age of concrete at the time of 
strength testing, for a minimum of three independent samples. The average of 
at least two strength test specimens represents one compressive strength 
sample test result for each independent sample. Do not substitute material types 
or sources, including admixtures or cementitious materials, nor change mix 
proportions in the JMF. Provide the necessary ASR documentation as described 
in subsection c.5.A of this special provision. 

(c) Method 3. Similar Mix. Verification of JMF is based on requirements 
described in Method 2, in subsection c.5.B.(2).(b) of this special provision. 
Substitution of coarse aggregate source is permitted if the new source is of the 
same geologic type as the original aggregate, and conforms to the specification 
requirements for the application. Substitution of fine aggregate is permitted only 
if the new source has been tested for ASR. Provide the necessary ASR 
documentation as described in subsection c.5.A of this special provision. 

Provide the supporting laboratory trial batch documentation and accompanying 
calculations showing how the mix proportions in the JMF were adjusted, based 
on the documented differences in relative density (specific gravity), bulk density 
(unit weight) and absorption of the substituted aggregate sources, to produce a 
theoretical yield of 100 percent and the required fresh concrete properties. 

(d) Method 4. Annual Verification. At the Engineer's option, verification may 
be accepted annually for a concrete producer rather than on a project basis 
provided the sources and proportions of the constituent materials, including 
cementitious materials and source and types admixtures, do not change. If the 
project is the continuation of work in progress during the previous construction 
season and written certification is submitted to the Engineer that materials from 
the same source and with the same mixture properties are to be used, the 
Engineer may waive the requirement for annual renewal verification of the JMF 
for the project. Provide the necessary ASR documentation as described in 
subsection c.5.A of this special provision. 

C. Department Provided Mixes. Unless otherwise specified in the contract or 
approved by the Engineer, the Engineer will provide the concrete JMF for the following 
types of concrete regardless of the total quantity for the project. 

(1) Structural concrete patching mixtures, mortar and grout. 

(2) Bridge deck overlay concrete mixtures. 

(3) Project-specific concrete mixtures and grades not defined in Table 1. 

Provide all other mix designs and accompanying JMF's according to subsection c.5.B 
of this special provision. 

The ASR documentation for the fine aggregate described in subsection c.5.A of this 
special provision must accompany the Contractor's request for the concrete JMF. 



CFS:JFS 12 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

D. Changes in Materials and Proportions. Any changing from one approved JMF to 
another for the same grade of concrete must have prior approval by the Engineer. 

Prior to batching, verify that the proposed JMF changes will not affect the properties of 
the fresh concrete (slump, temperature, air content, density (unit weight), workability), 
nor result in deleterious mortar bar expansion as a result of ASR, as described in 
subsection c.5.A of this special provision. 

Record all changes to JMF in the QC records along with the rationale for the change. 

E. QC Sampling and Testing. Conduct startup sampling and testing for 
temperature, slump, density (unit weight), and air content on the first load. Do not pl~ce 
concrete until testing verifies that the fresh concrete properties have not exceeded the 
QC action and suspension limit thresholds specified in Table 2 and the testing correlation 
requirements of subsection d.1.B of this special provision have been met. Continue 
testing subsequent loads as described in the QC plan, for each grade of concrete 
delivered to the work site each day. The QC sampling and testing must be random and 
independent from the Agencies QA sampling and testing. 

Provide the curing facilities in accordance with subsection d.2.C of this special provision 
prior to start of concrete production. 

Perform QC sampling and testing for air content of fresh concrete that is either slipformed 
or pumped, as described in the QC plan. Sample and test a representative haul unit of 
concrete immediately after its discharge but before the slipform paver or pump hopper, 
where applicable. Sample and test the concrete representing the same haul unit, again, 
after the slipform paver or after discharge from the pump (without interruption or 
alteration of the pumping operation), where applicable. If the difference in measured air 
content between the two test locations for the same concrete is greater than 1.5 percent 
air by volume of concrete, suspend operations and administer corrective action. Resume 
concrete placement only after taking the necessary corrective action to reduce the loss 
in air content of fresh concrete between the two test locations, as approved by the 
Engineer. Document the corrective action to be taken in the QC records and make the 
necessary changes to the QC plan, where applicable. 

Concrete exceeding the maximum specification limits for slump or temperature must be 
rejected regardless of the total mixing time at the time of arrival to the project. 

The Engineer may require the Contractor to administer additional QC sampling and 
testing if the Engineer determines the Contractor's current QC sampling and testing 
methodology is shown to be insufficient to ensure continual control of the quality of the 
concrete. 

Take the appropriate corrective action, as described in the QC plan, when QC testing 
shows the QC action limits for any quality characteristic are exceeded. Suspend 
production if any of the QC suspension limits are exceeded or if the corrective action is 
not sufficient to restore the quality to acceptable levels. 

Resume production only after making all necessary adjustments to bring the mixture into 
conformance with all applicable specifications and receiving approval to resume work 



CFS:JFS 13 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

from the Engineer. Document these adjustments in the QC records. 
T bl 2 QC A f d S . L. 't a e c 10n an us pension 1m1s 

Quality Characteristic Action Limits Suspension Limits 
Air Content (percent) See Note Below < 5.0 or > 9.0 

Air Content Loss (percent) Greater than 1.5 
Cone. Temp. (Dei:i. F) As Defined in the < 45 or > 90 at time of placement 
Slump (max.) (inch) Contractor QC plan See Table 1, footnote (i:i) 
Density (unit weii:iht) N/A 

Note: Action limits must be defined in the Contractor QC plan and cannot be < 5.5 or> 8.5. 
Suspend work if air content is < 5.0 or> 9.0 percent after pump or paver, regardless of the air 
content loss. 

F. Work Progress Test Specimens. Determine the strength of concrete for opening 
to construction traffic or regular traffic, for removing shoring and forms, or for similar 
purposes in accordance with subsections 104.11, 601.03.H and 701.03.D of the Standard 
Specifications for Construction, and as approved by the Engineer. Cure work progress 
test specimens in the same manner as the in-situ concrete. Allow the Engineer to witness 
testing of work progress test specimens. 

The maturity method may be used to determine the in-place, opening-to-traffic flexural 
strength, provided the necessary preliminary flexural strength versus time-temperature 
factor correlation, using the same materials and JMF, is established according to 
Department procedures and approved by the Engineer before placing the concrete. 

G. Reduced QC for Small Incidental Quantities. If approved by the Engineer, reduced 
levels of on-site QC testing for concrete may be considered for small incidental quantities 
defined in subsection a.1 of this special provision. 

Unless approved by the Engineer, multiple small incidental quantities, including ones that 
are consecutively placed throughout the project on the same day, are not eligible for 
reduced QC consideration if the total plan quantity of concrete for the item exceeds 100 
cubic yards in volume. Include details for reduced QC testing and oversight in the 
approved QC plan, and in accordance with following: 

(1) The small incidental quantity of concrete will be limited to a single day's 
concrete placement of a maximum 20 cubic yards in volume. 

(2) The small incidental quantity of concrete is not an integral part of a structural 
load bearing element. 

(3) The Engineer received written certification from the Contractor that the 
concrete supplier has a current QC plan in place and available for review upon request 
by the Engineer. 

(4) The concrete supplier employs a certified concrete technician (MCA Michigan 
Level II) available at the plant or on call during concrete placement to validate and 
authorize modifications to the concrete JMF, as necessary. 

(5) Prior to the first concreting operation, concrete representing the JMF for the 
small incidental quantity has been sampled and tested by a certified concrete 
technician (MCA Michigan Level I or II) to verify that, historically, the JMF produced a 



CFS:JFS 14 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

concrete mixture meeting the minimum requirements for density (unit weight), slump, 
air content, and strength. Annual verification may be acceptable provided there are 
no changes to the material types or sources, including the cementitious materials and 
admixtures. 

(6) The Engineer verified that the temperature, slump, and air content conform to 
specification requirements at the start of the day's concreting operation associated 
with the small incidental quantity. 

(7) The Engineer is notified and provided sufficient opportunity to witness concrete 
placement. 

d. Department Administered Quality Assurance (Acceptance). 

1. Department Quality Assurance Plan (QA plan). The Engineer will be responsible for 
administering the quality-based acceptance and will institute any actions necessary toward its 
successful implementation. 

Acceptance of concrete pavement repair mixtures and concrete mixtures not included in Table 
1 will be in accordance with the contract. 

The Engineer will develop and follow a QA plan. The Engineer will provide the QA plan to the 
QC Plan Administrator a minimum of 5 working days prior to the pre-production meeting. The 
QA plan will be reviewed at the pre-production meeting and any proposed changes will be 
documented. 

The nominal QA strength test specimen size, defined in subsection a.1 of this special provision 
will be noted in the QA plan. 

A. Personnel Requirements. The personnel responsible for field inspection and for 
obtaining QA samples will possess the required qualifications to collect QA samples. 
Sampling will be performed by a certified concrete technician (MCA Michigan Level I or II) 
or (MCAT) certified aggregate technician, where applicable. 

B. Testing Correlation. Prior to initial concrete placement, the testing personnel for 
both the Engineer's QA and Contractor's QC will use the equipment they have assigned 
to the project to conduct side by side correlation testing of the same concrete used on the 
project to verify correlation of both the Department's and the Contractor's test results for 
temperature and air content of fresh concrete. Additional side by side correlation testing 
will be conducted whenever there is a change in QC or QA equipment and/or testing 
personnel for the project, or as directed by the Engineer. The temperature measuring 
devices used for QC and QA must correlate with each other within 2 degrees F. If the air 
content results of the side by side tests conducted by the QC and QA testers and 
equipment differ by more than 0.8 percent air by volume of concrete, a referee air content 
test of fresh concrete must be conducted by a third party, designated by the Engineer but 
independent of the project, prior to commencement or continuation of concrete placement 
in efforts to resolve issues associated with non-correlation. 

C. Laboratory Facilities. The testing laboratory with responsibility for acceptance 
testing on this project is the Department testing laboratory, or a qualified facility under the 
authority of the Engineer. 



CFS:JFS 15 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

2. QA Sampling and Testing. The Engineer will verify the Contractor's daily startup 
sampling and testing of temperature, slump, and air content of fresh concrete on the first load; 
conduct QA sampling and testing; monitor Contractor adherence to the QC plan; and inspect 
field placed materials in such a manner as to ensure that all concrete for the project is 
represented. The testing correlation requirements of subsection d.1.8 of this special provision 
must be met prior to concrete placement. 

The following ASTM test methods will apply. The Department's established procedures for 
sampling and testing are acceptable alternatives. 

C 31 Practice for Making and Curing Concrete Test Specimens in the Field 

C 39 Test Method for Compressive Strength of Cylindrical Concrete Specimens 

C 78 Test Method for Flexural Strength of Concrete (Using Simple Beam with Third-Point 
Loading) 

C 138 Test Method for Density (Unit Weight), Yield and Air Content (Gravimetric) of Concrete 

C 143 Test Method for Slump of Hydraulic-Cement Concrete 

C 172 Practice for Sampling Freshly Mixed Concrete 

C 173 Test Method for Air Content of Freshly Mixed Concrete by the Volumetric Method 

C 231 Test Method for Air Content of Freshly Mixed Concrete by the Pressure Method 

C 293 Test Method for Flexural Strength of Concrete (Using Simple Beam with Center-Point 
Loading) 

A. Lot Size and Make Up. A production lot will not include more than one grade of 
concrete, concrete of the same grade having different specified slump or air content, or 
concrete of the same grade having different mix designs, or JMFs. Lot size and makeup 
will be determined by the Engineer, based on site conditions. A production lot may consist 
of a single day's production, individual concrete structural elements (eg. footing, column, 
pier cap, deck, bridge approach slab), or any combination thereof, provided they are of 
the same JMF. Each production lot will be divided into sublots of approximately equal 
size, as determined by the Engineer. The minimum number of sublots will be one per 
production lot, with the maximum number of sublots based on the anticipated total quantity 
of concrete to be placed and site conditions. A minimum of one sublot will be required for 
each day of production. 

8. Sampling. QA sampling and testing will be conducted by the Engineer during 
concrete placement. Where practical, the random number method (as described in the 
"Random Sampling for Quality Control/Quality Assurance Projects" section of the 
Materials Quality Assurance Procedures Manual) will be used to determine the sampling 
locations. The sampling rate will be determined by the Engineer, based on the anticipated 
total quantity of concrete to be placed and site conditions, with a minimum of one sampling 
for each day of production. 



CFS:JFS 16 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

At the option of the Engineer, small incidental quantities as defined in subsection a.1 of 
this special provision may be accepted (visually inspected and noted on the Inspector's 
Daily Report) without daily 28-day compressive strength QA test specimens provided 
there is a current acceptable strength test history of the JMF for the project prior to 
placement of the small incidental quantity. One set of compressive strength QA test 
specimens will then be molded for each small incidental quantity JMF at least once per 
week during production, thereafter, as determined by the Engineer (note the test results 
or identification number for the corresponding weekly QA compressive strength test result 
on the Inspector's Daily Report for each small incidental quantity). Quality control testing 
and daily QA testing for temperature, slump, and air content of fresh concrete are still 
required. Reduced QC for small incidental quantities, as described in subsection c.5.G of 
this special provision, may be considered. 

The QA sampling rate and sample location will be based on cubic yard quantities. 

Samples for acceptance will be taken at the point of discharge from the haul unit, at 
approximately the middle one-third of the load. Mix adjustments to the concrete contained 
within the haul unit selected for QA sampling and testing (beyond normal QC) will not be 
permitted prior to QA sampling and testing. QA sampling will be random and without prior 
notification. 

The Engineer will perform QA sampling and testing for air content loss of fresh concrete 
that is either slipformed or pumped, (1) at least once during each day of production, (2) 
whenever the concrete pump is relocated, where applicable, or (3) whenever there is a 
significant change in the boom configuration or operation of the concrete pump, or there 
is a significant change in the characteristics of the paving operation during concrete 
placement. Concrete will be sampled from a representative haul unit immediately after its 
discharge but before the slipform paver or pump hopper, where applicable. The concrete 
representing the same haul unit will then be sampled and tested after the slipform paver 
or after discharge from the pump (without interruption or alteration of the pumping 
operation), where applicable. If the difference in measured air content between the two 
test locations for the same concrete is greater than 1.5 percent air by volume of concrete, 
the Engineer will issue a Notice of Non-Compliance with Contract Requirements (Form 
1165), as described in subsection d.2.D of this special provision. The Contractor may 
resume concrete placement only after the necessary corrective action is taken to reduce 
the loss in air content of fresh concrete between the two test locations, as approved by 
the Engineer. Document the corrective action that was taken by the Contractor. 

C. Testing. The location(s) within the project limits for QA testing of the fresh concrete 
and placement of curing facilities for initial curing of the 28-day compressive strength QA 
test cylinders will be determined by the Engineer in conformance with the following criteria: 

(1) The elapsed time between obtaining the first and the final portion of the 
composite sample must not exceed 15 minutes. 

(2) Testing for slump, temperature, and air content of fresh concrete must begin 
within 5 minutes after obtaining the final portion of the composite sample. 

(3) Molding of the 28-day compressive strength QA test cylinders must begin 
within 15 minutes after obtaining the final portion of the composite sample. 



CFS:JFS 17 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

(4) The concrete sample must be protected from the sun, wind, and other sources 
of rapid evaporation, and from contamination. 

Two QA concrete strength test specimens per sample will be molded for 28-day 
compressive strength QA testing. 

The Contractor will provide curing facilities equipped to ensure the proper environment for 
the Agencies QA concrete strength test specimens during initial cure. Each initial cure 
facility must provide ventilation or insulation, where applicable, to ensure the ambient 
temperature surrounding the specimens is maintained according to AASHTO T23/ASTM 
C 31. Failure by the Contractor to maintain the proper curing environment during initial 
cure will not be basis for rejection of samples or claims against th~ Department. Each 
initial curing facility must be capable of being locked, using an Department provided 
padlock. The Contractor will ensure that all initial curing facilities are accounted for at all 
time, and protected against theft and damage. The Contractor will place and secure each 
initial cure facility throughout the project limits in such a manner so as to minimize 
excessive transport of the test specimens prior to initial cure, as follows: 

(5) Immediately after finishing molded specimens, the Engineer will move the QA 
concrete strength test specimens to the closest initial cure facility provided by the 
Contractor. 

(6) Immediately after all QA concrete strength test specimens are placed into the 
cure facility and the proper initial curing conditions have been established, the 
Engineer will secure the facility using the Department provided padlock. Access to the 
QA concrete strength test specimens, thereafter, must be coordinated with the 
Engineer and will only be permitted in the presence of the Engineer. 

(7) The Engineer will transport the QA concrete strength test specimens within 48 
hours after molding, but not prior to 8 hours after final set of the concrete, from the 
initial curing facility to the Department's designated testing laboratory for final curing 
and strength testing. The specimens will be protected with a suitable cushioning 
material to prevent damage from jarring during transport. The total transportation time 
must not exceed 4 hours prior to commencement of final curing. 

D. QA Stop Production Criteria. The Engineer will issue a Notice of Non-Compliance 
with Contract Requirements (Form 1165) and concrete production must stop when one or 
more of the following are observed. 

(1) The QA testing shows that one or more of the suspension limits for quality 
characteristics defined in Table 2 are in non-compliance. 

(2) The QC plan is not being followed. 

(3) Segregation, excessive slumping of unsupported slipformed edges, or other 
notable changes in the fresh concrete properties is observed that may prevent proper 
placement, consolidation and finishing, or compromise the performance or long-term 
durability of the finished product. 

(4) The required curing system is not being applied in a timely manner, as 
specified by the contract. 



CFS:JFS 18 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

(5) If the measured air content loss between the two testing locations for the same 
concrete is greater than 1.5 percent air by volume of concrete as described in 
subsections c.5.E and d.2.B of this special provision. 

(6) If the air content of fresh concrete is less than 5.0 or greater than 9.0 percent 
after pump or paver, regardless of the recorded QC or QA air content loss through the 
pump or paver. 

The Engineer will issue a Notice to Resume Work (Form 1165) only after all necessary 
adjustments are made to restore conformance with all applicable specifications, and the 
appropriate documentation is made in the QC records. 

E. QA Records. The Engineer will maintain a complete record of all QA tests and 
inspections. The records will contain, as a minimum, signed originals of all QA test results 
and raw data, random numbers used (where applicable) and resulting calculations. The 
QA test results will not be provided to the Contractor until the corresponding QC test 
results are received by the Engineer. 

3. Quality Index Analysis. The Engineer's QA test results will be used to determine the 
pay factor (PF) and price adjustment (ADJ). The Contractor's QC test results will not be used 
for pay factor and price adjustment analysis. The Engineer will complete pay factor and price 
adjustment analysis within 7 working days after completion of all 28-day compressive strength 
testing for the representative production lot or quantity of concrete. The quality index 
parameter specification limits are defined in Table 3. Unless otherwise specified in the 
contract, concrete not conforming to the requirements specified in Table 3 is rejectable and 
subject to further evaluation. All values of PF and OLPF in these formulae are decimal, not 
percent. All values of PF and OLPF are rounded to two decimal places. 

Price adjustment for 28-day compressive strength deficiencies will be based on test results 
for the corresponding weekly QA test specimens and the pay factor (PFs) calculated 
according to the formula defined in subsection d.3.A. The price adjustment (ADJ) = (PFs -
1)(Price). 

Table 3: Qualit Index Parameter S ecification Limits 
Qualit Characteristic S ecification Limits 

Air Content of Fresh Concrete ercent 5.5 - 8.5 
Re'e <5.0 or >9.0 

Cone 
Slum See Table 1, footnote 
28-d For LSL see Table 1 

Rejection Limit -
28-da ressive Stren th 

See Table 1 

A. Pay Factor for 28-Day Compressive Strength (PFs). 

Where: 

Tested Strength 
PFs = 

LSL 



CFS:JFS 19 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

PFs = Pay Factor for 28-day compressive strength (not to exceed 1.00) 

Tested Strength = QA 28-day compressive strength sample test result 

LSL = Lower specification limit (see Table 1) 

If the tested strength does not meet the rejection limit specified in Table 1, the Engineer 
will require additional evaluation as described in subsection d.4 of this special provision. 

B. Pay Factor for Air Content of Fresh Concrete (PFac). The pay factor for air content 
of fresh concrete (PFac) will be according to Table 4. 

Table 4: Air Content of Fresh Concrete Pay Factor i PFac) 
Air Content of Fresh 

Pay Factor (PFac) Concrete (percent) 
5.5 - 8.5 1.00 
5.0 - 5.4 0.50 
Below 5.0 Rejection 
8.6 - 9.0 0.75 

Above 9.0 Rejection 

If the air content of fresh concrete is below 5.0 or above 9.0 percent, the Engineer will 
elect to do one of the following. 

(1) Require removal and replacement of the entire quantity of concrete 
represented by the test with new testing conducted on the replacement concrete and 
repeat the evaluation procedure. 

(2) Allow submittal of a corrective action plan for the Engineer's approval. If the 
Engineer does not approve the plan for corrective action, subsection d.3.B.(1) of this 
special provision will be applied. All costs associated with plan submittal and 
corrective action under this subsection will be borne by the Contractor. 

C. Overall Lot Pay Factor (OLPF). The following formulae are used to calculate the 
OLPF and ADJ. The OLPF will not exceed 1.00. 

OLPF = (0.60 x PFs) + (0.40 x PFac) 

ADJ= (OLPF - 1)(Price) 

ADJ = Price adjustment per pay unit to be applied to the quantity represented by 
the QA test 

Price = Base price established for the pay item 

4. Evaluation of Rejectable Concrete. The Engineer will require additional evaluation to 
decide what further action may be warranted, as described below. Acceptance for air content 
of fresh concrete will be based on QA test results reported at the time of concrete placement. 

If the Engineer determines that non-destructive testing (NOT) is appropriate, this work will be 



CFS:JFS 20 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

done by the Contractor in the presence of the Engineer within 45 calendar days from concrete 
placement. All costs associated with this work will be borne by the Contractor. A complete 
set of non-destructive tests must be conducted (in accordance with the respective standard 
test method) at a minimum three randomly selected locations. If NOT is used to estimate the 
in-situ strength, a calibrated relationship between the project JMF under evaluation and the 
NOT apparatus must have been established prior to NOT testing according to its respective 
standard test method. 

If the 28-day compressive strength QA test results show that the rejection limit (as specified 
in Table 1) has not been achieved, the quantity of concrete under evaluation will be rejected 
and the Engineer will require additional evaluation to decide what further action may be 
warranted. 

Propose an evaluation plan and submit it to the Engineer for approval before proceeding. The 
results from NOT will be used only to decide what further action is required. This determination 
will be made by the Engineer, as follows: 

A. For non-structural concrete. If no test result from non-destructive testing falls 
below the lower specification (LSL) 28-day compressive strength, the represented quantity 
of concrete under evaluation will remain in place and a pay factor for 28-day compressive 
strength (PFs) of 1.00 will be applied for overall lot pay factor (OLPF) and price adjustment 
(ADJ) determinations according to subsection d.3 of this special provision. 

B. For structural concrete (including overhead sign foundations). If no test result from 
non-destructive testing falls below the lower specification limit 28-day compressive 
strength, the represented quantity of concrete under evaluation will remain in place and a 
pay factor for 28-day compressive strength (PFs) of 0.85 will be applied for overall lot pay 
factor (OLPF) and price adjustment (ADJ) determinations according to subsection d.3 of 
this special provision. 

C. If one or more of the non-destructive test results fall below the lower specification 
limit (LSL) 28-day compressive strength, the Engineer may elect to do one of the following: 

(1) Require removal and replacement of the entire rejected quantity of concrete, 
including new initial tests for pay factor (PF) determination and price adjustment 
conducted according to subsection d.3 of this special provision. 

(2) Allow the Contractor to submit a plan for corrective action, for the Engineer's 
approval, to address the disposition of the rejected concrete. If the Engineer does not 
approve the plan for corrective action, subsection d.4.C.(1) of this special provision 
will be applied. All costs associated with plan submittal and corrective action under 
this subsection will be borne by the Contractor. 

(3) Allow the in-situ quantity of concrete under evaluation to remain in place and a 
pay factor (PFs) of 0.50 will be applied for overall lot pay factor (OLPF) and price 
adjustment (ADJ) determinations according to subsection d.3 of this special provision. 

e. Measurement and Payment. If a price adjustment is made for reasons included in this 
special provision, that adjustment will be made using the base price established for the specific 
item. If a contract unit price requires adjustment for other reasons not described in this special 
provision, the adjustments will be made using the unit price and the adjustments will be 



CFS:JFS 

cumulative. 

21 of 21 
12SP-604A-10 

06-14-19 

Separate payment will not be made for providing, implementing, and maintaining an effective QC 
program. All costs associated with this work will be included in the applicable unit prices for the 
concrete items. Failure by the Contractor to maintain the proper curing environment during initial 
cure will not be basis for claim against the Department. 

All costs associated with providing, locating, relocating, maintaining, and securing the adequate 
number of portable initial curing facilities for both the QC and QA strength test specimens will be 
included in the applicable unit prices for the concrete items. No additional payment will be 
permitted. The Contractor is responsible for damage, theft, subsequent replacement, and 
removal after completion of the work for each curing facility used on the project. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

SUBGRADE UNDERCUTTING, 21AA 
1 of 1 

2021-04-26 

This work shall be done in accordance with the requirements of Section 205 of the Michigan 
Department of Transportation 2012 Standard Specifications for Construction, except as herein 
described: 

After pavement removal, the Engineer will investigate the condition of any existing aggregate base 
course and underlying subbase and subgrade. If in the opinion of the Engineer, an area of the 
roadway appears to be unsuitable for paving, then he may order the Contractor to proof roll and/or . 
undercut the unstable areas. The Engineer must be present to observe the proof rolling and/or 
undercutting activity. 

The Contractor shall also be responsible for the disposal of the material, backfilling and compacting 
of the new material to the proposed pavement subbase elevation. 

Where the subbase or subgrade is determined by the Engineer to be unsuitable to support the 
roadway paving, the Contractor shall perform the necessary undercutting, as directed by the 
Engineer, and backfill such area with 21AA crushed concrete and compact to 95% of its maximum 
unit weight. If free water is present in the undercut area, the Contractor shall install underdrain and 
backfill the areas as directed by the Engineer. 

Equipment 

Equipment used for compacting backfill material shall be approved by the Engineer. 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

The completed work, as measured, for Subgrade Undercutting, 21AA shall be paid for at the 
contract unit price for the following contract pay item: 

Item Unit 
Subgrade Undercutting, 21AA Cubic Yard 

Proof rolling shall not be paid for separately, but shall be included in the pay item Subgrade 
Undercutting, 21AA. 

The disposal of material, placement and compaction of backfill shall not be paid for separately, but 
shall be included in the pay item Subgrade Undercutting, 21AA. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

CURB AND GUTTER, CONC, DET F4 
1 of 1 

This work shall be done in accordance with Sections 802 of the 2012 M DOT Standard 
Specifications for Construction, except as follows: 

Epoxy coated lane ties, per MOOT standard, shall be installed where the new curb and 
gutter meets existing, theses lane ties will not be paid for separately but considered 
incidental to the adjacent pay item. 

2021-04-29 

The completed work to replace concrete curb and gutter shall be measured along the flow 
line of the gutter in linear feet and paid for at the Contract Unit Price per linear foot for Curb 
and Gutter, Cone, Det F-4. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

DRAINAGE STRUCTURE COVERS 
1 of 1 

2021-04-26 

This work shall be done in accordance with the requirements of Section 403 of the Michigan 
Department of Transportation 2012 Standard Specifications for Construction, except as 
herein described: 

The materials shall meet the requirements specified in subsection 403.02 of the 2012 
Michigan Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Construction, except for: 
Sanitary Sewer Structures: provide 1040A frame with pressure tight cover with City of 
Pontiac logo and "SANITARY" label 
Storm Sewer Structures: provide 1040A frame and cover with City of Pontiac logo and 
"STORM" label 
Gate Valve Structures: provide 1040 bolted frame and cover with City of Pontiac logo and 
"WATER" label. 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

The completed work shall be paid for at the contract unit price for the following contract pay 
items: 

Item 
Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 
Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Sanitary 
Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Storm 
Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Water 

Unit 
Each 
Each 
Each 
Each 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

HAND PATCHING 
1 of 1 

2021-07-29 

This work shall be done in accordance with the requirements of Section 501 of the Michigan 
Department of Transportation 2012 Standard Specifications for Construction, except as 
herein described: 

Materials 

Hand Patching shall have a variable yield and thickness and comprised of HMA, 4E3, when 
being utilized in paving operations within the public right-of-way, and HMA, 5E3 when being 
used as the wedge course on W. Columbia Ave. The AW.I. for the mixture shall be a 
minimum of 220, for top course mix. The performance grade asphalt binder range for the 
mixture shall be PG 64-22. 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

The completed work shall be paid for at the contract unit price for the following contract pay 
items: 

Item 
Hand Patching 

Unit 
Ton 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

RESTORATION 
1 of 1 

2021-04-27 

This work shall be done in accordance with the Michigan Department of Transportation 2012 
Standard Specifications for Construction, except as follows:. 

Equipment 

Restoration shall consist of, but not be limited to, providing all labor, materials, and equipment 
necessary for the preparation of the foundation for seeding, fertilizing and mulching all areas to be 
restored and the placement of topsoil, seed, fertilizer, mulch and watering as required. 

Construction Methods 

The Contractor shall scarify and loosen the existing foundation to a depth of 3" to 4", rototill the soil 
to a granular condition, rake the entire area to a smooth condition, remove debris and rocks over 1" 
in diameter brought to the surface by rototilling and raking, and cultipack the entire area to provide 
for a smooth seed bed. Place screened topsoil (2" depth), seed, fertilizer, and mulch at designated 
rates. Thoroughly water entire area upon initial placement. A minimum of two additional waterings 
as directed by the Engineer shall be required. 

In general, restoration will be required in all landscape areas disturbed by the Contractor's 
operations. 

Rates of Application 

In those areas where restoration is required, the following rates of application will apply. 

Topsoil. ............. Screened ......................................... 2 inch depth 
Seed ................ TUF Mixture ...................................... 220 #/Ac 
Fertilizer ............ Chemical Fertilizer Nutrient, Class A. .... 228 #/Ac 
Mulch ................ Mulch ............................................. 2 Ton/Ac 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

Restoration of all areas disturbed by construction activities will not be measured separately. 
Payment for the item of Restoration will be based on the contract lump sum price which shall be 
payment in full for topsoil placement, seeding, mulching, fertilizing and watering required to restore 
disturbed areas to a condition acceptable to the engineer. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

CLEARING 
1 of 1 

2021-04-29 

This work shall be done in accordance with Section 201 of the 2012 MOOT Standard 
Specifications for Construction, except as follows: 

This work shall be to clear the public right-of-way of overgrown brush, shrubs, trees, branches, 
debris and garbage. Upon completion of this pay item, cleared area shall be stabilized and 
restored as directed by the Engineer. 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

Upon completion and acceptance of this work the contractor will be paid for Clearing at the 
Contract Unit Price per lineal foot. 



NFE: JCK 

Description 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

DR STRUCTURE, TEMP LOWERING 
1 of 1 

2021-04-29 

This work shall be done in accordance with the requirements of Section 403.04.E of the Michigan 
Department of Transportation 2012 Standard Specifications for Construction, except as herein 
described: 

Prior to the removal or adjustment of any drainage structure to be temporarily lowered the 
Contractor shall record the locations of drainage structures with GPS equipment, or with a 
minimum of two witness points. A log of the structures and the distances to witness points, or a 
GPS data file, shall be provided to the Engineer. 

Measurement and Basis of Payment 

The completed work for Dr Structure, Temp Lowering shall be paid for at the contract unit price. 



MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

12SP812(F) 

PAYMENT FOR MINOR TRAFFIC DEVICES AND TRAFFIC REGULATOR CONTROL 

OPR:JJG 1 of 1 C&T:APPR:BJO:DBP:07-19-11 
FHWA:APPR:07-19-11 

Delete Table 812-1 in subsection 812.04.E, on page 625 of the Standard Specifications for 
Construction, in its entirety and replace with the following. 

Table 812-1 Partial Payment Schedule for Minor Traf Devices and Traffic Regulator 
Control 

Percent of Original Contract Amount Earned Total Percent of Unit Price Paid 

First Use 15 
25 30 
50 55 
75 80 
90 100 



DES:DBP 

12SP-812U-01 

MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

TYPE Ill BARRICADES 

1 of 1 APPR:MWB:CRB:08-07-15 
FHWA:APPR:08-23-15 

Delete the first sentence for the second paragraph in subsection 812.03.D.8 on page 606 
of the Standard Specifications for Construction, and replace with the following: 

Light Type Ill barricades with two, Type C or Type D warning lights, fastened to the 
uprights above the top rail, provided these warning lights each weigh 3.3 pounds or less. 

Delete the following pay items from the list in subsection 812.04 on page 622 of the 
Standard Specifications for Construction. 

Barricade, Type 111, High Intensity, Furn ..................................................................... Each 
Barricade, Type 111, High Intensity, Oper .................................................................... Each 
Barricade, Type 111, High Intensity, Double Sided, Furn ............................................. Each 
Barricade, Type 111, High Intensity, Double Sided, Oper ............................................. Each 

Renumber the existing subsection 812.04.A.5 on page 624 of the Standard Specifications 
for Construction, as follows: 

4. The manufacturer's invoiced cost for damaged equipment included in a lump sum pay 
item for maintaining traffic. 



NFE: JCK 

General 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

MAINTAINING TRAFFIC 
1 of 5 

2021-04-27 

Traffic shall be maintained by the Contractor throughout the project in accordance with Section 
104.11 and 812 of the Michigan Department of Transportation 2012 Standard Specifications for 
Construction, the 2011 Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD) (Revised 
September 2013), and any supplemental specifications in this proposal. 

City of Pontiac maintenance crews and/or City contracted forces may perform maintenance work 
within or adjacent to the Construction Influence Area (CIA). This work will be coordinated with the 
Contractor through the Engineer to minimize interference. No additional payment will be made to 
the Contractor for the joint use of the traffic control items. 

The Contractor shall coordinate this work with other Contractors performing work within the 
Construction Influence Area (CIA) or adjoining areas to avoid conflicts in the maintenance of traffic, 
construction signing, and to provide for the orderly progress of contract work. Where possible, this 
special provision will specify upcoming projects in the area. 

The Contractor is to note Section 104.08 of the Michigan Department of Transportation 2012 
Standard Specifications for Construction for the requirements of cooperation with other 
Contractors. 

Notification: The Contractor shall notify the Engineer, local police department, local fire 
department, and other emergency response units at least 72 hours before implementing any road 
closures, bridge closures, ramp closures, lane closures, detours, or major traffic shifts. Contractor 
shall notify MOOT of traffic control placement in MOOT right-of-way as required by permit. 

Traffic Restrictions - General 

No additional lane closures shall be allowed on the following weekends or special events: 
Memorial Day, Fourth of July, "Woodward Dream Cruise", "Motorbella", "Roadkill Nights", Labor 
Day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas. 

The Engineer will determine the duration of each holiday period and/or special event for the 
purpose of prohibiting lane closures, detours, or other traffic disruptions. 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

MAINTAINING TRAFFIC 
2 of 5 

2021-04-27 

Prior to opening any lanes, the Contractor shall remove, by sweeping, all accumulated debris that 
has collected within the closed lane. The cost of sweeping shall be included in the cost of other 
contract pay items. 

Equipment and material stored on site must have prior approval of the Engineer and shall be 
stored beyond the clear zone of the traveled roadway. Any additional signs or devices required to 
protect the motoring public from stored equipment or material will be at the Contractor's expense. 

The Contractor shall implement shoulder closures, lane closures, detours, etc., according to 
applicable MOOT Typical Traffic Control Typicals, the suggested sequence of events and the 2011 
Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD) (Revised September 2013). All 
changes in the traffic control plans, proposed by the Contractor, require prior approval from the 
Engineer to implementation. 

Access for construction vehicles between the travel lanes and work areas will .be restricted to 
specific locations. The number of access points and their locations will require the prior approval of 
the Engineer. 

The Contractor shall maintain reasonable access, as defined by the Engineer, to all businesses, 
homes and intersecting streets at all times. Alternating business drives may be closed if a 
business has more than one drive that operates bi-directionally. 

The Contractor shall maintain access to the emergency ambulance entrance of McLaren Oakland 
Hospital at all times during construction . 

. The Engineer has the authority to limit the duration of lane closures based on the Contractor's 
progress. The Contractor shall not be granted compensation or extension of time if the Engineer 
suspends lane closures due to the Contractor's inability to make significant progress during the 
time frame allotted for the lane closures. 

The following typicals M0020a, M0040a, M0140a, M0310a, M0500a shall be used. 

The following special details WZD-100-A and WZD-125-E shall be used. 

Traffic Restrictions - Hours 

Allowable work hours for this project are Monday through Saturday, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., unless 
otherwise approved by the Engineer. 

Available work hours may be restricted by local ordinances (i.e. work hours, noise restrictions). It 
is the Contractor's responsibility to be aware of these restrictions and account for them in the work 
schedule. The Contractor may request noise and/or work hour variances from the Local 
Governments. All costs occurred in requesting these variances shall be borne by the Contractor. 
Hourly restrictions are subject to change by the Engineer based on traffic volume. 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

MAINTAINING TRAFFIC 
3 of 5 

2021-04-27 

At non-signalized intersections, the intersecting street may be completely closed during working 
hours providing that adjacent interconnecting streets afford access to the closed street. If no 
alternative access to the street is available, a flagging operation must be used at the intersection. 

At signalized intersections, the work shall be completed as indicated in the Stage Construction 
Plans. With the approval of the Engineer, the Contractor may close the intersecting roads to 
facilitate paving through the intersections, as indicated in the Stage Construction Plans. Traffic 
stoppages shall be limited to 1 O minute intervals after which traffic will be allowed to proceed until 
the last vehicle in the queue has passed or after traffic has been allowed to free flow for a period of 
five minutes or longer. 

Permits: The Contractor shall obtain all necessary permits from local governments which require 
them prior to placing construction signing on local roads. The costs associated with obtaining 
these permits shall be the responsibility of the Contractor and will not be paid for separately. 

Traffic Control Devices 

All traffic control devices and their use shall conform to the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices (MMUTCD), 2011 edition, revised September 2013, and as specified herein. 

Quality Standards - All traffic control devices including: signs, barricades, vertical panels, drums, 
warning lights, arrow boards, and changeable message signs shall meet the requirements of 
American Traffic Safety Services Association (ATSSA). 

Traffic control devices moved to facilitate the Contractor's operation shall be reset by the end of the 
work day. The Contractor shall routinely maintain the traffic control devices including but not 
limited to, proper alignment, weighting with ballast, cleaning and replacing damaged devices. 

Signs - All temporary signs that will remain in place shall be installed on driven supports, defined 
in the MOOT Special Detail WZD-100-A, when applicable. The stub length of a driven support, if 
used, shall not extend more than two (2) inches above the surrounding grade. Driven sign 
supports shall be removed at the time the sign is removed. Where temporary signs cannot be 
driven, signs may be installed on portable supports. 

All warning signs shall be fabricated utilizing fluorescent prismatic retro-reflective sheeting in 
accordance with Section 922 of MOOT 2012 Standard Specifications for Construction. 

Advance warning signs (3 foot x 3 foot) shall be placed on all cross streets, freeways, entrance 
ramps, and exit ramps where construction activities may be encountered as directed by the 
Engineer. 

Temporary signs indicating sidewalk closures shall be provided for each sidewalk ramp 
reconstruction. 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

MAINTAINING TRAFFIC 
4 of 5 

2021-04-27 

Temporary warning, regulatory, and guide signs not applicable to the current traffic operation or 
lane closures shall be removed, covered, or laid down with the legs removed as directed by the 
Engineer. Payment for any of these operations will be included in the cost for Temporary Signs. 

Temporary signs damaged by, construction activities shall be replaced at the Contractor's expense. 

When lane closures are in place, the Contractor shall completely cover all conflicting warning, 
regulatory, and guide signs in accordance with the MOOT 2012 Standard Specifications for 
Construction.,_ 

Channeling Devices and Barricades - All channelizing devices shall be Plastic Drums with High 
Intensity Sheeting, Lighted from MDOT's Qualified Products List (QPL) of the Materials Sampling 
Guide. 

The spacing of plastic drums shall be as follows: 
25 feet on Tapers and Shifts 
35 feet on Tangents 
25 feet when required for tighter control is required by the Engineer. 

Placement of Type Ill Barricades shall be as directed by the Engineer. 

Lighted Arrows - Lighted Arrows, Type C, shall be used whenever closing a traffic lane or 
shoulder and as called for on the traffic typical plans. 

Existing and Temporary Pavement Marking Removal - Any pavement marking removed as a 
part of this project shall removed by means other than grinding. At no time shall the Contractor 
implement a method that would damage the surface of the roadway pavement. 

Final Pavement Markings and Signing - All permanent signs and pavement markings shall be in 
place prior to reopening the road to traffic. 

The Contractor shall remove, salvage and reinstall, on new supports all signs indicated, on the 
plans or proposal, that are to be salvaged. 

The Contractor shall store salvaged signs as per the sign sheeting manufacturer's 
recommendations. 

All markings, shapes and dimensions shall conform to MOOT Pavement Marking Typicals, unless 
specified otherwise by Special Provision. 

Traffic Control Item Quantities - The Contractor shall setup shoulder and lane closures, detours, 
and any other traffic control according to applicable MOOT Typical Traffic Control Drawings and 
the 2011 Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD) (Revised September 
2013}. All proposed traffic control plans require approval from the Engineer prior to 
implementation. 



NFE: JCK 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

MAINTAINING TRAFFIC 
5 of 5 

2021-04-27 

Measurement and Payment - The estimate of quantities for maintaining traffic on this project is 
based on the suggested sequence of operations contained herein and described in this Special 
Provision and payment for these devices shall be according to Section 812.04 of the MOOT 2012 
Standard Specifications for Construction, unless otherwise specified. 

Items shall be paid for at the contract unit price for the following contract pay item: 

Item 
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn 
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper 
Channelizing Device, 42 inch, Furn 
Channelizing Device, 42 inch, Oper 
Lighted Arrow, Type B, Furn 
Lighted Arrow, Type B, Oper 
Traffic Regulator Control 
Minor Traf Devices 

Unit 
Square Feet 
Square Feet 
Each 
Each 
Each 
Each 
Lump Sum 
Lump Sum 



C: co ...... 
CL 
C: 
0 ._ .. 
ca 
0 
0 
..J 
C) 
C: 
·c 
0 (.) 
Ill fil 

-0 
.., a:l 

"' Q) G) t 
F, s 



0 

~ 
C: 
ca -D.. 
C: 
0 ·-'to 
0 
0 
..J 1-

.g 
C) C -~ ~ ... ·c: 
0 (,) 
m ~ 
... (ll 

U) 2 
(1) ·;:: 
F 3: 



Test Boring Location Plan Three 



C: cu -D- ,_ 
C, 
C: .... .... 
0 
aJ ... 
"' Q) Q) . 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

Boring No.: 1 Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N Strata 
(ft) Type Change 

, 1 / 
.46 

LS 6 .92 

8 
2.5- 8 3 

LS 5 
7 

5.0- 6 

6 
LS 3 

7 3 
7.5- 2 

LS 1/18" 

10.0- 10 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

-
f-

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Started: 1/8/2021 

Completed: 1/8/2021 

Soil Classification 

~ 

·~ 

1ASPHAL T (2") I~ 

Crushed Asphalt-FILL (3 1/2") 

rr,;,t Be= Saad-FILL (5 1/2") 

Stiff Moist Variegated CLAY With Some Silt r 
r\Firm Moist Variegated CLAY With Some Silt r 
!\Plastic Moist Variegated CLAY With Some Silt 

-r 
Very Loose Wet Brown SAND With Trace Of Gravel 

Bottom of Boring at 1 0' 

w 

12.2 

16.9 

21.3 

13.3 

d 

139 

132 

128 

126 

"N' - Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS - 2" ).D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS - Sectional Liner Sample 
ST - Shelby Tube Sample 
AS - Auger Sample 

w - H20, % of dry weight 
d - Bulk Density, pcf 
qu - Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP - Direct Push 
RC - Rock Core 

Water Encountered: 7'0" 

At Completion: 7'0" 

Boring No. 1 

qu 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-1-N-G 
Fax(248)588-6232 

Boring No.: 2 Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Type of Rig: Truck Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers Started: 1/8/2021 

Ground Surface Elevation: Completed: 1/8/2021 

Depth Sample N Strata Soil Classification w (ft) Type Change 

.54 

~ASPHALT 1e 1n"J l .92 

LS 5 15.4 
8 

2.5- 8 3 
Moist Brown Gravelly Medium To Fine Sand With Some Silt & 

!\Clay-FILL (4 1/2") Jr 
LS 3 12.8 

4 Stiff Moist Gray Clay With Some Slit-FILL 
5.0- 4 5,5 

Plastic Moist Dark Gray Clay With Some Silt & Sand r LS 4 Seams-FILL 11.5 
6 

7.5- 7 8 Firm Moist Brown Oxidized CLAY With Some Slit & Trace Of 
------Gravel r 

LS 4 13.0 
7 

10 Stiff Moist Brown Oxidized CLAY With Some Silt & Trace Of 
10.0- 11 ---.._ Gravel r 

Bottom of Boring at 1 O' 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

d 

134 

129 

139 

137 

"N" • Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS • 2" ).D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS • Sectional Liner Sample 
ST • Shelby Tube Sample 
AS • Auger Sample 

w. H20, % of dry weight 
d • Bulk Density, pcf 
qu • Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP • Direct Push 
RC • Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 2 

qu 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax(248)588-6232 

Boring No.: 3 Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Type of Rig: Truck Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers Started: 1/8/2021 

Ground Surface Elevation: Completed: 1/8/2021 

Depth Sample N Strata Soil Classification w 
(ft) Type Change 

.'LI 

.67 
~ASPHALT (31/4") f LS 5 12.1 

6 
2.5- 7 Moist Brown Gravelly Medium To Fine Sand With Some Silt & 

Clay-FILL (4 3/4") 

LS 5 
6 Firm Moist Brown CLAY With Some Silt & Sand Seams 

5.0- 6 

LS 5 14.9 
7 

7.5- 7 8 

LS 3 Loose Wet Brown SAND With Trace Of Gravel 21.5 
3 

10 10.0- 3 

Bottom of Boring at 1 0' 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

d 

139 

135 

118 

"N" • Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS • 2" ).D, Split Spoon Sample 
LS • Sectional Liner Sample 
ST • Shelby Tube Sample 
AS • Auger Sample 

w • H20, % of dry weight 
d • Bulk Density, pcf 
qu • Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP• Direct Push 
RC • Rock Core 

Water Encountered: 8'0" 

At Completion: 8'2" 

Boring No. 3 

qu 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-1-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

Boring No.: 4 Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N Strata 
(fl) Type Change 

.4~ 

LS 7 
8 

2.5- 10 3 

LS 3 
3 

5.0- 4 5.5 

LS 2 
3 

7.5- 2 8 

LS 4 
9 

10 10.0- 11 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Started: 1/8/2021 

Completed: 1/8/2021 

Soil Classification 

I\ASPHAL T (5") r 
Medium Compact Moist Brown Sand With Clay Layer-FILL 

Plastic Moist Brown CLAY With Some Silt 

Loose Moist Brown Clayey SAND 

Stiff Moist Brown CLAY With Some Silt 

Bottom of Boring at 1 0' 

w 

8.5 

14.9 

10.9 

11.8 
' 

d 

142 

126 

130 

139 

"N" - Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS - 2" ),D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS - Sectional Liner Sample 
ST • Shelby Tube Sample 
AS - Auger Sample 

w - H20, % of dry weight 
d • Bulk Density, pcf 
qu - Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP - Direct Push 
RC - Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 4 

qu 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

Boring No.: 5 Job No.: 61426 Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N Strata 
(ft) Type Change 

.46 

LS 4 
5 

2.5- 6 

LS 3 
5 

5,0- 6 

LS 4 
6 

7.5- 8 

LS 5 
9.5 6 

10.0- 7 10 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20,0-

22.5-

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Started: 1/8/2021 

Completed: 1/8/2021 

Soil Classification 

r\ASPHALT (51/2") r 
Medium Compact Wet Brown Clayey Fine SAND With Trace 
Of Gravel 

r\Medium Compact Wet Gray Clayey SAND r 
l::lottom ot l::lonng at w 

w 

9.5 

11.3 

18.7 

15.7 

d 

140 

137 

129 

132 

"N" - Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS - 2" },D, Split Spoon Sample 

w - H20, % of dry weight 
d - Bulk Density, pcf 

Water Encountered: 6 16" 
LS - Sectional Liner Sample 
ST - Shelby Tube Sample 
AS - Auger Sample 

qu - Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP - Direct Push 
RC - Rock Core 

At Completion: Caved In 8'7" 

Boring No. 5 

qu 



Boring No.: 6 

Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Started: 1/8/2021 

Completed: 1/8/2021 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N Strata 
(ft) Type Change 

.5 

LS 5 
4 

2.5- 3 

LS 2 
4.5 3 

5.0- 2 

LS 1 
1 

7.5- 2 

LS 2 
2 

10 10.0- 2 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

Soil Classification w 

r\ASPHAL T (6") r 
5.4 

Loose Moist Brown Medium To Fine SAND With Some Gravel 
&Clay 

11.1 

Very Loose Wet Brown SAND With Clay Layers 

11.7 

9.9 

Bottom of Boring at 1 0' 

d 

130 

130 

129 

131 

"N" • Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS - 2" ).D. Split Spoon Sample 

w • H20, % of dry weight 
d • Bulk Density, pcf 

Water Encountered: 4'6" 

LS - Sectional Liner Sample 
ST • Shelby Tube Sample 
AS • Auger Sample 

qu • Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP • Direct Push 
RC • Rock Core 

At Completion: Caved In 5'1" 

Boring No. 6 

qu 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-1-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

Boring No.: 7 Job No.: 61426 Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Type of Rig: Truck Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers Started: 1/8/2021 

Ground Surface Elevation: Completed: 1/8/2021 

Depth Sample N Strata 
Soil Classification w (ft) Type Change 

.42 

t\ASPHAL T (5") /:_ 1.2 
LS 5 11.0 

8 
2.5- 7 ~Moist Bmwo Gowelly Medl"m To Floe SAND Wllh Some Sitt Jr 

& Clay-FILL (9 1/2") 

LS 3 8.5 
4 Firm Moist Gray CLAY With Some Silt & Sand Seams 

5.0- 5 5.5 

LS 2 Plastic Moist Gray CLAY With Some Silt 21.3 
3 

7.5- 3 8 

LS 3 Loose Wet Gray SAND With Trace Of Gravel 13,9 
5 

10 10.0- 5 

Bottom of Boring at 1 0' 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

d 

140 

142 

119 

127 

"N" • Standard Penetration Resistance w • H20, % of dry weight Water Encountered: 7'9" 
SS • 2" ),D, Split Spoon Sample d • Bulk Density, pcf 
LS • Secllonel Liner Sample qu • Unconfined Compression, tsf 

At Completion: 7'4" ST - Shelby Tube Sample DP • Direct Push 
AS - Auger Sample RC • Rock Core 

Boring No. 7 

qu 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-1-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

Boring No.: 8 Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth 
(ft) 

2.5-

5.0-

7.5-

10.0-

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

Sample 
Type 

LS 

LS 

LS 

LS 

N 

5 
7 
8 

3 
3 
2 

2 
2 
2 

6 
7 
9 

Strata 
Change 

.56 

3 

5.5 

8 

10 

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Started: 1/8/2021 

Completed: 1/8/2021 

Soil Classification 

'----------'-----'---------'r ASPHALT (6 3/4") 

Medium Compact Wet Brown Medium To Fine SAND With 
r--.. Some Gravel & Clay ---~--------------_,,r--

Plastic Moist Brown CLAY With Some Silt 

Soft Moist Gray CLAY With Some Silt 

Medium Compact Moist Brown Clayey SAND With Trace Of 
Gravel 

Bottom of Boring at 10' 

w 

10.4 

23.6 

22.6 

23.6 

"N" - Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS - 2" ).D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS • Sectional Liner Sample 
ST • Shelby Tube Sample 
AS • Auger Sample 

w - H20, % of dry weight 
d - Bulk Density, pcf 
qu - Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP - Direct Push 
RC • Rock Core 

Water Encountered: 6" 

At Completion: 8'2" 

Boring No. 8 

d qu 

139 

117 

118 

125 



Boring No.: 9 

Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax(248)588-6232 

Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Started: 1/12/2021 

Completed: 1/12/2021 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N Strata 
(ft) Type Change 

.54 

LS 5 
12 

2.5- 9 
3 

LS 2 4 

5 
5.0- 6 

6 

LS 6 
10 

7.5- 14 

LS 7 
7 

10 10.0- 10 

12.5-' 

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

Soil Classification w 

r\ASPHAL T (6 1/2") r 
11.1 

Medium Compact Moist Brown Silty Fine SAND With Trace Of 
i----.... Gravel ,,-

r\Loose Moist Brown SAND r 9.9 

Firm Moist Brown CLAY With Some Silt 

29.8 

Medium Compact Moist Brown SAND With Some Gravel & 
Clay Layers 

Bottom of Boring at 1 O' 

d 

138 

142 

119 

"N" - Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS - 2" ),D, Split Spoon Sample 
LS - Sectional Liner Sample 
ST - Shelby Tube Sample 
AS - Auger Sample 

w - H20, % of dry weight 
d - Bulk Density, pcf 
qu - Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP - Direct Push 
RC - Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 9 

qu 



Boring No.: 1 O 

Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax(248)588-6232 

Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Type of Rig: Truck Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers Started: 1/12/2021 

Ground Surface Elevation: Completed: 1/12/2021 

Depth Sample N Strata Soll Classification w (ft) Type Change 

.Ll:I 

[SPHALT (3 112") f .83 

LS 7 16.0 
9 

2.5- 10 
3 

Moist Brown Gravelly Medium To Fine SAND With Some Silt 

\( Clay (6") Jr 
LS 4 4.6 

4 Medium Compact Moist Brown SAND With Trace Of Gravel 

5.0- 4 

6 Loose Moist Brown SAND 

LS 3 18.4 
6 Medium Compact Moist Brown SAND With Clay Layers 

7.5- 10 

LS 5 4.2 
10 

10 10.0- 16 

Bottom of Boring at 1 O' 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

d 

132 

122 

129 

139 

"N" • Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS • 2" ),D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS • Sectional Liner Sample 
ST • Shelby Tube Sample 
AS • Auger Sample 

w • H20, % of dry weight 
d • Bulk Density, pcf 
qu • Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP• Direct Push 
RC • Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 10 

qu 

1480 



Boring No.: 11 

Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: R. Favor 

Started: 2/3/2021 

Completed: 2/3/2021 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N Strata 
(ft) Type Change 

.5 

LS 16 
20 

2.5 2.5- 24 

LS 5 
7 

5.0- 9 5 

LS 7 
14 

7.5- 17 
8 

LS 5 
14 

10 10.0- 14 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

Soil Classification w 

r\ASPHAL T (6") r 
7.6 

----.. Compact Moist Brown Fine SAND With Trace Of Gravel ,,,,-

Medium Compact Moist Brown Fine SAND With Trace Of 
Gravel 

11.9 

Compact Moist Brown Fine SAND With Trace Of Gravel 
14.4 

Medium Compact Moist Brown Fine SAND With Trace Of 9.8 
Gravel, Gray Sandy Clay Layers & Some Silt 

Bottom of Boring at 1 O' 

d 

135 

137 

134 

126 

"N" • Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS • 2" ).D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS • Sectional Liner Sample 
ST - Shelby Tube Sample 
AS - Auger Sample 

w • H20, % of d,y weight 
d • Bulk Density, pcf 
qu - Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP - Direct Push 
RC - Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 11 

qu 

1320 



Boring No.: 12 

Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: R. Favor 

Started: 2/3/2021 

Completed: 2/3/2021 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N Strata 
(ft) Type Change 

:--, 

LS 16 
9 

2.5- 9 

LS 6 
10 

5.0- 12 

6 
LS 6 

13 
7.5- 21 

8.5 
LS 10 

17 
10 10.0- 21 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

Soil Classification w 

i\ASPHAL T (1 1/4") 
13.8 

Medium Compact Moist Brown Fine SAND With Trace Of 
Gravel & Clay Layers 

20.3 

7.4 
Compact Moist Brown Fine SAND With Trace Of Gravel 

9.9 
Extremely Stiff Moist Brown CLAY With Some Silt & Trace Of 

i-,.,..Gravel r 

Bottom of Boring at 1 O' 

d 

123 

127 

135 

142 

"N' • Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS • 2" ),D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS • Sectional Liner Sample 
ST - Shelby Tube Sample 
AS - Auger Sample 

w - H20, % of dry weight 
d - Bulk Density, pcf 
qu - Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP - Direct Push 
RC - Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 12 

qu 

820 



Boring No.: 13 

Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax(248)588-6232 

Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: R. Favor 

Started: 2/3/2021 

Completed: 2/3/2021 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N Strata 
(ft) Type Change 

.69 

LS 7 
7 

2.5- 5 

LS 3 
4.5 5 

5.0- 4 

6 
LS 5 

7 
7.5- 9 

8.5 
LS 6 

7 10 10.0- 8 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

Soil Classification w 

!\CONCRETE (81/4") r 
14.3 

Medium Compact Moist Dark Brown Fine Sand With Trace Of 
Gravel & Clay Layers-FILL 

19.4 

Loose Moist Brown Clayey SAND With Trace Of Gravel 

10.9 
Extremely Stiff Moist Brown CLAY With Some Silt & Trace Of 
Gravel 

14.6 
Firm Moist Brown CLAY With Some Silt & Trace Of Gravel 

Bottom of Boring at 10' 

d 

126 

129 

141 

134 

"N" - Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS - 2" ),D, Split Spoon Sample 
LS - Sectional Liner Sample 
ST - Shelby Tube Sample 
AS - Auger Sample 

w - H20, % of dry weight 
d - Bulk Density, pcf 
qu - Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP • Direct Push 
RC - Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 13 

qu 

1900 

8320 

3210 



Boring No.: 14 

Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-1-N-G 
Fax(248)588-6232 

Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: R. Favor 

Started: 2/3/2021 

Completed: 2/3/2021 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N Strata 
(ft) Type Change 

:B 
LS 10 

8 
2.5- 6 

LS 5 
7 

5.0- 6 
5.5 

LS 4 
5 

7.5- 4 

LS 2 
3 

10 10.0- 3 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

Soil Classification w 

~SP HALT (1 3/4") f 8.0 

CONCRETE (7") 

Medium Compact Moist Brown Gravelly Fine SAND With 
Some Silt 

11.1 

Loose Moist Brown Fine SAND With Trace Of Gravel 12.2 

13.0 

Bottom of Boring at 1 O' 

d 

125 

132 

120 

128 

'N" • Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS • 2" ),D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS • Sectional Liner Sample 
ST • Shelby Tube Sample 
AS • Auger Sample 

w • H20, % of dry weight 
d • Bulk Density, pcf 
qu • Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP • Direct Push 
RC • Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 14 

qu 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

Boring No.: 15 Job No.: 61426 
Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers 

Type of Rig: Truck 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth 
(ft) 

2.5-

5.0-

7.5-

10.0-

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

Sample 
Type 

LS 

LS 

LS 

LS 

N 

6 
9 
7 

3 
4 
4 

2 
2 
1 

1 
1 
1 

Strata 
Change 

.77 

2.5 

6 

9 

10 

Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Drilled By: R. Favor 

Started: 2/3/2021 

Completed: 2/3/2021 

Soil Classification 

!\CONCRETE (91/4") r 

!\Medium Compact Moist Brown Gravelly Fine SAND With r 
Some Silt =.:.::....::.::..: _________ __, 

Loose Moist Brown Fine SAND With Trace Of Gravel 

Very Loose Moist Brown Fine SAND With Trace Of Gravel 

h Very Loose Very Moist Brown Very Fine SAND With Trace Of r 
I \Gravel 

Bottom of Boring at 1 O' 

w 

9.9 

12.1 

14.1 

17.5 

d 

125 

120 

126 

130 

"N" • Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS • 2" ).D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS • Sectional Liner Sample 
ST • Shelby Tube Sample 
AS • Auger Sample 

w • H20, % of dry weight 
d • Bulk Density, pcf 
qu • Unconfined Compression, tsf 
DP• Direct Push 
RC • Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 15 

qu 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road - PO Box 249 - Troy, Michigan - 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 · 

Boring No.: 16 Job No.: 61426 Project: 2021 Local Street Program 

Client: Nowak & Fraus Engineers Location: Pontiac, Michigan 

Type of Rig: Truck Drilled By: I. Mickle 

Drilling Method: Solid Stem Augers Started: 1/14/2021 

Ground Surface Elevation: 

Depth Sample N (ft) Type 

LS 4 
5 

2.5- 6 

LS 7 
6 

5.0- 6 

LS 5 
4 

7.5- 5 

LS 4 
5 

10.0- 7 

12.5-

15.0-

17.5-

20.0-

22.5-

"N" - Standard Penetration Resistance 
SS • 2" }.D. Split Spoon Sample 
LS • Sectional Liner Sample 
ST • Shelby Tube Sample 
AS • Auger Sample 

Completed: 1/14/2021 

Strata 
Soil Classification w d Change 

,33 

RASP HALT (4") t .92 

14.7 135 

Moist Brown Gravelly Fine SAND With Some Silt & Clay-FILL 
(7") . 

Firm Moist Brown CLAY With Some Silt & Sand Seams 
9.5 140 

5.7 

Plastic Moist Gray CLAY With Some Silt & Sand Seams 11.3 141 

.10.1 142 
10 

Bottom of Boring at 1 0' 

w • H20, % of dry weight 
d • Bulk Density, pcf 
qu • Unccnfined Compression, tsf 
DP • Direct Push 
RC - Rock Core 

Water Encountered: None 

At Completion: None 

Boring No. 16 

qu 

1810 



#7 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Al Cooley Ill, Deputy Director of Public Works 

DATE: July 29, 2021 

RE: Resolution to approve AMISTEE to perform Air Duct Cleaning Services at 

all City Buildings not to exceed in the amount of $79,060 

The City of Pontiac obtained quotes for Air Duct cleaning services for all 5 city owned 
buildings. Amistee Air Duct Cleaning & Insulation had the best response and pricing for 
this work. 

The following Safety measures will be in effect during cleaning. 

Amistee Air Duct Cleaning & Insulation. will perform their work in strict accordance with 
the National Air Duct Cleaners Association standard ACR-2013, and all other accredited 
standards and codes. 

A NADCA certified ASCS (Air System Cleaning Specialist), CVI (Commercial Ventilation 
Inspector), or VSMR (Ventilation System Mold Remediator) will be onsite throughout the 
entire job as the Project Manager. At minimum, the Project Manager, also has been 
trained for Confined Space Training (CST), Personal Protection Equipment (PPE), and 
Hazard Communications. The Contractor will provide all training and equipment 
necessary to meet or exceed these guidelines. 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE 
IT RESOLVED, 

ac 

Attachments. 

The Department of Public Works has reviewed quotes and 
have determined that Amistee Air Duct Cleaning & Insulation 
is the best firm to provide the Air Duct Cleaning services 
requested by the city according pricing and safety and 
timeline. 

The Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor to enter into 
an agreement with Amistee Air Duct Cleaning & Insulation for 
the amount of $79,060 to provide air duct cleaning services 
for all city owned buildings according to the quote dated July 
26, 2021 





Date: Monday July 26, 2021 

Project: City of Pontiac Michigan 

Bowens: 

❖ Proposal for cleaning 2 Rooftop Units (RTU's), 3 Furnaces, associated ductwork, and associated 
diffusers/vents. 

50th District: 

❖ Proposal for cleaning 9 AHU's/Rooftop Units (RTU's), associated ductwork, and associated diffusers/vents. 

City Hall: 

❖ Proposal for cleaning 5-8 AHU's/Rooftop Units (RTU's), associated ductwork, and associated 
diffusers/vents. 
*bid for main and upper and bid for basement, main, and upper floor 

Sheriff Department: 

❖ Proposal for cleaning 1 Rooftop Unit (RTU), 14 Individual Self Contained Units, associated ductwork, and 
associated diffusers/vents. Nothing with gun range. 

Ruth Peterson: 

❖ Proposal for cleaning 4 Rooftop Units (RTU's), associated ductwork, and associated diffusers/vents. 

**Cleaning for all bathroom exhaust vents and ductwork for the above properties are included in cleaning 
costs/time** 

SCOPE OF WORK- HVAC REMEDIATION 

1.) Removal of all visible surface contaminants of the entire airside of the HVAC unit. In this proposal that shall 
mean: 

• Supply ductwork 
• Return air ductwork 
• Bathroom exhaust ductwork 
• Diffusers and/or vents 

• Dampers, turning vanes, and components inside ductwork 
• Coils, blowers, and air components of RTU's/AHU's/Furnaces/Units 

2.) Collection equipment to be used will be a large vacuum truck with a minimum of 15,000 cfm's and portable 
HEPA vacuums. 

3.) Various access ports will be opened in ductwork as needed for cleaning. 

4.) High-pressure air and different agitation devices will be inserted into ductwork for cleaning. 

5.) Reassemble with access doors where openings were cut. 

1 



6,) Follow up report provided to appropriate parties, including before and after pictures of the areas to be 
cleaned as well as any finds and/or suggestions. 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. In as much as the work to be performed under this contract is to be accomplished in occupied areas, Amistee, 
Inc. and Management will coordinate the work, whereby both management and Amistee, Inc. may continue 
their operations with the least possible interference and inconvenience. Amistee, Inc. shall notify 
Management approximately 24 hours before commencing work in order that Management may arrange a 
schedule of clearance in the buildings where the work is to be performed and set out the actual hours during 
which Amistee, Inc. may perform their duties. All tools, labor, and materials shall be at the site prior to the 
beginning of service in order to insure a minimum loss of time. 

B. Amistee, Inc. shall use drop cloths, shields, and other protective devices to prevent damage to mechanical 
equipment and/or to areas adjacent to units being decontaminated. 

C. All lint, dust, dirt, mold, and other combustible contaminants removed from any areas shall be gathered. 
Contained, and removed from each site by Amistee, Inc. and disposed of as directed by Management under 
strict standards of safety. 

D. Amistee, Inc. will comply with all regulations, security and otherwise, imposed by Management governing the 
conduct of outside personnel and will be held strictly responsible for the conduct of their employees. 

E. Amistee, Inc. shall employ only skilled mechanics and technicians and experienced supervisors. The work 
specified by the Contract shall be performed in the best and most workmanlike manner in strict accordance 
with specifications. 

F. All duct cleaning shall consist of the removal of all possible dirt, dust, mold, and other contaminants by the use 
of manual or pneumatic means. 

G. Amistee, Inc. shall, after the final completion of the source removal of dirt, dust, mold, and other 
contaminants from duct interiors, be required to apply a certified solution of a bactericide and fungicide 
product which shall effectively deter accumulation of mold, mildew, and disease-causing bacteria. 
Conventional high production spray equipment will be used to apply this solution. This solution will be EPA 
registered. Amistee, Inc. assumes no responsibility for anyone in the building with chemical allergies. 
Management must take responsibility for allowing Amistee, Inc. to use certified solution of bactericide and 
fungicide. 

H. Amistee, Inc. will provide insurance certificate upon request. 

I. Management will make available, at no cost to Amistee, Inc., all electricity necessary for Amistee, Inc. to 
operate their electrically powered equipment such as blowers, compressors, industrial vacuuming equipment, 
explosion-proof and conventional drop lights and all other electrical equipment necessary to the performance 
of the work. 

J. Management will designate areas in which Amistee, Inc. shall be permitted to park their trucks, utility trailers, 
trailer supply room, and other automotive equipment necessary while performing the work specified under 
th is contract. 

K. Management will inspect for acceptance and so certify all work completed by Amistee, Inc. within a 24-hour 
period after being advised by Amistee, Inc. that work has been completed. 

2 



L. Amistee, Inc., at their own expense, will repair any damage to property or equipment of management, which 
can be attributed to Amistee, Inc. 

II. AFFILIATIONS AND SAFETY 

A. Affiliations: Amistee,. Inc. will perform their work in strict accordance with the National Air Duct Cleaners 

Association standard ACR-2013, and all other accredited standards and codes. 

B. NADCA: A NADCA certified ASCS (Air System Cleaning Specialist), CVI (Commercial Ventilation Inspector), 

or VSMR (Ventilation System Mold Remediator) will be onsite throughout the entire job as the Project Manager. 

C. Safety Procedures: At minimum, the Project Manager, has been trained for Confined Space Training (CST), 

Personal Protection Equipment (PPE), and Hazard Communications. The Contractor will provide all training and 

equipment necessary to meet or exceed these guidelines. 

Ill. SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

A. Measure of Payment: Upon the submission of properly certified invoices and vouchers, the amounts stipulated 

below as compensation for services rendered shall become due and payable NET 30. This is an estimate, price 

below subject to change between parties. 

B. Duct Smoke Detectors: We do ask that the duct smoke detectors be placed in test mode during cleaning hours. 

C. Lined/Insulated Ductwork: For all of these properties that have lined/insulated ductwork; if these areas show 

signs of deterioration, water damage, microbial, etc., we will recommend these areas be encapsulated and/or 

recommend replacement. We can provide a change order/new scope of work for encapsulation but not 

replacement. 

D. Inaccessible Ductwork: For the duct areas that are inaccessible, we will note these areas during cleaning and do 

our best professionally to clean. Not all ductwork for these buildings have complete duct access. 

E. Amistee Services: to the extent this project relates to the Coronavirus {COVID-19), the air duct cleaning 

performed in accordance with the most up to date available guidance from the Centers for Disease Control, the 

World Health Organization and the Environmental Protection Agency. However, as the disease and its 

prevention are not fully understood, even adherence to those guidelines cannot and does not guarantee the 

eradication of all contagions and/or all contaminants. By executing this authorization, Customer hereby agrees 

to hold harmless, defend and indemnify Amistee (and its Affiliates), of and from any and all manner of claims, in 

law and/or in equity, made by any person or entity for injury to property and/or for personal injury, result from, 

arising out of or in any way related to the COVID 19 services to be performed by Amistee. 

A. 
1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 

DESCRIPTION 
Supply Ductwork 
Return Air Ductwork 
Bathroom Exhaust Ductwork 
Diffusers and/or Vents 
Dampers, Turning Vanes, and Components inside ductwork 
Coils, Blowers, and Air Components of RTU's/AHU's/Furnaces/Units 
Antimicrobial/Deodorizing Applications (Benefect Decon 30/Metal Ductwork Only) 
Coil Cleaner Applications (RTU's/AHU's) 

3 



Bowens: 
Price: $7,980 
*Cleaning will take 1-2 days to complete 

50th District: 
Price: $29,740 
*Cleaning will take 3-5 days to complete 

City Hall: 
Price: $18,940 (basement, main, and upper floor -we have not cleaned the basement in the past) 
*Cleaning will take 3-4 days to complete 

Sheriff Department: 
Price: $14,950 
*Cleaning will take 2-3 days to complete 

Ruth Peterson: 
Price: $7,450 
*Cleaning will take 1-2 days to complete 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kevin Van Tiem, ASCS, CVI, VSMR 
Amistee Air Duct Cleaning & Insulation 

Accepted: ________________ _ 

P.O.#: _________________ _ 

Date: -----------

4 



#8 

RESOLUTION 



MSP/EMSHD Pub. 204 
September 2015 

Emergency Management and Oakland County Emergency Management Division 
Michigan Department of State Police 

SUPPORT EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 

GUIDE 

A GUIDE TO ASSIST MUNICIPALITIES INCORPORATED INTO THE COUNTY 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM TO DEVELOP A SUPPORT EMERGENCY 

OPERATIONS PLAN. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction to the Guide ............................... ,....................................................................... 1 

Purpose.................................................................................................................... 1 

Scope....................................................................................................................... 1 

Maintenance............................................................................................................. 1 

Developing the Plan . .. .. .. . . . . . .. .. . .. .. . . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. . .. . .. .. .. .. . .. .. . .. . .. . .. .. . . .. . . . .. . .. .. . .. .. .. .. . .. .. 1 

Plan requirements . .. . .. .. . .. . . . .. .. .. . . ... .. .. .. . . . . . .. .. .... .. .. .. . . . .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . . . .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. 1 

Plan format............................................................................................................... 2 

Planning process...................................................................................................... 2-4 

Emergency Management Resolution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 

Sample Local Support Emerrgency Operations Plan .................. '.................................. 5 



INTRODUCTION TO THE GUIDE 

I. Purpose 

This document is designed to serve as a guide for municipalities with a population of 10,000 residents or 
above that have elected to incorporate into the County Emergency Management Program and need to 
develop a Support Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) following the Administrative Rules for Section 19, 
1976 PA 390, as amended. In accordance with these rules, the Support EOP shall be consistent with the 
County Emergency Operations Plan and will become part of the county plan. 

The preparation of a Support EOP will increase emergency preparedness through the definition of the 
responsibilities of local departments and agencies. The plan assigns tasks that need to be accomplished 
when an incident occurs, and describes how local and county emergency management efforts are related. 
Maintaining a current Support EOP also establishes eligibility to receive Section 19 funding in accordance 
with Section 19 of 1976 PA 390, as amended. If federal assistance does not become available after the 
Governor has declared a State of Disaster or Emergency, affected counties and municipalities can be 
eligible to receive state assistance up to $100,000 or 10% of their operating budget, whichever is less, to 
cover certain disaster related expenses. To be eligible for Section 19 funding, municipalities with a 
population of 10,000 and above that do not maintain an independent emergency management program 
must develop and submit a Support EOP to the county, and implement that plan in a timely manner at the 
beginning of the incident. 

II.Scope 

This document provides basic guidance and a template for the development of a Support EOP. The 
template (Attachment B) contains general information that can be adapted to any municipality. The annexes 
specify how the municipality will carry out common emergency support functions. 

Also included with this document is a sample Emergency Management Resolution (Attachment B) that 
appoints the County Emergency Management Coordinator as the Emergency Management Coordinator of 
the municipality, and outlines how emergency management efforts on the local level are organized in 
relation to the County Emergency Management Program. 

If either template is used, it should be reviewed and adjusted to the specific needs of each municipality. 
Municipalities that do not utilize the templates can develop individual plans or resolutions. Other available 
guiding materials for the development of EOPs include MSP/EMSHD Pub 201 (Local Planning Workbook) 
and FEMA Comprehensive Preparedness Guide 101. 

Ill. Maintenance 

Pub 204 has been developed by MSP/EMHSD and is maintained to ensure compliance with current national 
planning standards and relevant state laws pertaining to emergency planning. This document was last 
updated in August 2015 and supersedes the October 2011 version. It will be updated every four years. 

DEVELOPING THE PLAN 

All stakeholders that are involved in the community response to emergencies and disasters should be 
involved in the development of the Support EOP. The County Emergency Management Program should 
work with the municipality to ensure that the plan is compatible with the County Emergency 1Operations 
Plan. A standardized planning approach can be used for the development of the Support EOP. 

I. Plan requirements 
The Administrative Rules for Section 19 of 1976 PA 390, as amended, establish four requirements for the 
development of Support EOPs. In accordance with these requirements, Support EOPs shall: 

1 



1. Describe the relationship between the County Emergency Management Program and the 
municipality: 
The plan should state that the municipality has chosen to incorporate into the county program, 
coordinates emergency management related matters with the county program, and has assigned 
the County Emergency Management Coordinator as the responsible Emergency Management 
Coordinator for the municipality. 

2. Identify the municipality's response procedures in relation to the county response 
procedures: 
The plan should establish annexes that describe common tasks that need to be accomplished 
when responding to an emergency or disaster, and assign responsibility for these tasks to municipal 
departments and other local agencies. The annexes should identify the responsible agencies on 
the local level that coordinate and share information with at the county level, and clarify joint 
responsibilities. Annexes in the Support EOP should also identify which annex or annexes they 
relate to in the County EOP. 

3. Be maintained in accordance with the standards and currentness of the county plan, be 
consistent with the county plan: 
The efforts described in local and county plans should be consistent and complement each other. 
To maintain the Support EOP in currentness with the County EOP, updates to the local plan are 
necessary whenever the county plan is updated. When the County EOP is updated, the Support 
EOP should be revised to ensure that it is still compatible with the county plan. 

4. Contain the signature of the Chief Executive Official (CEO) of the municipality, be forwarded 
to the county: 
After a new Support EOP has been developed or an existing plan has been updated, the signature 
of the CEO (Mayor, Township Supervisor) needs to be obtained. If a change of the CEO occurs, 
the plan needs to be reviewed and the signature of the new official obtained. After the plan is 
signed, a copy must be forwarded to the County Emergency Management Program, where it should 
be filed with the County EOP. 

II. Plan format 

The plan should consist of a Basic Plan section and functional annexes. 

The Basic Plan defines the purpose of the plan, provides a community profile, identifies hazards and 
community vulnerabilities, and describes the relationship between municipality and the County Emergency 
Management Program. 

The annexes identify specific emergency management and response tasks that need to be accomplished 
before, during and after an incident, and assign responsibility for carrying out these tasks to local agencies. 
Annexes should be organized by emergency response functions or tasked agencies and can be written in 
narrative or bulleted style. While municipalities are not required to mirror the format used in the county plan, 
this can be beneficial. The template included with this document uses a bulleted "Emergency Action 
Guidelines" format for its annexes. 

Ill. Planning process 

The following seven step planning process also utilized in County EOP development should be used to 
develop a Support EOP. For additional information on the process steps, please refer to MSP/EMSHD Pub 
201 (Local Planning Workbook). 

1. Form a collaborative planning team: 
The planning team is the group of individuals responsible for designing, developing, and implementing 
the Support EOP. It should include representatives from all agencies that are committed to participate 
in emergency response activities within the municipality. Other stakeholders that should be engaged in 

2 



the planning process include representation from the municipality's executive office, the County 
Emergency Management Program, agencies that can provide insight into necessary accommodations 
for groups or individuals requiring Functional Needs Support Services (FNSS), schools, etc. 

2. Identify hazards and assess risks: 
The hazard analysis is the foundation upon which the municipality's emergency planning efforts should 
be built. It identifies conditions or situations that have the potential to cause harm to people or property 
in the community. The hazard analysis process involves four steps. 

Step 1: A profile of the community is developed (demographic and economic make-up, geography and 
land-use, key facilities, etc.). 

Step 2: The development of a community profile is followed by the hazard identification, which should 
start with a review of the County Hazard Analysis or Hazard Mitigation Plan. Local resources should 
then be used to identify further hazards that are unique to the community and might not have been 
included in county documents. 

Step 3: The assessment of risks explores how likely it is that a risk will manifest itself in an incident, 
how.often this might occur, where it might occur, and what the severity of impact would be. Hazards 
should be ranked based on the expected frequency of occurrence and severity of impact. 

Step 4: The vulnerability determination examines how susceptible citizens, property, infrastructure and 
critical systems are to the identified hazards. 

3. Determine Goals and Objectives: 
Developing clear goals and objectives will help the municipality to identify problems, issues and 
opportunities. Establishing goals outlines the vision of what the community wants to achieve. Goals can 
be pursued in the long-term, but need to be achievable. Objectives are specific and measurable 
strategies to achieve these goals. Often, multiple objectives will need to be established to support one 
goal. 

4. Plan Development: 
This step describes the conceptualization of the plan, which includes the generation and comparison 
of alternate strategies to achieve the established goals and objectives. This involves two tasks: 
Developing and analyzing courses of actions to be conducted during an incident, and identifying the 
resources that determine the capability of the municipality to take these actions. Developing actions 
allows planners to depict how an operation unfolds by building and working through a portrait of a 
potential event, including key decision points and participant activities. This helps to identify actions 
that occur and resources that will be required throughout the progression of an event. 

After identifying potential strategies to achieve established goals, an important sub-step in the 
conzeptualization of the plan is the evaluation of actions to ensure that the actions that are selected to 
be included in the plan are feasible. It is critical to determine if required resources are available or easily 
obtainable during an incident, and if actions are compliant with laws and regulations, such as local 
ordinances and resolutions, legal authorities, law enforcement standards, and Governor's orders and 
directives. 

5. Plan Preparation, Review and Approval: 
When writing the plan, a simple format should be used. The finished plan must be compatible with the 
County EOP. This can be achieved by including references to the county plan, utilizing a similar format, 
or organizing annexes after similar emergency response functions. Feedback should be solicited from 
all stakeholders that are tasked within the plan, the County Emergency Management Program, and 
local elected officials. After the review process, necessary adjustments should be implemented. The 
municipality should adopt t~e plan by resolution, obtain the signature of the CEO, and forward a signed 
copy of the plan to the County Emergency Management Program. 

6. Plan implementation and update: 

3 



The last step is to implement, maintain and update the plan. Plan updates are required after change of 
the CEO or when the County EOP has been updated. Plan reviews should also be considered after 
plan activations (during incidents or exercises), changes in operational resources, and changes in the 
community and/or hazard profile of the municipality. Lessons learned from actual events and exercises 
are essential to the evaluation of a plan's effectiveness, and help to determine if the plan is: 

■ Adequate: The concept of operations identifies and addresses critical tasks effectively. 

■ Feasible: Critical tasks can be accomplished timely and with available resources. 

■ Acceptable: The needs and demand driven by an event are met, actions meet the expectation 

of local officials and the public, and are consistent with law. 

■ Complete: The plan includes all necessary tasks, steps and required capabilities to reach an 

identified desired end state. 

■ Compliant: The plan complies with guidance and doctrine to the highest extent possible. 

FEMA Comprehensive Preparedness Guide 101 established adequacy, feasibility, acceptability, 
completeness and compliance as criteria that allow planners and decision makers to determine the 
efficiency and effectiveness of their plans. 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT RESOLUTION 

In addition to the development of a Support EOP, it is recommended that municipalities adopt a local 
Emergency Management Resolution (if they have not already done so). The Emergency Management 
Resolution should appoint the County Emergency Management Coordinator as the Emergency 
Management Coordinator responsible for the municipality, describe the local emergency management 
organization and its relationship to the County Emergency Management Program, and provide a means for 
th[ local legislative body to exercise the authority vested in them by 1976 PA 390, as amended. Attachment 
Aprovides a sample Emergency Management Resolution. 

4 



The The City of Pontiac 

SUPPORT EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 

An all-hazards plan supporting the Oakland County Emergency Operations Plan, for use in the event of 
disaster or severe emergency of natural, human, wartime, technological or terrorism origin. 

(5/13/2021) 

The information contained in this template, developed by the Michigan State Police, Emergency 
Management and Oakland County Emergency Management Division (MSP/EMHSD), should be 
used to assist in developing a Support Emergency Operations Plan which must then be reviewed 
by the Local Planning Team (LPT) and modified based on the community's emergency response 
_,,,n.,,1...:1;+•--



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Promulgation Document .................................................................................................................... . 

Approval and Implementation............................................................................................................. ii 

Record of Revisions .. .. . .. . . .. . . . .. . .. .. .. . . .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. . .. . . .. .. .. . . .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. .. .. . . .. .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. .. .. .. . .. . . .. . . . .. .. iii 

Record of Distribution......................................................................................................................... iv 

Basic Plan: 

Purpose................................................................................................................................. 1 

Scope . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 

Authorities and References................................................................................................... 1 

Plan Development and Maintenance .. . .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. . .. . .. .. .. 1 

Situation Overview................................................................................................................. 2 

Planning Assumptions........................................................................................................... 3 

Concept of Operations.......................................................................................................... 3 

Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities................................................................. 5 

Annexes: 

Overview................................................................................................................................ 7 

Annex A, Direction, Control, and Coordination ..................................................................... 8 

Annex B, Communications and Warning .............................................................................. 11 

Annex C, Damage Assessment ............................ :............................................................... 13 

Annex D, Fire Services.......................................................................................................... 15 

Annex E, Mass Care, Emergency Assistance, Housing, and Human Services.................... 17 

Annex F, Public Health and Medical Services...................................................................... 19 

Annex G, Public Information.................................................................................................. 21 

Annex H, Public Safety.......................................................................................................... 2~ 

Annex I, Public Works........................................................................................................... 25 

Appendix A, Debris Management Guidelines .. .. ..... .... ... .. ..... .. .. .. .. .......... ........ ... .. .. . .. . .. . . 27 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

Promulgation Document 

Officials of Pontiac, Michigan, in conjunction with County and State Emergency Eanagement (EM) agencies, have 
developed this Support Emergency Operations Plan that will enhance the local emergency response capability. 

This plan, when used properly and updated, will assist local government officials with accomplishing their primary 
responsibilities of protecting lives and property in their community. This plan and its provisions will become official 
when it has been signed and dated below by the Chief Executive Official (CEO) of the municipality. 

Chief Executive Official 
Mayor of Pontiac 

Date 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

Approval and Implementation 

The Support Emergency Operations Plan, referred to in this document as the Support EOP, describes how The 
City of Pontiac will handle emergency situations in cooperation with the Oakland County Emergency 
Management and Oakland County Emergency Management Program. The Support EOP assigns responsibilities 
to agencies for coordinating emergency response activities before, during, and after any type of emergency or · 
disaster. The Support EOP does not contain specific instructions as to how each department will respond to an 
emergency; these can be found in the plan annexes or separate Standard Operating Procedures (SOP). 

The goal of the Support EOP is to coordinate emergency response efforts to save lives, reduce injuries, and 
preserve property. The Support EOP addresses emergency issues before and after an emergency, but its primary 
goals are to assemble, mobilize and coordinate a team of responders that can respond to any emergency, and 
describe response procedures in relation to the county response procedures. 

The Support EOP will use a graduated response strategy that is in proportion to the scope and severity of an 
emergency. The City of Pontiac will plan, prepare and activate resources for local emergencies that affect the 
local area (or a specific site) and/or widespread disasters that affect the entire state and/or nation. 

The Support EOP was developed by a Local Planning Team (LPT). The LPT consists of key departments covering 
emergency functions such as law enforcement, fire, public works, and public health. The team works to establish 
and monitor programs, reduce the potential for hazard events in the community through planning, review, and 
training, and assisting Oakland County in developing and maintaining the County EOP. 

The Support EOP must be signed by the current CEO each time it is updated, with the exception of the following 
activities: 

1. Minor updates e.g. changing system names, grammar, spelling or layout changes 
2. Updates to the annexes 

These activities may be updated in the plan without the CEO signature by the following individuals: 

1. Emergency Management Liaison 
2. Department head responsible for an annex 

Oakland County Emergency Management Presidential Directive (HSPD) 5 facilitates a standard management 
approach to major incidents, the National Incident Management System (NIMS). NIMS is administered as part of 
the National Response Framework (NRF) which integrates the federal government into a single, all discipline, and 
all-hazards plan. NIMS will provide a nationwide approach that enables federal, state, tribal and local government 
agencies to "work effectively and efficiently together to prepare for, respond to, and recover from domestic 
incidents, regardless of cause, size or complexity." This Support EOP has integrated NIMS concepts, including 
the Incident Command System (ICS), and language to help incident management operate in accordance to the 
NIMS using the guidance provided by the Department of Oakland County Emergency Management (OHS). 

During an emergency, all response personnel will use the ICS to manage the incident and employ emergency 
resources at the site. The Emergency Operation Center (EOC) will coordinate additional resources when needed. 
This EOP will be used during community recovery after an emergency. 

ii 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

This plan supersedes all previous plans. 
Record of Revisions 

The following is a list of revisions made to the Support EOP. This chart tracks the date that changes were 
made, reason for the changes, updated pages, and who made the revision. 

iii 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

Record of Distribution 

The following is a list of the individuals and facilities that have been provided a copy of the Support EOP in order 
to conduct the assigned tasks addressed in this plan. 

Chief Executive Official 

(Legislative body, e.g. City 
Council/Commission, 

Township Board of 
Commissioners 

(County) Emergency 
Management Coordinator 

The City of Pontiac 
Emergency Management 

Liaison 
Communications and 

Warning Official 
Damage Assessment 

Official 

Fire Services Official 

Mass Care, Emergency 
Assistance, Housing, and 
Human Services Official 

Public Health and Medical 
Services Official 

Public Information Official 

The City of Pontiac Public 
Information Center 

The City of Pontiac 
Emergency Operations 

Center 

Matthew Covey WRFD 

iv 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

V 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

Basic plan 

Purpose 

The City of Pontiac has elected to incorporate into the Oakland County Emergency Management Program. 
As partners in the five phases of emergency management, mitigation, preparedness, prevention, response 
and recovery, The City of Pontiac and the County Emergency Management Program share joint 
responsibilities. The The City of Pontiac Support EOP has been developed to identify these responsibilities. 
It is to be used in concurrence with the County EOP. In accordance with Section 19 of the Michigan Emergency 
Management Act (1976 PA 390, as amended), activation of this this plan at the beginning of a disaster or 
emergency also establishes eligibility to receive state assistance for disaster related expenses incurred during 
a State of Emergency or Disaster declared by the Governor, for which federal assistance is unavailable. 

Scope 

The The City of Pontiac Support EOP is an adaptable document that can be applied to all hazards. Due to 
the unique nature of emergencies, it may become necessary to deviate from the contents of the plan when 
responding to an incident. Agencies that have been assigned supporting roles in this plan have developed 
and will maintain SOPs that provide systematic instructions for accomplishing their assigned functions. The 
local government conducts additional activities, such as personnel training, participation in exercises, public 
information, land-use planning, etc., to support emergency preparedness, mitigation, and response efforts. To 
facilitate efficient emergency management operations, The City of Pontiac continues to implement the NIMS. 

Authorities and References 

A. Authority of local officials during an emergency: 

1. 1976 PA 390, as amended 

2. The City of Pontiac, local Emergency Management resolution 

3. The City of Pontiac, adoption of the Support EOP 

4. Executive Directive No. 2005-09, the state adoption of the NIMS 

5. The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, 

6. Emergency Planning and Community Right to Right to Know Act of 1986 (EPCRA) also known 

as the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorizations Act (SARA), Title Ill 

7. Good Samaritan Law and Right to Know Act of 1986 

B. References used to develop the Support EOP: 

. 1. NIMS 

2. NRF 

3. Michigan Emergency Management Plan (MEMP), Michigan State Police, Emergency 

Management and Oakland County Emergency Management Division (MSP/EMSHD) 

4. Pub 204, MSP/EMHSD 

Plan Development and Maintenance 

To ensure that this Support EOP addresses the needs of the community and is consistent with the Oakland 
County EOP, this document was developed in a cooperative, whole community effort between municipal 
government, local community, and the County Emergency Management Program. The Support EOP is 
updated after every change of the municipal CEO or when changes to the County EOP create inconsistencies. 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

After the plan is adopted by resolution of the City Council and approved by the CEO, it is forwarded to the 
County Emergency Management Program. The plan will be implemented, tested through exercises in 
concurrence with county officials, and maintained in accordance with the standards and currentness of the 
Oakland County EOP. 

This plan has been provided to all municipal departments, local elected officials, the County Emergency 
Management Program and all agencies tasked within the document. It includes this Basic Plan, which provides 
an overview of the municipality's preparedness and response strategies, and functional annexes that describe 
the actions, roles and responsibilities of participating organizations. 

Situation Overview 

B. The City of Pontiac has taken various preparedness and incident management steps to enhance 
capabilities in responding to incidents including: 

1. The mitigation of potential hazards. 

2. Identification of emergency response agencies and mechanisms that will protect life and 

property before, during and after an emergency. 

3. Tasking agencies, organizations, and individuals with specific functions and responsibilities 

relative to emergency operations. Assigned tasks are explained in further detail under 

"Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities." 

4. Integration with the Oakland County EOP, Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan, MEMP, 

etc. 

C. Community profile: 

The City of Pontiac is located in the northern part of Oakland County. The community has a population 
of 60,000 residents. Approximately (percentage) of residents have been recognized as individuals 
with Access and Functional Needs. Many of the residents that require Functional Needs Support 
Services (FNSS) reside in congregate care centers, while others reside in non-group homes where 
support is provided as needed or on-call. 

D. Hazard and threat analysis: 

According to the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan, communities in the county are most 
vulnerable to: (common hazards). Areas within The City of Pontiac that are especially vulnerable 
to these hazards are: (locations). Additional hazards that have been identified as unique to The City 
of Pontiac include: (unique local hazards). 

(Number) sites that contain extremely hazardous materials are located in The City of Pontiac. Facility 
owners have reported the types of hazardous materials that are stored on-site, as required by the 
Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Right to Know Act (EPCRA). Pursuant to SARA Title 
Ill requirements, off-site emergency response plans have been developed by the Local Emergency 
Planning Committee (LEPC) to prepare fire departments for responding to the release of the specific 
hazardous materials on these sites. 

E. Relationship between municipality and County Emergency Management Program: 

Emergency management and response are primarily local responsibilities. However, disasters and 
emergencies might exhaust the resources and capabilities of local governments. Therefore, The City 
of Pontiac has chosen to incorporate into the Oakland County Emergency Management Program. To 
coordinate emergency management related matters with the County Emergency Management 

2 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

Program, the The City of Pontiac has appointed the (title) to serve as the Emergency Management 
Liaision. The Emergency Management Liaison facilitates communication and coordination between 
The City of Pontiac and county, and is the local point of contact for the County Emergency 
Management Coordinator (EMC). 

Planning Assumptions 

A. The proper implementation of this plan will result in saved lives, incident stabilization, and property 
protection in The City of Pontiac. 

8. Some incidents occur with enough warning that necessary notification can be issued to ensure the 
appropriate level of preparation. Other incidents occur with no advanced warning. 

C. Depending upon the severity and magnitude of the situation, local resources may not be adequate to 
deal with an incident. It may be necessary to request assistance through volunteer organizations, the 
private sector, mutual aid agreements (MAAs)/memorandums of understanding (MOUs), and/or 
county, state and federal sources. When provided, these will supplement, not substitute for, relief 
provided by local jurisdictions. 

D. All emergency response agencies within The City of Pontiac that have been tasked in the plan are 
considered to be available to respond to emergency incidents. Agencies will work to save lives, protect 
property, relieve human suffering, sustain survivors, stabilize the incident, repair essential facilities, 
restore services and protect the environment. 

E. When a jurisdiction receives a request to assist another jurisdiction, reasonable actions will be taken 
to provide the assistance as requested. 

F. Emergency planning is a work-in-progress; the Support EOP is consistently reviewed and updated. 

G. During an emergency or disaster, parts of the plan may need to be improvised or modified, if 
necessary, based on the situation. 

Concept of Operations 

A. Activation of the Support EOP and declaration of a local state of emergency: 

When a threat is perceived, the Emergency Management Liaison activates this Support EOP and the 
local Emergency Operations Center (EOC) to facilitate activities that ensure the safety of people, 
property and environment. Pursuant to 1976 PA 390, as amended, the (CEO/other official 
designated by charter) may declare a local state of emergency for The City of Pontiac if 
circumstances indicate that the occurrence or threat of widespread or severe damage, injury, or loss 
of life or property exist. In the absence of the (CEO/other official designated by charter), pursuant 
to local leglislation, the (title) is authorized to declare a local state of emergency. Upon a local 
declaration, PA 390 authorizes the the (Chief Executive Official/other official designated by 
charter) to issue directives as to travel restrictions on local roads. To facilitate activities that ensure 
the safety of people, property and environment, a local declaration also activates this Support EOP 
and the municipal Emergency Operations Center (EOC). A local state of emergency shall not be 
continued or renewed for a period in excess of seven days except with the consent of the governing 
body of the municipality. 

8. The following procedures are conducted and coordinated with the county in response to an incident: 

1. The Emergency Management Liaison wi!I perceive the threat, assess the hazard and ensure 
that municipal emergency response agencies, elected officials and County EMC are notified 
of the situation. 

3 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

2. Municipal agencies assess the nature and scope of the emergency or disaster. 

3. If the situation can be handled locally, the following guidelines are used: 

a. The Emergency Management Liaison advises the CEO and coordinates all local 

emergency response actions. 

b. The Emergency Management Liaison activates the EOC. The EOC is located at 

47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan 48342. If this location is unavailable, the 

alternate EOC location is 47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan 48342. 

c. The CEO declares a local state of emergency. The Emergency Management 

Liaison notifies the County EMC and forwards the declaration to the County 

Emergency Management Program. 

d. Emergency Response Agencies are notified by the Emergency Management 

Liaison to report to the EOC through (identify notification system(s), e.g., 

telephone, smart messaging, etc.). 

e. The CEO directs departments/agencies to respond to the emergency in 

accordance with the guidelines outlined in this plan and its annexes, and issues 

directives as to protective actions and travel restrictions on local roads. 

f. The Emergency Management Liaison keeps the County EMC informed of the 

situation and actions taken. 

4. If the emergency is beyond local control, municipal resources become exhausted, or special 
resources are needed, county assistance is requested through the County EMC. 

5. If county assistance is requested, the County EMC assesses the situation and makes 
recommendations on the type and level of assistance. The county may also take the following 
steps: 

a. Activate County EOC and EOP 

b. Respond with county resources 

c. Activate MAA/MOUs to supplement county resources 

d. Notify MSP/EMSHD District Coordinator 

e. Make available incident information to MSP/EMSHD and statewide agencies via 

the Michigan Critical Incident Management System (Ml CIMS) online platform, by 

submitting and maintaining applicable Ml CIMS boards and logs. 

6. If county resources and capabilities are exhausted, the county requests the Governor to 
declare a State of Emergency or State of Disaster in accordance with procedures set forth in 
1976 PA 390, as amended. If the emergency occurs solely within the confines of the 
municipality, the county shall not request state assistance or the Declaration of a State of 
Disaster or Emergency unless requested to do so by the municipal CEO. 

4 



The The City of Pontiac 

Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities 

A. Emergency Management Organization: 

Support Emergency Operations Plan 

1. The The City of Pontiac emergency management organization is comprised of (number) 
agencies and departments that are responsible for conducting activities in response to 
emergencies within the community. To facilitate an effective emergency response, these 
departments have been assigned to specific emergency functions. All agencies are 
responsible for implementing pre-disaster activities to prevent, mitigate and prepare for the 
various hazards that the community is vulnerable to. These activities include awareness 
training and public education, exercising, preparing Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) 
and job aides, hygienic practices to prevent spreading of infectious diseases, stockpiling 
equipment, regulating land-use, etc. 

2. The following table lists the established emergency support functions, assigned agencies, 
primary points of contact, and phone numbers. 

Direction, Control and City of Pontiac Mayor Waterman 248-705-5316 
Coordination 

Communications and Warning City of Pontiac Darin Carrington 248-758-3118 

Damage Assessment City of Pontiac Mike Wilson 248-670-5771 

Fire Services WRFD Chief Matt Covey 248-431-0103 

Mass Care, Emergency 
City of Pontiac Assistance, Housing, and Linnette Phillips 

248-330-4523 

Human Services 
248-672-3726 

Public Health and Medical Star EMS Chris Haney 
Services 

Public Information City of Pontiac Ken Martin 248-758-3101 

Public Safety OCSD Captain Ewing 248-881-3629 

Public Works City of Pontiac Al Cooley Ill 248-673-4118 

3. The following table lists the alternates designated to represent the emergency functions. 

5 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

4. The City of Pontiac maintains 10 fulltime departments. All departments contribute to the 
safety and welfare of the community. Each department employs qualified emergency 
personnel and maintains equipment that can be used in emergency response. A list of 
resources available for utilization during incidents can be requested through the Emergency 
Management Liaison. If resource needs exceed the capabilities of the community, the CEO 
may activate MAA/MOUs and pre-disaster contracts, or it may become necessary to request 
county assistance. 

B. Responsibilities: 

1. The following responsibilities have been assigned to each organization that has been 
assigned responsibility in this plan: 

a. Assist in the development, review and maintenance of Support EOP and County EOP. 

b. Report to the local EOG when activated for scheduled exercises or emergencies. 

c. Build capabilities and develop/maintain SOPs for specific functions or actions identified 

in the plan. Continuously review and update procedures. 

d. Maintain a list of resources available through the departments. 

e. Establish MAA/MOUs and contracts with other jurisdictions and organizations to 

supplement municipal resources. 

f. Activate MAA/MOUs and contracts with other organizations to supplement response 

activities when local resources become exhausted. 

g. Train personnel in emergency management functions and NIMS/ICS concepts. 

h. Protect vital records and other resources deemed essential for continuing government 

functions and each agency's emergency operations in accordance to procedures and 

policies. 

i. Ensure compliance with this plan and the County EOP, and any pertinent procedures 
and documents that impact the provision of emergency services in the municipality. 

2. The annexes attached to this plan further describe nine emergency support functions and their 
associated responsibilities in mitigation, preparedness, prevention, response and recovery. 
Annexes include the organizations that are responsible for carrying out the emergency 
functions, and assign tasks associated with each function. 

6 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

ANNEXES 

The annexes attached to the Basic Plan describe all-hazard functions and include the roles and responsibilities that 
each responsible agency should consider during an emergency for which the Support EOP has been activated. 
Each annex contains: the agencies responsible for carrying out a function, their assigned tasks, and the concept of 
operations. 

The annexes attached to this plan include the following functions: 

Annex A, Direction, Control, and Coordination 

Annex 8, Damage Assessment 

Annex C, Communications and Warning 

Annex D, Fire Services 

Annex E, Mass Care, Emergency Assistance, Housing, and Human Services 

Annex F, Public Health and Medical Services 

Annex G, Public Information 

Annex H, Public Safety 

Annex I, Public Works (Includes Appendix A- Debris Management Guidelines) 

7 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

ANNEX A 

DIRECTION, CONTROL, AND COORDINATION 

The Direction, Control, and Coordination function is responsible for the activation, organization and operation of 
the local EOC, the facilitation of incident management, response, and recovery efforts, and coordination with the 
County Emergency Management Program. 

Direction, Control, and Coordination officials will maintain liaison and coordinate emergency management and 
response activities with the Direction, Control and Coordination function at the county level. This annex relates to 
the following annex(es) in the Oakland County EOP: ESF#5 - Emergency ManagemenUlnformation & Planning, 
ESF#7 - Logistics and Resource Support. 

Responsible Agency: Executive Office 

Direction, Control, and Coordination Checklist 

Report to the EOC, when activated, for scheduled exercises and disasters, or delegate another 
representative from the aQency to staff the EOC and implement the plan. 
EOC operations .· 

Activate the EOC and ensure that appropriate staff is notified. 
Establish a system of coordination, such as ICS (see Figure 1 ), within the EOC. (Field operations 
at the ICP are required to utilize ICS.) 
Maintain administrative materials for the EOC, i.e., pencils, paper, maps, and status boards. 
Ensure copies of the Support EOP and EOC SOPs are available to EOC staff. 
Coordinate with law enforcement officials for EOC security. 
Local authoritv ... 

Direct and coordinate response activities in accordance with this plan, including prioritizing 
allocation of scarce resources. 
Relieve jurisdiction employees of normal duties and temporarily reassign them to emergency 
duties, and employ temporary workers, as necessary. 
Declare a local state of emerQency and notify the County 
Issue directives as to travel restrictions on municipal roads. 
Recommend appropriate protective measures to ensure the health and safety of people and 
property. 
Assistance to other aaencies 
Advise the County Emergency Management Coordinator of the situation and maintain liaison with 
the County EmerQency ManaQement ProQram. 
Establish communications with and provide support to the Incident Command Post (ICP). 
Provide frequent staff briefinQs and ensu.re all Qroups function as planned. 
Inform legislative body of measures taken. 
Review and authorize the release of information to the public through the Public Information 
Officer (PIO). 
Loaistics 
Ensure all resources are made available for response. 
Formulate specific assistance requests to adjacent iurisdictions and the county. 
Activate MANMOUs and contracts with other jurisdictions and orQanizations. 
Provide aid to other communities as provided for in MANMOUs. 
Ensure staff maintains loQs of actions taken and financial records. 

8 



The The City of Pontiac 

Operation$ Settlon 

Tuk F01n 

Support Emergency Operations Plan 

Figure 1. ICS Incident Management Structure 

Incident Commander 

Public Information 
Officer 

Siturnon 
Unit 

Safety 
O fllc&r 

9 

Lia Ison 
omcer 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

DIRECTION, CONTROL, AND COORDINATION 

The following agency is responsible for this annex: 

The line of succession for the CEO for representing the Direction, Control, and Coordination function during a 
response to an emergency or disaster situation is: 

Mayor City of Pontiac 

Deputy Mayor City of Pontiac 

Finance Director City of Pontiac 

The line of succession for the Emergency Management Liaison for representing the Direction, Control, and 
Coordination function during a response to an emergency or disaster situation is: 

Mayor City of Pontiac 

Deputy Mayor City of Pontiac 

Finance Director City of Pontiac 

The CEO and Emergency Management Liaison are responsible for reporting or delegating an individual from 
their agency to report to the EOC during scheduled exercises or emergencies to coordinate and represent the 
Direction, Control, and Coordination function. 

10 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

ANNEX B 

COMMUNICATIONS AND WARNING 

The Communications and Warning function is responsible for alerting and notification of key officials, receiving 
and disseminating warning and critical emergency information to the public, and the establishment, 
maintenance, and coordination of communication protocols and links between the EOC and other incident 
facilities. 

The Communications and Warning Official will maintain liaison and coordinate emergency management and 
response activities with the Communications and Warning functions at the county level. This annex relates to 
the following annex(es) in the Oakland County EOP: ESF#2 - Communications and Supporting Technologies, 
ESF#15 - External Affairs and Public Information. 

Responsible Agency: (e.g., 911 Dispatch Center, IT Department) 

Communications and Warning Checklist 

Report to the EOC, when activated, for scheduled exercises and disasters, or delegate another 
re resentative from the a enc to staff the EOC and im lement the Ian. 
Co.mrnunication links 
Ensure lines of communication have been established between all agencies represented in the 
local EOC, their department offices and their staff at the incident site. Available channels for 
establishing communications includes communications channels e. . tele hone cell hone 
radios a ers etc. 
Coordinate communications between municipal and county EOC. Available channels for 
establishing communications include (communications channels, e.g. telephone, cell phone, 
radios a ers etc. 
Establish communications links with the ad'acent communities and hi her levels of overnment. 
Coordinate warning frequencies and procedures with adjacent communities and other 

overnment a encies. 
Disaster warnin and information 
Activate public warning systems when instructed to do so by the CEO or Emergency 
Management Liaison. Warning methods include (warning methods, e.g., social media, door
to-door notification reverse 911 etc. 
Ensure that warning messages received through the Law Enforcement Information Network 
(LEIN), National Warning System (NAWAS), Emergency Alert System (EAS), local weather 
s otters, or other verifiable means are issued in a timel manner. 
Determine which facilities are endangered by the incident and contact those facilities. Ensure 
the are contacted when rotective actions are rescinded. 
Notify special locations (e.g., schools, hospitals, nursing homes, major industries, institutions, 
and laces of ublic assembl . 
Ensure that public warning systems provide notification to residents with Access and Functional 
Needs, such as the elderly, hearing impaired, non-English speakers, individuals with mobility 

etc. 

Notify neighboring jurisdictions of impending hazard or hazardous situations when instructed to 
do so b the Chief Executive Official or Erner enc Mana ement Liaison. 

11 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

COMMUNICATIONS AND WARNING 

The following agency is responsible for this annex: 

City of Pontiac HR Manager 

The line of succession for representing the Communications and Warning function during a response to an 
emergency or disaster situation is: 

HR Manager City of Pontiac 

Finance Director City of Pontiac 

IT/Cable and Communications Director is responsible for reporting or delegating another individual from their 
agency to report to the EOG during scheduled exercises or emergencies to coordinate and represent the 
Communications and Warning function. 

12 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

ANNEXC 

DAMAGE ASSESSMENT 

The Damage Assessment (DA) function is concerned with the process of documenting damage from 
emergencies in the community. Information gathered may be used to determine the extent of damage and 
impact on the community resulting from an incident to justify future federal funding, declarations of emergency, 
and disaster proclamations. An accurate damage assessment is a necessary part of the recovery phase and 
determines qualification for state and federal disaster aid. 

The Damage Assessment Official will maintain liaison and coordinate emergency management and response 
activities with the DA function at the county level. This annex relates to the following annex(es) in the Oakland 
County EOP: ESF#5 - Emergency ManagemenUlnformation Planning, ESF#14 - Recovery. 

Responsible Agency: (e.g., Assessing Office, Building Department) 

Damage Assessment Checklist 

Report to the EOC, when acti'vated, for scheduled exercises and disasters, or delegate another 
from the agency to staff the EOC and implement the plan. 
Damaae assessment 
Maintain current list of DA field team members. 
Maintain damage assessment field team supplies for contingency purposes, i.e., MSP/EMSHD 
Pub 901 Michigan Damage Assessment Handbook, blank forms, flashlights, cameras, pencils, 
paper, maps, etc. 
Activate DA field teams. 
Collect both public and private damage assessment information. 
Record initial information on damages from first responders. 
Augment DA field teams, as the situation dictates. 
Dissemination of DA information 
Provide an initial DA to EOC staff. 
Provide and verify DA inforr:nation to the CEO and, if necessary, assist in preparation of a local 
state of emergency declaration. 
Prominently display DA information in the EOC, including maps, situation updates and 
assessment data. 
Provide the PIO with current DA information for release to the public. 
Provide DA data to the Emergency Management Liaison. The Emergency Management Liaison 
will forward information to the County Emergency Management Program for submission in Ml 
CIMS; MICIMS damage assessment data should be entered within 72 hours of incident onset. 
Logistics 
Maintain a status list of requested resources. 
Compile and maintain a record of expenditures for personnel, equipment, supplies, etc. 

13 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

DAMAGE ASSESSMENT 

The following agency is responsible for this annex: 

Building Safety Building Official 

The line of succession for representing the DA function during a response to an emergency or disaster situation 
is: 

Building Official Building Safety 

Deputy Building Official Building Safety 

Building Inspector Building Safety 

Buildings and Safety Director and/or their designee is responsible for reporting or delegating another 
individual from their agency to report to the EOG during scheduled exercises or emergencies to coordinate and 
represent the DA function. 

14 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

ANNEXD 

FIRE SERVICES 

The Fire Services function is concerned with detecting and suppressing wild land, rural, and urban fires 
and any of these that result from, or occur coincidentally with, an incident response. 

The Fire Services Official will maintain liaison and coordinate emergency management and response activities 
with the Fire Services function at the county level. This annex relates to the following annex(es) in the Oakland 
County EOP: ESF#4 - Firefighting, ESF#9 - Search & Rescue, ESF#1 O - Hazardous Materials. 

Responsible Agency: (e.g., Fire Department) 

Fire Services Checklist 

Report to the EOG, when activated, for scheduled exercises and disasters, or delegate another 
representative from the aqencv to staff the EOG and implement the plan. 
Response activities : 

Coordinate fire response and search and rescue activities with appropriate personnel at the 
County Emergency Management Program, including assistance to regional special teams such 
as Regional Response Teams, Michigan Task Force One (MI-TF1) Urban Search and 
Rescue,MABAS 3201, MABAS 3202, bomb squads, etc. 
Respond to hazardous materials spills. 
Coordinate with the County EMC and the State of Michigan in the decontamination of affected 
citizens and emergency workers after exposure to CBRNE hazards. 
Assist in searching for bombs and explosive devices in connection with terrorism or weapons of 
mass destruction (WMD) events. 
Assistance to other agencies ·. 

Advise EOG staff about fire and rescue activities. 
Provide communications and other logistical supplies, as needed. 
Assist with evacuations. 
Assist in damage assessment operations. 
Assist in warning the population. Loud speakers on fire vehicles or door-to-door warning may be 
utilized. 
Assist in salvage operations and debris clearance. 

15 



The The City of Pontiac 

FIRE SERVICES 

The following agency is responsible for this annex: 

Waterford Regional Fire 

Support Emergency Operations Plan 

Fire Chief 

The line of succession for representing the Fire Services function during a response to an emergency or 
disaster situation is: 

Deputy Fire Chief Waterford Regional Fire 

Fire Marshal Waterford Regional Fire 

Battalion Chief Waterford Regional Fire 

Fire Chief and/or their desginee is responsible for reporting or delegating another individual from their agency 
to report to the EOC during scheduled exercises or emergencies to coordinate and represent the Fire Services 
Functions. 

6/9/2021 

16 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

ANNEXE 

MASS CARE, EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE, HOUSING, AND HUMAN SERVICES 

This function is concerned with issues related to the provision of mass care, emergency assistance, housing, 
and human services to disaster survivors, including those that require Functional Needs Support Services, 
throughout the prevention, preparedness, mitigation, response, and recovery phases of disasters and 
emergencies. 

The Mass Care, Emergency Assistance, Housing, and Human Services Official will maintain liaison and 
coordinate emergency management and response activities with the Mass Care functions at the county level. 
This annex relates to the following annex(es) in the Oakland County EOP: ESF#2 - Communications and 
Supporting Technologies, ESF#6 - Mass Care, Shelter and Human Services, ESF#17 - Animal Care. 

Responsible Agency: (e.g., Recreation Department, Housing Office) 

Mass Care, Emergency Assistance, Housing, and Human Services Checklist 

Report to the EOC, when activated, for scheduled exercises and disasters, or delegate another 
representative from the agency to staff the EOC and implement the plan. 
DisasteMelated needs 
Coordinate activities of municipal departments that provide mass care and human services. 
Coordinate with the County Emergency Management Program, the American Red Cross (ARC) 
and other agencies to distribute food, water, and clothing, and meet other basic needs of 
disaster survivors and emergency responders. 
Coordinate to provide transportation for disaster survivors and emergency responders. 
Arranqe for the provision of crisis counselinq to disaster survivors and emerqency responders. 
Coordinate procedures for the tracking of family members and reunification of families. 
Identify and account for personal property that may be lost during a disaster. 
Coordinate with the County EOC to establish procedures for the registration and management 
of volunteers and donations. 
Coordinate with agencies in the community that work with individuals with access and functional 
needs to ensure disaster related needs are met. 
Protective action 
Coordinate the provision of transportation for evacuation. 
Provide staff and resources to manage open shelters. 
Coordinate care for individuals at shelters and for those who have been sheltered-in-place. 
Determine whether shelters must be opened long or short-term. 
Provide guidance/policies for the care of household pets that are brought to shelters by 
evacuees (only service animals are allowed into ARC shelters). 
Pre-identified shelter locations include: (shelter locations; information on ~re-identified 
shelter locations should be available from the County Emergency Management Program 
or ARC) 

17 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

MASS CARE, EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE, HOUSING, AND HUMAN SERVICES 

The following agency is responsible for this annex: 

City of Pontiac Director, Economic and Community Development 

The line of succession for representing the Mass Care, Emergency Assistance, Housing, and Human Services 
function during a response to an emergency or disaster situation is: 

Dir. Economic & Community Development City of Pontiac 

Manager, Planning & Development City of Pontiac 

CSR, Economic Development City of Pontiac 

Office of the Mayor of Pontiac is responsible for reporting or delegating another individual from their agency to 
report to the EOC during scheduled exercises or emergencies to coordinate and represent the Mass Care, 
Emergency Assistance, Housing, and Human Services function. 

6/9/21 

18 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

ANNEX F 

PUBLIC HEAL TH AND MEDICAL SERVICES 

The Public Health and Medical Services function is responsible for assessing public health and medical needs, 
health surveillance, and provision of medical care personnel, supplies and equipment. 

The Public Health and Medical Services Official will maintain liaison and coordinate emergency management 
and response activities with the Public Health and Medical Services function at the county level. This annex 
relates to the following annex(es) in the Oakland County EOP: ESF#8 - Public Health and Medical, ESF#17 -
Animal Care. 

Responsible Agency: (e.g., Fire Department, EMS agency) 

Public Health and Medical Services Checklist 

Report to the EOC, when activated, for scheduled exercises and disasters, or delegate another 
representative from the agency to staff the EOC and implement the plan . 
Patient care 

. · 
. 

Coordinate with medical providers and shelter managers to staff medical personnel at shelters. 
Identify the transportation resources and personnel needs to transport disaster survivors to 
temporarv care centers. 
Provide transportation of patients and assist hospitals with transfer of patients. 
Ensure identification and notification of disaster survivors and emergency responders in need of 
crisis counselinq and/or debriefinq. 
Coordinate the monitoring of disaster survivors and emergency responders for exposure to 
chemical, radiological, or biological contaminants, and assist in their decontamination. 
Public health .. 
If necessary, identify a site for a temporary morgue. NOTE: The medical examiner is responsible 
for identifying the deceased. Law enforcement and EMS may provide additional support in 
collecting and transporting. 
Assist with animal and pet control and support the county Animal Control Unit in the quarantine 
and disposal of diseased animals. 

19 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

PUBLIC HEAL TH AND MEDICAL SERVICES 

The following agency is responsible for this annex: 

Star EMS President/CEO 

The line of succession for representing the Public Health and Medical Services function during a response to an 
emergency or disaster situation is: 

Chris Haney Director of Operations 

Brian Long, Director Safety and Risk 
Management 

Douglas Miles, V.P Operations 

Star EMS 

Star EMS 

Star EMS 

Office of the Mayor of Pontiac and/or their designee is responsible for reporting or delegating another 
individual from their agency to report to the EOC during scheduled exercises or emergencies to coordinate and 
represent the Public Health and Medical Services function. 

08-09-2021 

20 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

ANNEXG 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 

The Public Information function ensures accurate, coordinated, timely, and accessible information is 
disseminated to governments, media, the general public, and the private sector throughout the prevention, 
preparedness, mitigation, response, and recovery phases of disasters and emergencies. 

The Public Information Official will maintain liaison and coordinate emergency management and response 
activities with the Public Information function at the county level. This annex relates to the following annex(es) in 
the Oakland County EOP: ESF#15 - External Affairs and Public Information. 

Responsible Agency: Mayor's Office 

Public Information Checklist 

Report to the EOC, when activated, for scheduled exercises and disasters, or delegate another 
from the agency to staff the EOC and implement the plan. 
Pre-disaster public education 
Assist the Emergency Management Liaison in developing educational materials on the hazards 
facing the community and explaining what people can do to protect themselves to recover from 
incidents. 
Ensure that written materials/social media are developed for non-English speaking individuals or 
others who require FNSS. 
Disaster warnina and information . 

Coordinate with the County to develop and release updated EAS messages based on incoming 
information. 
Coordinate with the County to document which EAS messages have been delivered over radio 
and television. 
Ensure that accurate information is disseminated describing such items as the locations of 
shelters, missing persons information hotline, volunteer hotline, rumor control hotline, etc. 
Distribute prepared public educational materials. 

. Media coordination 
Establish and maintain contact with the EOC and/or the ICP. 
Prepare press releases and ensure that all press releases and official information is reviewed by 
(positions that will review press releases. e.a. Mavor/Deputv Mavor). 
Verify that information is accurate before releasinq it to the media. 
Schedule media briefinqs. 
Establish a Public Information Center as the central point from which municipal news releases 
are issued at Mayor's Officer 
Assist the county in establishing a Joint Information Center (JIC; the JIC can be used by agency 
representatives for releasinq information to the news media). 
Coordinate oublic information activities with the County PIO and the JIC. 
Schedule interviews between the CEO and media aqencies. 
Monitor all forms of media, both traditional and social, for rumors, and address rumors as soon 
as possible 

21 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 

The following agency is responsible for this annex: 

Office of Information Technology Lead Engineer 

The line of succession for representing the Public Information function during a response to an emergency or 
disaster situation is: 

Lead Engineer Frank Antoun Information Technology Office 

Senior Technician Kenneth Martin Information Technology Office 

Technician Kim Gamez Information Technology Office 

Director of Public Information is responsible for reporting or delegating another individual from their agency to 
report to the EOG during scheduled exercises or emergencies to coordinate and represent the Public 
Information function. 

Frank Antoun 09-01-2021 

22 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

ANNEXH 

PUBLIC SAFETY 

The Public Safety function is concerned with ensuring the safety of all citizens, maintaining law and order, 
protecting public and private property and providing protection for essential industries, supplies and facilities. 

The Public Safety Official will maintain liaison and coordinate emergency management and response activities 
with the Public Safety function at the county level. This annex relates to the following annex(es) in the Oakland 
County EOP: ESF#13 - Public Safety and Security/Law Enforcement, ESF#17 - Animal Care, ESF#18 -
Military/Defense Support to Civil Authorities. 

Responsible Agency: Oakland County Sheriff's Department 

Public Safety Checklist 

Report to the EOC, when activated, for scheduled exercises and disasters, or delegate another 
from the agency to .staff the EOC and implement the plan. 
Response activities 
Provide security and access control at critical facilities and incident sites. 
Implement any curfews ordered by the qovernor or CEO. 
Enforce evacuation orders and assist in evacuations. 
Ensure prisons and jails are notified of potential threat and determine whether proper safety and 
security precautions are beinq taken. 
Implement urban search and rescue capabilities, including animals. 
lnvestiqate incident and provide intelliqence information to county, state and federal officials. 
Transportation .. · 
Secure unusable roads. (Use Fire Services and Public Works for support, if necessary). 
Identify routes that need barricades and signs. Request necessary assistance from Public 
Works. 
Ensure vehicles on evacuation routes are removed. If necessary, request that Public Works 
aqencies move vehicles off the road. Maintain record of where vehicles are beinq taken. 
Coordinate with the Road Commission or Public Works in rerouting traffic and putting the 
appropriate signs in place. 
Assistance to other a!:lencies 
Assist Warning function in warning the public, when necessary. 
Assist the medical examiner with mortuary services. 
Assist families isolated by the effects of the disaster. 

23 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

PUBLIC SAFETY 

The following agencies are responsible for this annex: 

Oakland County Sheriff's Office Pontiac Substation 

The line of succession for representing the Public Safety function during a response to an emergency or 
disaster situation is: 

Captain Andre Ewing Oakland County Sheriff's Office 

Lieutenant Robert Ford Oakland County Sheriff's Office 

Lieutenant Steven Troy Oakland County Sheriff's Office 

Director of Public Safety and/or their designee is responsible for reporting or delegating another individual 
from their agency to report to the EOG during scheduled exercises or emergencies to coordinate and represent 
the Public Safety function. 

06/10/21 

24 



The The City of Pontiac 

ANNEXI 

PUBLIC WORKS 

Support Emergency Operations Plan 

The Public Works function is responsible for conducting pre- and post-incident assessments, 
ensuring critical services are met through existing contracts, providing technical assistance and 
engineering expertise and construction management, providing emergency repair of damaged 
public infrastructure and critical facilities, and the clearing of debris from public roads. 

The Public Works Official will maintain liaison and coordinate emergency management and response 
activities with the Public Works function at the county level. This annex relates to the following annex(es) 
in the Oakland County EOP: ESF#1 - Transportation/Transportation Infrastructure, ESF#3 - Public 
Works and Engineering and ESF#12 - Energy and Energy Infrastructure. 

Responsible Agency: Department of Public Works 

Public Works Checklist 

Report to the EOG, when activated, for scheduled exercises and disasters, or delegate another 
c to staff · 
tivitie$ 

Provide barricades and signs for road closures and boundary identification (to include activating 
MAA/MOUs if additional barricades are needed). 
Provide technical expertise in road weight limits, road capacity, etc., to determine whether 
evacuation routes are adequate for traffic flow. 
Notif law enforcement of the location s of disabled vehicles. 
Contact appropriate Michigan Department of Transportation (MOOT) and county transportation 
officials to re uest travel restrictions on state and count roads, if necessar . 

Assist with urban search and rescue qctivities, if necessar . 
Maintain contact with local utilities to determine the extent and cause of damage and outages. 
Re ort this information and restoration schedules to EOG staff. 

Provide vehicles and personnel to transport essential goods, such as food and medical 
su lies, when directed b the EOG staff. 

Assist in identifying and obtaining the appropriate construction equipment to support disaster 
res onse and recover o erations. 

25 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

PUBLIC WORKS 

The following agencies are responsible for this annex: 

Director of Public Works 

The line of succession for representing the Public Works function during a response to an emergency or 
disaster situation is: 

Director of Public Works DPW 

Deputy Director of Public Works DPW 

City Engineer DPW 

The Department of Public Works is responsible for reporting or delegating another individual from their 
agency to report to the EOC during scheduled exercises or emergencies to coordinate and represent the 
Public Works function. 

6/9/2021 

APPENDIX A 

26 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

Debris Management Guidelines 

The Department of Public Works is responsible for debris management activities. The following guidelines 
represent a checklist of actions that agency officials must consider for providing effective debris 
management. 

Guidelines: 

Debris Clearance - Occurs in the first 24-72 hours and generally focuses on clearing roadways 
for emergency vehicles & rescue operations to have unobstructed routes to critical facilities 

a. Maintain detailed record keeping (critical for possible reimbursement) 
i. Document all expenses and time involved in the debris removal process 

b. Coordinate with public utilities and waste haulers 
c. Consider how to handle access to private property 

i. Right-of-entry, hold-harmless agreements 
d. Consider health & safety concerns (obtain detailed safety plans from contractors) 
e. Obtain any necessary permits and/or waivers 

Debris Removal - The management and disposal of accumulated debris after life-safety has 
been addressed 

f. Consider the following steps in the debris management process: 
i. Removal 
ii. Transportation/hauling routes 
iii. Temporary storage/staging site selection & management 

1. Consider water tables, affected populations, terrain 
iv. Monitoring/load tickets/weights & measures 
v. Sorting/Processing 
vi. Recycling of applicable materials 
vii. Reduction (Chipping, grinding, burning) 
viii. Final disposition/landfill or other 

When Trash Removal Providers are Individually Contracted by Residents: 

a. If the jurisdiction does not provide trash removal services to residents under normal 
circumstances, after a large emergency, if the private company is unable or unwilling to 
remove the debris, it will become the responsibility of the local jurisdiction to ensure 
health and safety to their residents. 

b. Contact local private companies to see what, if any, services they will provide their 
contracted residents with debris removal caused by an emergency. 

c. Track all costs associated with the debris removal. 
d. Contact DPW (if applicable) to determine what equipment is owned by the jurisdiction 

and if any can be used for this purpose. 
e. Contact neighboring communities who provide trash removal on a daily basis. If they 

were unaffected by the disaster, see if they can provide some assistance for equipment, 
temporary storage locations and/or transport to landfill. 

f. Identify a location (possibly parking lot) that can be used for temporary storage site of 
garbage. 

g. Request guidance from DEQ on permits and licenses. 

27 



The The City of Pontiac Support Emergency Operations Plan 

h. Contact landfill to set-up contract, rates and drop off schedule. 
i. Set hours and map out pick-up locations of affected areas. Send out public messages 

regarding the services available and process. 
j. Consider requiring residents to drop off debris to one identified site. The jurisdiction 

won't need the trucks, staff or logistics for curb side removal but will have to load semi
trucks and take to landfill. 

28 



Pontiac Election Commission 
Commission Members 
Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk 
Anthony Chubb, Esq., City Attorney 
Sekar Bawa, City Treasurer 
Jo Lynn Williams, Elections Administrator 

I. Roll Call 

MEETING AGENDA 
August 8, 2021 

9:00A.M. 
Pontiac City Hall 

47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

Shrine Room 

II. Authorization to Excuse Commissioners 

III. Approval of the Agenda 

IV. Approval of the Minutes- July 21, 2021 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Phone (248) 758-3200 
Fax (248) 758-3160 

Be it further resolved that the Pontiac Election Commission approves the minutes from July 21, 
2021 Meeting 

V. Approve the Ballots for the General Election on November 2, 2021 
Be it further resolved that the Pontiac Election Commission approves the ballots for the 
November 2, 2021 General Election 

VI. Public Comment 

VII. Adjournment 



#9 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council Members 

FROM: Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

DATE: September 2, 2021 

RE: Proposed Hazard Pay for Department of Public Works 
Employees using funds from the American Rescue Plan (ARP) 

Earlier this year the federal government passed the American Rescue Plan (''ARP") 
to help address some of the economic fallout from the COVID_19 pandemic. From 
the ARP, the City of Pontiac has been granted $37.7 million in funding. Under the 
ARP, the funding can be used for a number of allowable purposes. One of these 
allowable purposes is for Hazard Pay for essential workers. 

For the City of Pontiac, the employees of the Department of Public Works continued 
to work during the time from when the pandemic and emergency was first declared 
back in March 2020. To help compensate these essential employees, the 
Administration is proposing that a Hazard Pay bonus be provided to employees. The 
bonus would be a one-time bonus that would cover current employees. For any 
employee that started after the pandemic started, the amount of the bonus would 
be prorated based on the employee's start date .. 

WHEREAS, City of Pontiac has been awarded $37.7 million in funding from the 
American Rescue Plan (ARP); AND 

WHEREAS, one of the allowable expenses under the ARP guidelines is for hazard 
pay to essential workers; AND 

WHEREAS, City of Pontiac Department of Public Works (DPW) employees have 
worked consistently throughout the COVID-19 pandemic beginning in March 2020 
which has involved increased risk due to the pandemic; AND 

WHEREAS, DPW employees are essential employees and it is the City's desire to 
provide them with hazard pay to provide additional compensation for their work 
during the pandemic; AND 

NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Pontiac DPW workers be 
provided with hazard pay from the City's ARP funds to the employees and for the 
amounts detailed in the attached document. 



Name Position 

Vacant Director 

Al Cooley Ill Deputy Director 

Abdul Siddiqui City Engineer 

Mendy Wesley Accounting Assistant 

Chanitia Cody CSR 
Vince Jimenez ROW Inspector 

Matt Lande ROW Inspector/Miss Dig 

Larry Robinson Building Superintendant 

Victor Stevens Building Laborer 
Eric Brimm Supervisor 

Bob Shelton Forman 

Talia Harden Laborer II 

Bob Locher Laborer II 

Vacant Laborer II 
Vacant Laborer II 
Ryan Holler Laborer II 

Vacant Laborer II 

Vacant Laborer I 

Gabe Jimenez Laborer I 

Derrick Hardy Litter Pickup 

Lee Johnson* DPW Assistant {PT Sanitation 30 hrs a week) 

Omer Murati Janitorial 
Fatime Murati Janitorial 

Worked During COVID / Hire Date 

Yes/2017 

Yes/2020 

Yes/ 10-28 2009 

Yes/ 2020 

Yes/ 2015 

Yes/ 8-24 2020 

Yes/ 2009 

Yes/ 2009 

Yes/ 1996 

Yes/ 2017 

Yes/ 8-17-2020 

Yes/ 2018 

Yes/ 2-1-2021 

Yes/ 8-17-2020 

Yes/ 8-12-2020 

Yes/ 2015 

Yes/ 8-8-2020 

Yes/ 8-8-2020 

Covid Bonus 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

5,000.00 

4,000.00 

1,000.00 

200.00 1000-800 

3,000.00 

2,400.00 3000-600 

3,000.00 

3,000.00 

3,000.00 

3,000.00 

2,400.00 3000-600 

3,000.00 

1,900.00 3000-1100 

2,400.00 3 000-600 

000-600 2,400.00 3 

3,000.00 

500.00 

500.00 

$ 43,700.00 



#10 
COMMUNICATION 

FROM THE CITY 
ATTORNEY 



GMIIGIARMJ\RCO, MULLINS & HORTON, P.C. 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

TO: 

CC: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

MEMORANDUM 

Pontiac City Council 
Interim Clerk Garland Doyle 
Monique Sharpe, Esq. 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

Anthony Chubb, Esq. 

August 25, 2021 

Open Meetings Act Obligations Regarding Public Comment 

At the City Council Meeting of August 24, 2021, parliamentarian Eleanor Siewert presented 

on the topic of City Council public comment. It is vital that members of the City Council understand 

that the statements of Ms. Siewert were based on theories of public policy and best practices, but 

were not legal advice. The Open Meeting Act is unambiguous that all members of the public shall 

be able to address the Council during public comment, and that any attempt to limit that ability, or 

regulate the content of the comments, is a violation oflaw. 

Ms. Siewert's presentation to Council asserted that the intent of public comment is to let 

residents speak to the Council on City issues, and that it would therefore be inappropriate for 

employees of the City to speak at that time. She subsequently noted that if the employees were 

residents, it might be appropriate for them to speak on issues not related to their position. She also 

stated that this was because employees are allowed to speak on City-related issues as Council 

Agenda items. It is imperative that Councilmembers understand that these theories are not consistent 

with law, and are therefore not enforceable by the Council President or City Council as a body. 



Memorandum 
August 25, 2021 
Page 2 

The Open Meetings Act establishes an explicit right of the public to address meetings of a 

public body. Specifically, at MCL 15.263(5), the Open Meetings Act states, in relevant provision: 

15.263 Meetings, decisions, and deliberations of public body; requirements; 
attending or addressing meeting of public body; tape-recording, videotaping, 
broadcasting, and telecasting proceedings; rules; exclusion from meeting; 
exemptions. 
Sec. 3. 

( 5) A person must be permitted to address a meeting of a public body under rules 
established and recorded by the public body. The legislature or a house of the 
legislature may provide by rule that the right to address may be limited to prescribed 
times at hearings and committee meetings only. 

( emphasis added.) 

Importantly, the Act does not provide a definition of a person that excludes any individuals, 

including employees of the City. As such, all City employees and appointees are a "person" for 

purposes of the Act. As such, the Council must allow their participation in public comment. 

These types of violations of the Open Meetings Act create potential civil liability to the City 

and Council as a violation of the United States Constitution. Federal jurisprudence has long 

prohibited a governmental actor from engaging in such viewpoint discrimination under the cloak of 

governmental authority. Specifically, the United States Supreme Court explained: 

In determining whether a State is acting within its power to preserve the limits it has 
set for such a forum so that the exclusion of a class of speech there is legitimate, this 
Court has observed a distinction between, on the one hand, content discrimination
i.e., discrimination against speech because of its subject matter-which may be 
permissible if it preserves the limited forum's purposes, and, on the other 
hand, viewpoint discrimination-i.e., discrimination because of the speaker's specific 
motivating ideology, opinion, or perspective-which is presumed impermissible 
when directed against speech otherwise within the forum's limitations ... 

Rosenberger v. Rector and Visitors of University of Virginia, 515 U.S. 819, 819-820 ( 1995); citing 
Perry Ed. Assn. v. Perry Local Educators' Assn., 460 U.S. 37, 46-47 (1983). 



Memorandum 
August 25, 2021 
Page 3 

Violations of the Open Meetings Act are also criminal acts subject to civil liability. 

Regarding criminal violations, the Open Meetings Act states: 

15.272 Violation as misdemeanor; penalty. 
Sec. 12. 
( 1) A public official who intentionally violates this act is guilty of a misdemeanor 

punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000.00. 
(2) A public official who is convicted of intentionally violating a provision of this 

act for a second time within the same term shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall 
be fined not more than $2,000.00, or imprisoned for not more than 1 year, or both. 1 

A public official that criminally violates the Open Meetings Act is also subject to personal 

civil liability. Specifically, the Open Meetings Act states in relevant provision: 

15.273 Violation; liability. 
Sec. 13. 

( 1) A public official who intentionally violates this act shall be personally liable in a 
civil action for actual and exemplary damages of not more than $500.00 total, plus 
court costs and actual attorney fees to a person or group of persons bringing the 
action. 

(2) Not more than 1 action under this section shall be brought against a public 
official for a single meeting. An action under this section shall be commenced within 
180 days after the date of the violation which gives rise to the cause of action. 
(3) An action for damages under this section may be joined with an action for 

injunctive or exemplary relief under section 11. 

Additionally, these actions pose a potential liability to the City. The Michigan Attorney 

General, Oakland County Prosecutor, or any member of the public may file an action against the 

City Council to obtain a court order to compel compliance with the Open Meetings Act, and further 

recover costs and attorneys' fees for doing so. Specifically, the Open Meetings Act states in relevant 

provision: 

1. Subsection two regarding criminality of repeated violations is important to note, given pending 
litigation (Blackwell v. Pontiac City Council) that has found that the Council has previously violated 
the Open Meetings Act. 



Memorandum 
August 25, 2021 
Page4 

15.271 Civil action to compel compliance or enjoin noncompliance; 
commencement; venue; security not required; commencement of action for 
mandamus; court costs and attorney fees. 
Sec. 11. 
( 1) If a public body is not complying with this act, the attorney general, prosecuting 

attorney of the county in which the public body serves, or a person may commence a 
civil action to compel compliance or to enjoin further noncompliance with this act. 

(2) An action for injunctive relief against a local public body shall be commenced in 
the circuit court, and venue is proper in any county in which the public body serves. 
An action for an injunction against a state public body shall be commenced in the 
circuit court and venue is proper in any county in which the public body has its 
principal office, or in Ingham county. If a person commences an action for injunctive 
relief, that person shall not be required to post security as a condition for obtaining a 
preliminary injunction or a temporary restraining order. 

(3) An action for mandamus against a public body under this act shall be 
commenced in the court of appeals. 
( 4) If a public body is not complying with this act, and a person commences a civil 

action against the public body for injunctive relief to compel compliance or to enjoin 
further noncompliance with the act and succeeds in obtaining relief in the action, the 
person shall recover court costs and actual attorney fees for the action. 

Finally, conversation at the August 23, 2021 Council meeting made it clear that the 

amendments to the City Council rules were as a result of the advice of Ms. Siewert and supported by 

Legislative Counsel Monique Sharpe. It is important that the Council note that the City Attorney, 

pursuant to his authority vested within the Charter, has advised that these amendments are 1. A 

violation of several State laws; and, 2. Unenforceable, as they were vetoed by the Mayor and the 

City Council did not override that veto. Therefore, The Council President and City Council should 

immediately stop conducting meetings in accordance with these illegal rules. 

Based upon the foregoing, it is imperative that the Council comply with the requirements of 

the Open Meetings Act and the City Attorney's recommendations related thereto - including 

adherence to the purported amendments to the City Council Rules. Should you have any questions 

or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me. 



#11 
COMMUNICATION 

FROM THE CITY 
CLERK 



Ronald K. Gay 
Master Carpenter / Contractor / Consultant / Author 
146 W. Lawrence St., Pontiac, MI 48341 

Sibley-Hoyf House 
01820 Et seq. (1S 

248 762 3511 / ron@gthree.net The Oldest: Continually Occupied House in Michigan 

August 20, 2021 

Pontiac City Clerk 
Garland Doyle 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

SETTLEMENT • ACTIVISM • MUSIC 

l am writing you today to request per-mission to locate a commemorative plaque honoring Hubert Pr-ice, 
Jr. within Beaudette Park 

A year and a half ago I contacted the Oakland County Resource Commissioner, Jim Nash, to request that 
the name of the dam at Beaudette Park's Dawson Mill Pond be changed from Price Dam to Hubert Price, 
Jr. Dam. The WRC responded immediately that they could and would do that. As a result of this official 
name change the WRC would like to locate a historical and commemorative plaque stating that the dam is 
named for Hubert Price, Jr., a former county commissioner and state representative. The plaque is to give 
a brief bio on Mr. Price. The WRC and I feel it would be more beneficial to the community to locate it 
within the park where more people will see it. The site location suggestion within the park is by the pier. 
We are aiming for an installation and ceremony date of September 28, 2021, Mr. Price's Birthday. Time in 
mind is late morning to early afternoon. 

Commissioner Nash and I are asking for the mayor's and council's approval to locate this historical 
plaque within Beaudette Park and to have a dedication ceremony as stated above. 

I was closely involved with the Motorcities National Heritage Area displays, 2012-2015, that you see 
around town. I was responsible for getting donors for fifty-six signs located here. I was also involved in 
collecting photos, stories, and with the visual layout of the signs. 

Another initiative I am currently working on is to have Oakland County's first person of color to purchase 
Iand here, Elizabeth Denison Forth in 1825, commemorated on a county level. That has been tentatively 
approved with details pending. 

Sincaf /.. //3 , 
RfnUi/4//ffe 
cc: Oakland Cou( Water Resource Commissioner, Jim Nash 

f-in,teys' CompMly C'abin 200 yeatr-;, 1820·202.0 


	20210903145411335
	20210903145515832_0001
	20210903145515832_0002



